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COMMON STOCK

Of the 4,400,000 shares of Common Stock offered hereby, 2,700,000 are being
sold by MAXIMUS, Inc. ("MAXIMUS" or the "Company") and 1,700,000 are being sold
by the Selling Shareholders. See "Principal and Selling Shareholders." The
Company will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by the
Selling Shareholders.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for the Common
Stock of the Company. It is currently estimated that the initial public offering
price will be between $13.00 and $15.00 per share. See "Underwriting" for
information relating to the factors to be considered in determining the initial
public offering price.

The Common Stock has been approved for listing on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol "MMS," subject to official notice of issuance.

SEE "RISK FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 6 FOR INFORMATION THAT SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED BY PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION
PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS.
ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>
PRICE UNDERWRITING PROCEEDS PROCEEDS TO
TO THE DISCOUNTS AND TO THE THE SELLING
PUBLIC COMMISSIONS (1) COMPANY (2) SHAREHOLDERS

<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>

Per Share.......covvu.. S $ $ $

Total(3) eeeeeeneneennn S S S S

</TABLE>

(1) See "Underwriting" for indemnification arrangements with the Underwriters.

(2) Before deducting expenses estimated at $870,000, which will be paid by the
Company.
(3) Certain Selling Shareholders have granted to the Underwriters a 30-day

option to purchase up to 660,000 additional shares of Common Stock at the
Price to the Public, less Underwriting Discounts and Commissions, solely to
cover over-allotments, if any. If such option is exercised in full, the



total Price to the Public, Underwriting Discounts and Commissions, Proceeds
to the Company and Proceeds to the Selling Shareholders will be $ ,
S , S and $ , respectively. The Company will not
receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares of Common Stock by the
Selling Shareholders pursuant to the Underwriters' over-allotment option, if
exercised. See "Underwriting" and "Principal and Selling Shareholders."

The shares of Common Stock are being offered by the several Underwriters
when, as and if delivered to and accepted by the Underwriters and subject to
various prior conditions, including their right to reject orders in whole or in
part. It is expected that delivery of the share certificates will be made in New
York, New York, on or about , 1997.

DONALDSON, LUFKIN & JENRETTE LEHMAN BROTHERS
SECURITIES CORPORATION

'[Diagram: Organizational Chart depicting the Company's operating divisions.]

This Prospectus contains certain forward-looking statements that involve
substantial risks and uncertainties. When used in this Prospectus, the words
"anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "expect" and similar expressions as they
relate to the Company or its management are intended to identify such
forward-looking statements. The Company's actual results, performance or
achievements could differ materially from the results expressed in, or implied
by, these forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to
such differences include those discussed in "Risk Factors."

CERTAIN PERSONS PARTICIPATING IN THIS OFFERING MAY ENGAGE IN TRANSACTIONS
THAT STABILIZE, MAINTAIN OR OTHERWISE AFFECT THE PRICE OF THE COMMON STOCK,
INCLUDING SYNDICATE SHORT COVERING TRANSACTIONS OR THE IMPOSITION OF PENALTY
BIDS. FOR A DESCRIPTION OF THESE ACTIVITIES, SEE "UNDERWRITING."

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to, and
should be read in conjunction with, the more detailed information and the
Financial Statements and related Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this
Prospectus. Unless otherwise indicated, all information contained in this
Prospectus: (i) assumes that the Underwriters' over-allotment option is not
exercised; (ii) has been adjusted to give effect to a 10-for-1 split of the
shares of the Company's common stock, no par value per share (the "Common
Stock"), in December 1995; and (iii) has been adjusted to give effect to an
11-for-1 split of the shares of the Common Stock in February 1997.

THE COMPANY

MAXIMUS, Inc. ("MAXIMUS" or the "Company") provides program management and
consulting services to government health and human services agencies in the
United States. The Company believes that it has been at the forefront of
innovation in "Helping Government Serve the People(TM)" since its inception in
1975. The Company's services are designed to make government operations more
efficient and cost effective while improving the quality of the services
provided to program beneficiaries. The Company applies an entrepreneurial,
private sector approach incorporating advanced technology in large scale
projects in almost every state in the nation. The Company believes that its
leading position in the emerging private sector health and human services
industry is reflected by its continued success in being awarded competitively
bid contracts by government health and human services agencies and a
corresponding growth in its annual revenues from approximately $19 million in
fiscal 1990 to over $100 million in fiscal 1996.

Federal, state and local government agencies in the United States spend
over $200 billion annually on the health and human services programs for which
the Company markets its services, including welfare, child care, child support
enforcement, food stamps, Social Security Disability Insurance, Supplemental
Security Income and Medicaid. These entitlement programs cost an estimated $21.0
billion in annual administrative costs. Public pressure to reduce costs and
increase the efficiency and effectiveness of government-provided services has
led to intense scrutiny of government spending, including the costs of
administering certain functions of health and human services programs. There has
been a recent surge in initiatives and legislation to reform federal, state and
local health and human services programs, the most significant of which is the
Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996 (the
"Welfare Reform Act"), a comprehensive bipartisan welfare reform plan that
legislated dramatic changes in the nation's welfare system. As a result of these
initiatives, states have significantly more incentive to seek efficient and
cost-effective ways to administer their welfare programs and reduce welfare



caseloads. The Company believes that fundamental changes in the nation's
entitlement programs will generate significant business opportunities for
companies similar to MAXIMUS that are positioned to assist health and human
services agencies in operating their programs more cost-effectively in the
future.

MAXIMUS conducts its operations through two groups, the Government
Operations Group and the Consulting Group. The Government Operations Group
administers and manages government health and human services programs, including
welfare-to-work and job readiness, child support enforcement, managed care
enrollment and disability services. The Consulting Group provides health and
human services planning, information technology consulting, strategic program
evaluation, program improvement, communications planning and revenue
maximization services.

The Company believes that it possesses several business strengths that
provide a competitive advantage, including: (i) Single Market Focus resulting in
a thorough understanding of the regulations and operations of government health
and human services programs; (ii) Proven Track Record established by more than
21 years of providing successful government program management and consulting
services; (iii) Wide Range of Services that meets the increasing demands of
government clients for integrated vendor offerings; (iv) Proprietary Case
Management Software Program, known as MAXSTAR, that reduces project
implementation time and cost; and (v) Experienced Team of Professionals who
thoroughly understand the marketing, assessment and delivery of services to
government health and human services agencies.

The Company's goal is to become the nation's leading provider of program
management and consulting services to government health and human services
agencies. To achieve this goal, the Company intends to: (i) capitalize on trends
toward outsourcing functions of government health and human services programs;
(ii) aggressively pursue new business opportunities; (iii) recruit experienced
professionals possessing the skills, innovation and relationships necessary to
provide high quality program management and consulting services; and (iv) pursue
strategic acquisitions to provide fast, cost-effective increases in service
capacity to maintain the Company's position as a market leader. There can be no
assurance that the Company will be successful in implementing any or all of its
strategies or in achieving its goal.

MAXIMUS was incorporated in Virginia in September 1975. The Company's
principal executive offices are located at 1356 Beverly Road, McLean, Virginia
22101. The Company's World Wide Web address is http://www.maxinc.com. The
Company's Web site is not part of this Prospectus. The Company's telephone
number is (703) 734-4200.

RISK FACTORS

Investment in the shares of Common Stock offered hereby involves certain
risks that should be considered by prospective purchasers of the Common Stock.
The principal risk factors associated with an investment in the shares of the
Company's Common Stock include: (i) the Company's reliance on government
clients; (ii) risks associated with government contracts; (iii) potential
financial impacts of project costs and expenses and contract management
challenges; and (iv) potential legislative change and political developments.
These and other risk factors to be considered by prospective investors are
described in greater detail elsewhere in this Prospectus. See "Risk Factors"
beginning on page 6.

THE OFFERING

<TABLE>
<S> <C>
Common Stock offered by the Company.............. 2,700,000 shares
Common Stock offered by the Selling
Shareholder S . v ittt ittt e e e et e e ettt e e 1,700,000 shares
Common Stock to be outstanding after the
Offering. . vt e e e e 13,809,945 shares (1)
Use Of pProceedsS . v vi it ittt ittt tieennennnennns Payment of undistributed S corporation

earnings, general corporate purposes and
working capital, including: (i) expanding
existing operations such as opening new
offices, acquiring related businesses and
expanding the Company's international



operations; and (ii) investing in systems
infrastructure and new technologies. See
"Use of Proceeds."

New York Stock Exchange Symbol................... MMS
</TABLE>
(1) Excludes: (i) 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock reserved for issuance upon

exercise of options granted under the Company's 1997 Equity Incentive Plan,
pursuant to which options to purchase 403,975 shares were outstanding as of
the date of this Prospectus; (ii) 100,000 shares of Common Stock reserved
for issuance upon exercise of options granted under the Company's 1997
Director Stock Option Plan, none of which had been granted as of the date of
this Prospectus; and (iii) 500,000 shares of Common Stock issuable under the
Company's 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, none of which had been issued
as of the date of this Prospectus. See "Management -- 1997 Director Stock
Option Plan" and " -- Stock Plans."

SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
SIX MONTHS ENDED
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, MARCH 31,
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1996 1997
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Revenues:
Government Operations Group(l)..... $23,749 $18,071 $11,779 $16,951 $ 20,681 $ 9,049 $23,580
Consulting GroUP. e e v e e eeenenennn 9,400 12,522 15,138 20,698 25,902 12,485 13,589
SSA Contract(2) «.vveveiininnnnn.. -- -- 2,943 14,314 56,530 18,052 31,593
Total FevenUeS.....vevewewenenennn 33,149 30,593 29,860 51,963 103,113 39,586 68,762
GroSs ProOfit. e e enneenennnn. 14,554 15,205 8,144 15,892 24,684 10,597 15,905
Income from operations............... 4,897 5,027 1,165 6,814 11,580 4,711 7,744
Net 1NCOME (3) «uvve e et e eee e 5,121 4,993 1,250 6,859 11,619 4,716 7,742
Pro forma net InCOmMe (4) & v i ittt i i ittt et ettt eeeeeeeneeeeeeeeeeenneeeeeeeens 7,106 4,735
Pro forma net income per SNhare (4) .. it ittt ittt et et e e e e e S 0.58 S 0.39
Shares used in computing pro forma net income per share(5).........cccvev.n 12,246 12,167
</TABLE>
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
AS OF MARCH 31, 1997
ACTUAL PRO FORMA (6) AS ADJUSTED (7)
(IN THOUSANDS)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments............ S 6,893 S 6,893 $ 29,284
Working Capital. ... i ittt ittt ettt eeaeeseeenaeeeeeenaessns 29,804 8,335 42,619
B o= = T o i = 47,119 47,119 69,510
Redeemable coOmmMON SEOCK. « i ittt ittt ittt ettt et teeeeeeeeeannnan 21,076 -— —-=
Total shareholders' eqUiLY. ...ttt ittt ittt ittt ieaeenenns 11,915 6,938 41,222
</TABLE>

(1) In fiscal years 1992 and 1993, the Company's Government Operations Group had
revenues of $11.4 million and $10.4 million, respectively, related to a
significant contract that expired in July 1993. No further revenues were
received under this contract after its expiration.

(2) Represents revenues under a significant contract with the federal Social
Security Administration, which terminated pursuant to legislative action and
under which no revenues will be earned after March 31, 1997. See "Risk
Factors -- Legislative Change," "-- Variability of Quarterly Operating
Results" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.”

(3) For all periods shown, the Company elected to be treated as an S corporation
and, as a result, the income of the Company has been taxed for federal and
most state purposes directly to the Company's shareholders rather than to
the Company.



(4) Pro forma net income and pro forma net income per share reflect federal and
state income taxes (assuming a 40% combined effective tax rate) as if the
Company had been taxed as a C corporation for the periods presented. Pro
forma net income does not reflect two significant charges that the Company
will record in the quarter in which the offering is consummated: (i) a
charge for income tax expense representing the cumulative deferred tax
liability (estimated to be $5.6 million as of March 31, 1997) resulting from
the termination of the Company's S corporation status; and (ii) a
compensation charge, estimated at $4.9 million, related to the grant to
employees on January 31, 1997 of options for an aggregate of 403,975 shares
of Common Stock. The estimated compensation expense represents the
difference between the assumed initial public offering price of $14.00 per
share and the option exercise price of $1.46 per share ($150,000 of which
was recognized in the quarter ended March 31, 1997). The option exercise
price is based on the book value of the Common Stock at September 30, 1996,
and was established pursuant to pre-existing compensation arrangements with
certain of the Company's key employees. See "Management -- Executive
Compensation," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations" and Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements.

(5) Assumes 12,246,000 and 12,167,000 shares were issued and outstanding during
the year ended September 30, 1996 and the six months ended March 31, 1997,
respectively. Such amounts consist of 11,418,000 and 11,339,000 weighted
average shares outstanding for the respective periods, the shares issuable
upon the exercise of options granted in January 1997, and the shares
necessary to replace equity to be distributed as a result of the S
Corporation Dividend. See "S Corporation Dividend," "Management -- Executive
Compensation" and Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements.

(6) Reflects the S Corporation Dividend to be paid to the shareholders, a
reclassification of redeemable common stock to reflect elimination of the
Company's obligation to purchase its Common Stock from shareholders and the
net deferred tax liability that would have been recorded by the Company if
its S corporation status was terminated at that date. See "S Corporation
Dividend," "Capitalization" and Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements.

(7) Adjusted to give effect to the sale by the Company of 2,700,000 shares of
Common Stock offered by the Company (at an assumed initial public offering
price of $14.00 per share and after deducting the underwriting discounts and
commissions and estimated offering expenses) and the application of the net
proceeds therefrom to fund the estimated $5.0 million portion of the S
Corporation Dividend that will not be funded by available cash. See "Use of
Proceeds" and "Capitalization."

RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information contained in this Prospectus,
investors should consider carefully the following factors in connection with an
investment in the shares of Common Stock offered hereby.

RELIANCE ON GOVERNMENT CLIENTS

Substantially all of the Company's clients are federal, state or local
government authorities. Effective marketing of the Company's services to
government clients requires the ability to respond to government requests for
proposals ("RFPs"). To succeed in the RFP process, the Company must estimate its
cost structure for servicing the proposed contract, the time required to
establish operations and the likely terms of the proposals submitted by
competitors. The Company must assemble and submit a large volume of information
on a rigid timetable set forth in the RFP. The Company's ability to successfully
respond to the RFP process in the future will have an important impact on the
Company's business, financial condition and results of operations. No assurance
can be given that the Company will be awarded contracts through the RFP process.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH GOVERNMENT CONTRACTING

Contracts awarded to the Company typically contain provisions that permit
the government client to terminate the contract on short notice, with or without
cause. The expiration of large contracts presents additional management
challenges. Many contracts contain base periods of one or more years as well as
one or more option periods that may cover more than half of the potential
contract duration. Government agencies generally have the right not to exercise



option periods and the failure to exercise such option periods could impact the
profitability of certain of the Company's contracts. While the Company has
experienced a limited number of early terminations since inception, the
unexpected termination of one or more of the Company's more significant
contracts could result in severe revenue shortfalls which, without corresponding
reductions in expenses, could adversely affect the business, financial condition
and results of operations of the Company. There can be no assurance that such
government authorities will not terminate any or all of the Company's contracts
to administer and manage health and human services programs.

In order to establish and maintain relationships with members of government
agencies, the Company occasionally engages marketing consultants, including
lobbyists. In the event of a significant political change, such consultants may
lose their ability to effectively assist the Company. In addition, the
implementation of term limits on certain elected officials will require the
Company to confront political change on a regular basis. If the Company fails to
manage its relationships effectively with political consultants, its business,
financial condition and results of operations could materially and adversely be
affected. No assurance can be given that the Company will be successful in
managing such relationships.

To avoid experiencing higher than anticipated demands for federal funds,
federal government officials on occasion advise state and local authorities not
to engage private consultants to advise on maximizing federal revenues. There
can be no assurance that state and local officials will not be influenced by
federal government officials and, therefore, not engage the Company for such
services. To the extent that state and local officials determine not to seek the
Company's services, the business, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company could be adversely affected.

Government contracts generally are subject to audits and investigations by
government agencies, including audits by the Defense Contract Audit Agency
("DCAA") . These audits and investigations involve a review of the government
contractor's performance of its contracts as well as its pricing practices, cost
structure and compliance with applicable laws, regulations and standards. A
substantial portion of payments to the Company from U.S. Government agencies is
subject to adjustment upon audit by the DCAA. Audits through 1993 have been
completed with no material adjustments and the Company believes that adjustments
resulting from audits of subsequent years will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company's business, financial condition and results of operations.
If any costs are improperly allocated to a contract, such costs are not
reimbursable and, if already reimbursed, will be required to be refunded to the
government. Furthermore, if improper or illegal activities are discovered in the
course of any audits or investigations, the contractor may

be subject to various civil and criminal penalties and administrative sanctions,
including termination of contracts, forfeitures of profits, suspension of
payments, fines and suspension or disqualification from doing business with the
government. If the Company becomes subject to penalties or sanctions, such
penalties or sanctions could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of operations.

RISKS INVOLVED IN MANAGING GOVERNMENT PROJECTS

Upon the receipt of a contract for the management of a health and human
services program, the Company's Government Operations Group may incur
significant start-up expenses prior to the receipt of any payments under such
contract. Such expenses include the costs of leasing office space, purchasing
necessary office equipment and hiring sufficient personnel. As a result, for
large contracts, the Company may be required to make significant investments
prior to the receipt of related contract payments.

Approximately 23% (51% after excluding a significant contract with the
Social Security Administration) of the Company's total revenues for the year
ended September 30, 1996 resulted from fixed price contracts pursuant to which
the Company received its fee for meeting specified objectives or upon the
achievement of specified units of work, such as the placement of welfare
recipients into jobs, the collection of child support payments or the completion
of managed care enrollment transfers. The Company's ability to earn a profit on
these contracts is dependent upon accurate estimates of the costs involved as
well as the probability of meeting the specified objectives or realizing the
expected units of work within a certain period of time. In addition, the Company
recognizes revenues on fixed price contracts based on costs incurred. The
Company periodically reviews such contracts and adjusts revenues to reflect
current expectations. Such adjustments will affect the timing and amount of
revenue recognized and could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of operations. The Company's failure
to accurately estimate the factors on which contract pricing is based could
result in the Company reporting a decrease in revenues or incurring losses on
such contracts and could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of operations.



The Company's inability or failure to satisfy its contractual obligations
in a manner consistent with the terms of any contract could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial condition because the Company is often
required to indemnify clients for its failure to meet performance standards.
Certain of the Company's contracts have liquidated damages provisions and
financial penalties related to performance failures. In addition, in order for
the Company's Government Operations Group to bid for certain contracts, the
Company has been and will continue to be required to secure its indemnification
obligations by obtaining a performance bond from an insurer, posting a cash
performance bond or obtaining a letter of credit from a suitable financial
institution. In the event that a government entity makes a claim against such
performance bond or letter of credit, the premiums demanded by the insurers for
such bonds could increase, thereby limiting the Company's ability to bid for
contracts in the future. In addition, the Company's failure to meet a client's
expectations in the performance of its contractual obligations could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's reputation, thereby adversely affecting
its business, financial condition and results of operations.

When contracts between the Company's Government Operations Group and a
state or local government expire or otherwise terminate, unless the Company can
successfully enter into a new contract using the services of employees formerly
engaged in servicing the terminated contract or otherwise re-assign such
employees, the Company will need to terminate the employment of such employees.
The termination of large Government Operations Group contracts and the
subsequent re-assignment or termination of employees places significant demands
on the Company's management and its administrative resources. If the Company is
unable to manage these challenges, the Company's business could materially and
adversely be affected.

LEGISLATIVE CHANGE AND POLITICAL DEVELOPMENTS

The market for the Company's services is largely dependent on federal and
state legislative programs, any of which may be modified or terminated by acts
of the legislative or executive branches of federal and state government. There
can be no assurance that such legislative change will not occur or that the
Company will be able to anticipate and respond in a timely manner to any such
legislative change. The Company's failure to
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manage effectively its business in light of anticipated or unanticipated
legislative change could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, operating results and financial condition.

The Welfare Reform Act is expected to be a catalyst for sweeping changes in
the administration and management of the welfare system in the United States. As
part of its growth strategy, the Company plans to aggressively pursue the
opportunities created by this legislation by seeking new contracts to administer
and manage welfare programs of state and local government agencies. However,
opponents of welfare reform continue to criticize the advances made by the
current administration and continued progress in the welfare reform area is
uncertain. The repeal of the Welfare Reform Act, in whole or in part, could have
a material adverse effect on the future business, financial condition and
results of operations of the Company. There can be no assurance that additional
reforms will be proposed or enacted, or that previously enacted reforms will not
be challenged, repealed or otherwise invalidated.

The adverse impact that legislative changes can have on the Company was
recently evidenced by the termination of a significant contract with the federal
Social Security Administration. This contract related to the referral and
treatment monitoring of social security or supplemental income beneficiaries
with drug or alcohol-related disabilities (the "SSA Contract"). In its fiscal
year ended September 30, 1996, the Company earned revenues of $56.5 million from
the SSA Contract, representing approximately 55% of the Company's total revenues
for such fiscal year. In October 1996, the President signed into law an
amendment to the Social Security Act of 1935, effective January 1, 1997, that
eliminated social security and supplemental income benefits based solely on drug
and alcohol disabilities. As a result of this amendment, the SSA Contract was
terminated and no revenues will be earned thereunder after March 31, 1997.

In addition, under current law the privatization of certain functions of
government programs, such as determining eligibility for Food Stamps and
Medicaid, requires the consent and/or waiver of the executive branch acting
through the applicable administering government agency. In May 1997, in response
to a request by the State of Texas for a waiver to allow private corporations to
decide the eligibility of applicants for Food Stamps and Medicaid benefits, the
Department of Health and Human Services determined not to grant a waiver to the



existing requirement in these programs that only public employees may make such
decisions. The Company did not bid for any contracts for these Texas projects,
and the determination will not affect any of the Company's existing contracts.
However, there can be no assurance that the Department of Health and Human
Services or other health and human services agencies will not in the future
narrow or eliminate certain future markets for health and human services
contracts in which the Company intends to compete.

OPPOSITION FROM GOVERNMENT UNIONS

The Company's success depends in part on its ability to obtain contracts to
profitably administer and manage health and human services programs that
traditionally have been administered and managed by government employees. Many
of these government employees are members of labor unions which have
considerable financial resources and established lobbying networks that are
effective in applying political pressure to legislators and other government
officials who seek to contract with private companies to administer and manage
government programs. Successful efforts to oppose private management of
government programs by these unions may slow welfare reform and ultimately
result in fewer opportunities for the Company to provide services to government
agencies, thereby adversely affecting the business, financial condition and
results of operations of the Company. A recent example of the influence of
government unions is the role played by union lobbyists in promoting a May 1997
determination by the Department of Health and Human Services, in response to a
waiver request by the State of Texas, that only public employees may make
decisions on eligibility of applicants for Food Stamps and Medicaid benefits.
See "--Legislative Change and Political Developments." There can be no assurance
that these unions will not succeed in whole or in part in their efforts to
oppose the outsourcing of government programs.

VARIABILITY OF QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

Variations in the Company's revenues and operating results occur from
quarter to quarter as a result of a number of factors, including the progress of
contracts, levels of revenues earned on contracts (including any

adjustments in expectations on revenue recognition on fixed price contracts),
the commencement, completion or termination of contracts during any particular
quarter, the schedules of government agencies for awarding contracts, the term
of each contract that the Company has been awarded and general economic
conditions. Because a significant portion of the Company's expenses are
relatively fixed, successful contract performance and variation in the volume of
activity as well as in the number of contracts commenced or completed during any
quarter may cause significant variations in operating results from quarter to
quarter. Furthermore, the Company has on occasion experienced a pattern in its
results of operations in which it incurs greater operating expenses during the
start-up and early stages of significant contracts. In addition, the Company's
SSA Contract contributed $31.6 million, $56.5 million, $14.3 million and $2.9
million to the Company's revenues in the six months ended March 31, 1997 and
fiscal years 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. The termination of the SSA
Contract will significantly reduce the Company's revenue base as compared to
previous quarters. No assurance can be given that the Company will be able to
generate additional revenues in future periods in amounts sufficient to replace
the revenues received under the SSA Contract and as a result, the Company may
experience materially lower revenues as compared to prior periods. See
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations -- Quarterly Results."

During the quarter in which this offering is completed, the Company will
recognize two significant charges against income. The completion of this
offering will result in the termination of the Company's S corporation status.
As a result, the Company will record a one-time income statement charge to
operations estimated at $5.6 million based on the deferred tax liabilities as of
March 31, 1997. In connection with this offering, on January 31, 1997, certain
key employees of the Company surrendered rights to purchase shares of Common
Stock of the Company in exchange for options to purchase shares of Common Stock
at an exercise price of $1.46 per share. The Company will recognize a non-cash
compensation charge against income equal to the difference between the initial
public offering price and the option exercise price for all outstanding options.
Compensation expense totalling $150,000 has been recognized through March 31,
1997 and, upon completion of this offering at an assumed initial public offering
price of $14.00 per share, the Company will incur an additional charge against
income of $4.9 million. The option exercise price is based on the book value of



the Common Stock at September 30, 1996 and was established pursuant to
pre-existing compensation arrangements with these employees. As a result of
these charges, the Company will report a significant net loss in the period in
which this offering is completed, which is anticipated to be the quarter ended
June 30, 1997. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations" and "Management -- Executive Compensation."

RELIANCE ON KEY EXECUTIVES

The success of the Company is highly dependent upon the efforts, abilities,
business generation and project execution capabilities of certain of its
executive officers and senior managers. While the Company has executive
employment agreements with each of David V. Mastran, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, Raymond B. Ruddy, Chairman of the Board of
Directors and President of the Consulting Group, Russell A. Beliveau, President
of the Government Operations Group, Ilene R. Baylinson, President of the
Disability Services Division, Susan D. Pepin, President of the Systems Planning
and Integration Division and Lynn P. Davenport, President of the Human Services
Division, such agreements are terminable under certain conditions. Other than
these six agreements with executive officers, the Company does not have
employment agreements with any other senior employees. The loss of the services
of any of these key executives could have a material adverse effect upon the
Company's business, financial condition and results of operations, including its
ability to secure and complete engagements. The Company maintains key-man life
insurance policies on David V. Mastran and Raymond B. Ruddy in the amounts of
$10,700,000 and $7,250,000, respectively, with proceeds payable to the Company.
Because the levels of insurance were established to fund stock redemption
obligations of the Company that will terminate upon the closing of this
offering, the Company anticipates that it will substantially reduce these
policies subsequent to this offering. See "Management."

ATTRACTION AND RETENTION OF EMPLOYEES

The Company's business involves the delivery of professional services and
is labor-intensive. When the Company's Government Operations Group is awarded a
contract by a government agency, the Company is
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often under a tight timetable to hire project leaders and case management
personnel to meet the needs of the new project. In addition, the resulting large
increases in the number of the Company's employees create demand for increased
administrative personnel at the Company's headquarters. The Company's success in
both the Government Operations Group and the Consulting Group depends in large
part upon its ability to attract, develop, motivate and retain experienced and
innovative executive officers, senior managers who have successfully managed or
designed health and human services programs in the public sector and information
technology professionals who have designed or implemented complex information
technology projects. Such innovative, experienced and technically proficient
individuals are in great demand and are likely to remain a limited resource for
the foreseeable future. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able
to continue to attract and retain desirable executive officers and senior
managers in the future. The inability to hire sufficient personnel on a timely
basis or the loss of a significant number of executive officers and senior
managers could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition and results of operations, including its ability to obtain
and successfully complete service contracts. See "Business -- Human Resources."

CHALLENGES RESULTING FROM GROWTH

The Company's continued growth has placed significant demands on the
Company's management as well as its administrative, operational and financial
resources. The Company's ability to manage its growth will require the Company
to continue to implement new and to improve existing operational, financial and
management information systems and to continue to expand, motivate and manage
its workforce. In addition, the Company's growth will depend in large part on
its ability to manage large-scale health and human services programs while
continuing to ensure quality service and reasonable profits. If the Company is
unable to manage effectively any of these factors, the quality of the Company's
services, its financial condition and results of operations could be materially
and adversely affected. No assurance can be given that the Company will continue
to experience growth or that the Company will be successful in managing its
growth, if any.

COMPETITORS; EFFECTS OF COMPETITION

The market for certain program management and consulting services to state
and local health and human services agencies is becoming more competitive and is
subject to rapid change while the market for certain other services is not yet
competitive. The Company's Government Operations Group competes for program
management contracts with local non-profit organizations such as the United Way
and Goodwill Industries, government services divisions of large organizations



such as Andersen Consulting, Lockheed Martin Corp. and Electronic Data Systems,
Inc., managed care enrollment companies such as Foundation Health Corporation
and specialized service providers such as America Works, Inc., Policy Studies
Incorporated and GC Services, Inc. The Company's Consulting Group competes with
the consulting divisions of the "Big 6" accounting firms as well as Electronic
Data Systems, Inc. Many of these companies are national and international in
scope and have greater financial, technical, marketing and personnel resources
than the Company. The significant financial resources of certain competitors
could lead to severe price cutting in an effort to secure market share, which
could adversely affect the Company's business, financial condition and results
of operations. There can be no assurance that the Company will compete
successfully against its existing competitors or against new competitors, if
any. See "Business -- Competition."

In addition to competition from existing competitors, the Company may
experience future competition from its former employees. Although the Company
has entered into non-competition agreements with certain senior level employees,
there can be no assurance that such contracts will be enforceable or that
departing employees not subject to non-competition agreements will not seek to
exploit their personal relationships with government officials by competing
against the Company. Any such competition by former employees could have a
material adverse effect on the Company.

ADVERSE PUBLICITY

The Company has received and expects to continue to receive media attention
as a result of its contracts with state and local government authorities. In
particular, the management of health and human services programs by the
Company's Government Operations Group and the establishment of revenue
maximization programs by the Company's Consulting Group have been the subject of
highly controversial media coverage. Negative coverage of the types of program
management services provided by the Company could influence
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government officials and slow the pace of welfare reform, thereby reducing the
Company's growth prospects. In addition to media attention arising out of the
types of services provided by the Company, the Company is also vulnerable to
media attention as a result of the activities of political consultants engaged
by the Company, even when such activities are unrelated to the Company. Such an
event occurred in connection with a marketing representative hired by the
Company to assist in responding to an RFP promulgated by the State of West
Virginia. After learning that the marketing representative was also a state
employee, the Company voluntarily withdrew from the bidding. Certain media
coverage relating to this incident was inaccurate and incorrectly suggested
wrongdoing by the Company. The Company has become aware that certain of its
competitors have sought to exploit such suggestions in connection with other
competitive-bidding situations. There can be no assurance that the Company will
not receive adverse media attention as the result of activities of individuals
not under the Company's control. In addition, there can be no assurance that
media attention focused on the Company will be accurate or that the Company will
be able to anticipate and respond in a timely manner to all media contacts.
Inaccurate or misleading media coverage or the Company's failures to manage such
coverage could have a material adverse effect on the Company's reputation,
thereby adversely affecting its business, financial condition and results of
operations.

RISKS RELATED TO POSSIBLE ACQUISITIONS

A part of the Company's growth strategy is to expand its operations through
the acquisition of additional businesses. The Company has no prior history of
making acquisitions and there can be no assurance that the Company will be able
to identify, acquire or profitably manage additional businesses or successfully
integrate any acquired businesses into the Company without incurring substantial
expenses, delays or other operational or financial problems. Furthermore,
acquisitions may involve a number of special risks, including diversion of
management's attention, failure to retain key personnel, unanticipated events or
circumstances, legal liabilities and amortization of acquired intangible assets,
some or all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of operations. Client dissatisfaction
or performance problems at a single acquired firm could have a material adverse
effect on the reputation of the Company as a whole. In addition, there can be no
assurance that acquired businesses, if any, will achieve anticipated revenues
and earnings. The failure of the Company to manage its acquisition strategy
successfully could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition and results of operations. See "Business -- Growth
Strategy."

UNCERTAINTIES RELATED TO INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS
While the Company's current international operations are paid in U.S.

dollars by the World Bank and the U.S. Agency for International Development, as
the Company expands its operations into developing countries it may become



subject to a number of risks. International revenues are subject to a number of
risks including currency exchange rate fluctuations, collection of receivables
and enforcement of contract terms through a foreign country's legal system.
Foreign countries could impose additional withholding taxes or otherwise tax the
Company's foreign income or impose tariffs. There can be no assurance that any
of these factors will not have a material adverse effect on the business,
financial condition and results of operations of the Company. See

"Business -- Services -- Consulting Group."
LITIGATION
On March 12, 1997, Network Six, Inc. ("Network Six") served MAXIMUS with a

First Amended Third-Party Complaint filed in the State of Hawaii Circuit Court
of the First Circuit. In this complaint, Network Six named the Company and other
parties as third party defendants in an action by the State of Hawaii against
Network Six. In 1991, the Company's Consulting Group was engaged by the State of
Hawaii to provide assistance in planning for and monitoring the development and
implementation by Hawaii of a statewide automated child support system. In 1993,
Hawaii contracted with Network Six to provide systems development and
implementation services for this project. In 1996, the state terminated the
Network Six contract for cause and filed an action against Network Six. Network
Six counterclaimed against Hawaii that the state breached its obligations under
the contract with Network Six. In the Third Party Complaint, Network Six alleges
that the Company is liable to Network Six on grounds that: (i) Network Six was
an intended third party beneficiary under the contract between the Company and
Hawaii; (ii) the Company
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engaged in bad faith conduct and tortiously interfered with the contract and
relationship between Network Six and Hawaii; (iii) the Company negligently
breached duties to Network Six; and (iv) the Company aided and abetted Hawaii in
Hawaii's breach of contract. Network Six's complaint seeks damages, including
punitive damages, from the third party defendants in an amount to be proven at
trial. The Company believes that Network Six was not an intended third party
beneficiary under its contract with Hawaii and that Network Six's claims are
without factual or legal merit. The Company does not believe this action will
have a material adverse effect on its business and intends to vigorously defend
this action. However, given the early stage of this litigation, no assurance may
be given that the Company will be successful in its defense. A decision by the
court in Network Six's favor or any other conclusion of this litigation in a
manner adverse to the Company could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

SIGNIFICANT UNALLOCATED NET PROCEEDS

A substantial portion of the anticipated net proceeds of this offering has
not been designated for specific uses. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the
Company will have broad discretion with respect to the use of the net proceeds
of this offering. See "Use of Proceeds."

CONTROL BY PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

After completion of this offering, the Company's executive officers will
own beneficially 68.4% of the Company's outstanding shares of Common Stock.
Certain executive officers who will hold approximately 66.9% of the outstanding
shares of Common Stock after giving effect to this offering have agreed with the
Company not to dispose of such shares for a period of four years following the
closing of this offering subject to certain exceptions. In addition, each of Dr.
Mastran and Mr. Ruddy, who will hold together approximately 62.4% of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company after giving effect to this
offering, has agreed to vote his shares in favor of the election of the other to
the Board of Directors, as long as each of such shareholders owns or controls
20% of the outstanding Common Stock. Mr. Ruddy has also agreed to vote his
shares of Common Stock in a manner consistent with instructions received from
Dr. Mastran during the four year period commencing on the closing of this
offering. As a result, these officers will continue to be able to control the
outcome of matters requiring a shareholder vote, including the election of the
members of the Board of Directors, thereby controlling the affairs and
management of the Company. Such control could adversely affect the market price
of the Common Stock or delay or prevent a change in control of the Company. See
"Principal and Selling Shareholders" and "Management -- Agreements with
Executives."

BENEFITS OF OFFERING TO SELLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Selling Shareholders will receive substantial proceeds and certain
other benefits from their participation in this offering. This offering will
establish a public market for the Common Stock and provide significantly



increased liquidity to the Selling Shareholders for the shares of Common Stock
they will own after this offering. At an assumed initial public offering price
of $14.00 per share, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions, the
aggregate proceeds (before deduction of estimated income taxes) as a result of
the offering by the Selling Shareholders will be approximately $22.1 million
(excluding the S Corporation Dividend). Upon completion of this offering, the
Selling Shareholders will own an aggregate of 68.4% of the outstanding Common
Stock. See "Use of Proceeds," "Dilution" and "Principal and Selling
Stockholders."

NO PRIOR PUBLIC MARKET; POSSIBLE VOLATILITY OF STOCK PRICE

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for the Common
Stock. Consequently, the initial public offering price per share of the Common
Stock will be determined by negotiations among management of the Company and the
representatives of the Underwriters (the "Representatives"). See "Underwriting"
for factors to be considered in determining the initial public offering price
per share. Although the Common Stock has been approved for listing on the New
York Stock Exchange, there can be no assurance that an active trading market
will develop or be sustained after this offering. The market price of the Common
Stock may fluctuate substantially due to a variety of factors, including
quarterly fluctuations in results of operations, the failure to be awarded a
significant contract on which it has bid, the termination by a government client
of a material contract, announcements of new services by competitors, political
and legislative developments adverse to the privatization of government
services, changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts, changes in
accounting principles, sales of Common Stock by existing holders, negative
publicity, loss of key
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personnel and other factors. In addition, the stock market is subject to extreme
price and volume fluctuations. This volatility has often had a significant
effect on the market prices of securities issued by many companies for reasons
unrelated to the operating performance of these companies. In the past,
following periods of volatility in the market price of a company's securities,
securities class action litigation often has been instituted against such a
company. Any such litigation initiated against the Company could result in
substantial costs and a diversion of management's attention and resources, which
could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial
condition and results of operations.

IMMEDIATE AND SUBSTANTIAL DILUTION

The initial public offering price per share of Common Stock is
substantially higher than the net tangible book value per share of the Common
Stock. Purchasers of shares of Common Stock in this offering will experience
immediate and substantial dilution of $11.02 in the pro forma net tangible book
value per share of Common Stock. To the extent outstanding options to purchase
the Company's Common Stock are exercised, there will be further dilution. See
"Dilution."

DIVIDEND POLICY; ABSENCE OF DIVIDENDS

Other than the S Corporation Dividend (see "S Corporation Dividend") and
past dividends to cover S corporation taxes payable by shareholders, the Company
has rarely paid cash dividends on its capital stock and does not anticipate
paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The Company currently intends
to retain all earnings for the development of its business. See "Dividend
Policy."

CERTAIN ANTI-TAKEOVER EFFECTS

The Company's Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (the "Restated
Articles") and Amended and Restated By-Laws (the "Restated By-Laws"), both to be
effected immediately upon the close of this offering, and Virginia law include
provisions that may be deemed to have antitakeover effects and may delay, defer
or prevent a takeover attempt that shareholders might consider to be in their
best interests. Directors of the Company are divided into three classes and are
elected to serve staggered three-year terms, the existence of which could render
more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of the Company by
means of a proxy contest or otherwise. See "Management -- Board of Directors."
The ability of the shareholders of the Company to take any action, or to consent
to the taking of any action, in each case in writing without a meeting, is
specifically denied. See "Description of Capital Stock -- Anti-Takeover
Provisions of the Articles of Incorporation." In addition, Virginia law contains
provisions that impose certain limitations and special voting requirements on
affiliated transactions and deny voting rights, unless granted by shareholder
vote, with respect to shares acquired in control share acquisitions. See
"Description of Capital Stock -- Anti-Takeover Provisions of Virginia Law."



SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Immediately after completion of this offering, the Company will have
13,809,945 shares of Common Stock outstanding, of which the 4,400,000 shares
sold pursuant to this offering will be freely tradable without restriction or
further registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
"Securities Act"), except those shares acquired by affiliates of the Company.
Holders of the remaining shares will be eligible to sell such shares pursuant to
Rule 144 under the Securities Act ("Rule 144") at prescribed times and subject
to the manner of sale, volume, notice and information restrictions of Rule 144.
In addition, 403,975 shares of Common Stock are issuable upon the exercise of
outstanding stock options (none of which are currently exercisable and all of
which will become exercisable on the closing of this offering), which shares may
be registered by the Company under the Securities Act and become freely tradable
without restriction. The Company and its current shareholders (holding in the
aggregate 9,813,920 shares of Common Stock upon the closing of this offering,
including the 403,975 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of
outstanding stock options that become exercisable upon the closing of this
offering), have agreed not to offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose
of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Common Stock, or any securities
convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of Common Stock,
until 180 days after the date of this Prospectus, without the prior consent of
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation. Certain executive officers
of the Company, holding an aggregate of 9,414,545 shares of Common Stock
(including 266,750 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of
outstanding stock options that become
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exercisable upon the closing of this offering), will have entered into Executive
Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreements
pursuant to which each such executive will have agreed with the Company subject
to certain exceptions not to sell or otherwise dispose of, directly or
indirectly, any shares of Common Stock for a period of four years from the
closing of this offering. See "Management -- Agreements with Executives."
Because these agreements will be between the Company and each executive officer
and may be waived by the Company at any time, investors should not rely on these
agreements. Sales of substantial amounts of such shares in the public market or
the availability of such shares for future sale could adversely affect the
market price of the shares of Common Stock and the Company's ability to raise
additional capital at a price favorable to the Company. See "Shares Eligible for
Future Sale" and "Underwriting."
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to the Company from the sale of the 2,700,000 shares of
Common Stock offered by the Company, after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and estimated offering expenses, are estimated to be $34,284,000,
assuming an initial public offering price of $14.00 per share. The Company
expects to use a portion of the net proceeds from this offering for the partial
payment of undistributed S corporation earnings not funded by available cash,
estimated at $5.0 million and the balance of the net proceeds for general
corporate purposes, including working capital. While the Company has no specific
plans for the balance of the net proceeds, it anticipates that these funds will
be used for: (i) expanding existing operations, which may include opening new
offices, acquiring related businesses and expanding the Company's international
operations; and (ii) investing in systems infrastructure and new technologies.
The Company has no present commitments, agreements or understandings and is not
presently conducting negotiations with respect to any acquisitions. The
Company's management will have broad discretion to allocate proceeds from this
offering to uses that it believes are appropriate. Pending such uses, the net
proceeds of this offering will be invested in short-term, investment grade,
interest-bearing securities. The principal purposes of this offering are to
obtain additional working capital, create a public market for the Common Stock,
provide liquidity to the Company's shareholders and facilitate future access by

the Company to public equity markets. See "Risk Factors -- Significant
Unallocated Net Proceeds," "S Corporation Dividend" and "Business -- Growth
Strategy."

The Company will not receive any proceeds from the sale of Common Stock by
the Selling Shareholders. See "Principal and Selling Shareholders."

S CORPORATION DIVIDEND

Since 1987, the Company has been a corporation subject to taxation under
subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. As a result,
substantially all of the Company's net income has been attributed, for income
tax purposes, directly to the Company's shareholders rather than to the Company.
The Company's S corporation status will terminate in connection with this



offering and the Company will make a final distribution to its existing
shareholders of undistributed S Corporation earnings, as explained below.

The Company has declared an S corporation dividend to its existing
shareholders in an aggregate amount representing all undistributed earnings of
the Company taxed or taxable to its shareholders through the closing of this
offering payable upon such closing (the "S Corporation Dividend"). The S
Corporation Dividend is estimated to be approximately $20.5 million, of which it
is estimated that $15.5 million will be funded from available cash and $5.0
million will be funded with a portion of the proceeds from this offering.
Purchasers of Common Stock in this offering will not receive any portion of the
S Corporation Dividend.

Following termination of its S corporation status, the Company will be
subject to income taxation as a C corporation. The termination of the Company's
S corporation status will result in the Company recording a liability for
deferred income taxes on its balance sheet and a one-time income statement
charge of the same amount. Based on differences between income for tax and
financial reporting through March 31, 1997, the one-time income statement charge
is estimated to be $5.6 million. The deferred tax liability will be recorded in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109. See
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations”" and Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Following the declaration and payment of the S Corporation Dividend, the
Company anticipates that it will retain all of its earnings for development of
the Company's business and does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. Future cash dividends, if any, will be paid at the
discretion of the Company's Board of Directors and will depend, among other
things, upon the Company's future operations and earnings, capital requirements
and surplus, general financial condition, contractual restrictions and such
other factors as the Board of Directors may deem relevant.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth, as of March 31, 1997: (i) the actual total
capitalization of the Company; (ii) the pro forma total capitalization of the
Company after giving effect to the S Corporation Dividend (see "S Corporation
Dividend"), the recognition of a net deferred tax liability upon termination of
the Company's S corporation status estimated to be $5.6 million, and
reclassification of redeemable Common Stock to shareholders' equity as a result
of elimination of the Company's obligation to purchase its Common Stock from
shareholders; and (iii) the pro forma total capitalization as adjusted for the
sale of shares of Common Stock by the Company (at an assumed initial public
offering price of $14.00 per share) and the application of the estimated net
proceeds therefrom to fund the estimated $5.0 million portion of the S
Corporation Dividend that will not be funded by available cash. See "Use of
Proceeds." The following table should be read in conjunction with the Financial
Statements and related Notes thereto included elsewhere in this Prospectus.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
AS OF MARCH 31, 1997
ACTUAL PRO FORMA AS ADJUSTED
(IN THOUSANDS)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Cash and cash equivalents and short term investments..... $ 6,893 S 6,893 $29,284
Redeemable COmMMON StOCK. .t v it ittt ettt tit et teeeeeeeennnn $21,076 S - S -
Shareholders' equity:
Common stock, no par value; 30,000,000 shares
authorized; 11,109,945 shares issued and
outstanding, actual and pro forma; 13,809,945 shares
issued and outstanding as adjusted.................. -= 11,838 46,122
Retained earnings (deficit) .......iiiiiiiiinninnnn. 11,915 (4,900) (4,900)
Total shareholders' equity.......oiiiiiiiniinnan 11,915 6,938 41,222
Total capitalization. ... oot enenenenenenennns $32,991 S 6,938 $41,222

</TABLE>
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DILUTION

The pro forma net tangible book value of the Company as of March 31, 1997
was $6,938,000 or $0.62 per share. Pro forma net tangible book value per share
represents the total tangible assets of the Company, less total liabilities,
divided by the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock outstanding, after
giving effect to: (i) the S Corporation Dividend (see "S Corporation Dividend");
(ii) the recording of deferred income taxes upon termination of the Company's S
corporation status; and (iii) the reclassification of redeemable common stock to
shareholders' equity, as a result of elimination of the Company's obligation to
purchase its Common Stock from shareholders. After giving effect to the sale by
the Company of 2,700,000 shares of Common Stock offered hereby (at an assumed
initial public offering price of $14.00 per share) and the application of the
net proceeds therefrom, the pro forma net tangible book value of the Company as
of March 31, 1997 would have been $41,222,000 or $2.98 per share. This
represents an immediate increase in the pro forma net tangible book value of
$2.36 per share to existing shareholders and an immediate dilution of $11.02 per
share to purchasers of Common Stock in this offering. The following table
illustrates this per share dilution:

<TABLE>
<S> <C> <C>
Assumed initial public offering price. ... ...ttt inneeennn $14.00
Pro forma net tangible book value per share as of March 31, 1997... $0.62
Increase per share attributable to new investors................... 2.36
Pro forma net tangible book value per share after this offering...... 2.98

Dilution in pro forma net tangible book value per share to new
I8 0 ol o $11.02

</TABLE>

The following table sets forth, as of March 31, 1997, the differences
between existing shareholders and new investors in this offering with respect to
the number of shares of Common Stock purchased from the Company, the total
consideration paid and the average price paid per share (assuming an initial
public offering price of $14.00 per share):

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>
SHARES PURCHASED TOTAL CONSIDERATION

————————————————————————————————————————— AVERAGE PRICE

NUMBER PERCENT AMOUNT PERCENT PER SHARE

<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>

Existing shareholders(l) ................ 11,109,945 80.4% $ 1,425,420 3.6% S 0.13

New investors(l) . ... e e e ennennnnn 2,700,000 19.6 37,800,000 96.4 14.00

o o= 13,809,945 100.0% $39,225,420 100.0%
</TABLE>

(1) Sales by the Selling Shareholders in this offering will reduce the number of
shares held by existing shareholders of the Company to 9,409,945 or 68.1% of
the total number of shares outstanding after this offering (8,749,945 shares
or 63.4% if the Underwriters' over-allotment option is exercised in full)
and will increase the number of shares held by new investors to 4,400,000
shares or 31.9% of the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding
after this offering (5,060,000 shares or 36.6% if the Underwriters'
over-allotment option is exercised in full). See "Principal and Selling
Shareholders."
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data presented below as of September 30, 1995 and
1996, and for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 1996 are
derived from the Company's Financial Statements and related Notes thereto which
have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors. The selected
financial data presented below as of September 30, 1992, 1993 and 1994, and for



each of the years ended September 30, 1992 and 1993 are derived from the
Company's financial statements, not included in this Prospectus, which have been
audited by the Company's predecessor accountants.
of March 31, 1997 and for the six-month periods ended March 31, 1996 and 1997
are unaudited but, in the opinion of management,
necessary for a fair presentation of
the results of the interim periods. The results of operations for the period
ended March 31, 1997 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for any other interim period or for the full year. The selected
financial data should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the Financial
Statements and related Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus.

consisting only of normal recurring items,

The selected financial data as

include all adjustments,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
SIX MONTHS
ENDED
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, MARCH
31,
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1996
1997
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
<C>
STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Revenues:
Government Operations Group(l)...... $23,749 $18,071 $11,779 $16,951 S 20,681 S 9,049
$23,580
Consulting GroUP. « v e v e e e eeenennn. 9,400 12,522 15,138 20,698 25,902 12,485
13,589
SSA Contract(2) «vvee e e eeenenennnnns -= -- 2,943 14,314 56,530 18,052
31,593
Total revenuUesS.........oeeeneen.. 33,149 30,593 29,860 51,963 103,113 39,586
68,762
COSt Of FeVEeNUES. it vttt ittt eeeeeennnnn 18,595 15,388 21,716 36,071 78,429 28,989
52,857
Gross profit.....ee .. 14,554 15,205 8,144 15,892 24,684 10,597
15,905
Selling, general and administrative
EXPENSES e e v et ettt ittt 9,657 10,178 6,979 9,078 13,104 5,886
8,161
Income from operations................ 4,897 5,027 1,165 6,814 11,580 4,711
7,744
Interest and other income............. 376 80 80 169 264 99
148
Income before income taxes............ 5,273 5,107 1,245 6,983 11,844 4,810
7,892
Provision (benefit) for income
LR S e it et ettt et 152 114 (5) 124 225 94
150
Net 1ncome (3) vv v e e it i ie i et eeeeennnn s 5,121 S 4,993 S 1,250 S 6,859 $ 11,619 S 4,716
7,742
PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA: (4)
Historical income before INnComME taXeS .. u v i ittt ettt eeeeeeenneeeeeeeeeenneeeeeeeenns $ 11,844
7,892
Pro forma 1NCOmME LaX EXPEN S . it v vttt ittt et eeneesosensneessseennassseeenasseeennnesas 4,738
3,157
Pro fOrma NEL IMCOmME . & v ittt it ettt ittt et ettt ee et eaneneeeeeeeeeennseeeeeeeeenneeeeeeas $ 7,106
4,735
Pro forma net Income Per Share. .. ...ttt ittt ittt tteeeneeeeoeeenaesoeennnesas S 0.58
0.39
Shares used in computing pro forma net
INCOME PEr ShATE (5) vt ittt it ettt ettt e e ettt ettt e e 12,246



12,167

</TABLE>
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, AS OF MARCH
31,

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997
1997
ACTUAL PRO

FORMA (6)

(IN THOUSANDS)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term

investments.......oiiii ittt $ 1,849 $ 1,093 $ 326 $ 2,502 $ 3,333 $ 6,893 $

6,893

Working capital.....cuiiiiinininininnan. 6,158 6,818 6,855 13,184 22,700 29,804
8,335

Total @SSetS. ittt it ittt 17,091 12,745 15,049 22,670 35,493 47,119
47,119

Redeemable common stock.................. 6,759 6,971 6,889 10,578 16,757 21,076

Total shareholders' equity............... 1,907 2,484 2,921 5,706 9,197 11,915
6,938
</TABLE>

(1) In fiscal years 1992 and 1993, the Company's Government Operations Group had
revenues of $11.4 million and $10.4 million, respectively, related to a
significant contract that expired in July 1993. No further revenues were
received under this contract after its expiration.

(2) Represents revenues under a significant contract with the federal Social
Security Administration, which terminated pursuant to legislative action and
under which no revenues will be earned after March 31, 1997. See "Risk
Factors -- Legislative Change," "-- Variability of Quarterly Operating
Results" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.”

(3) For all periods shown, the Company elected to be treated as an S corporation
and, as a result, the income of the Company has been taxed for federal and
most state purposes directly to the Company's shareholders rather than to
the Company.
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(4) Pro forma net income and pro forma net income per share reflect federal and
state income taxes (assuming a 40% combined effective tax rate) as if the
Company had been taxed as a C corporation for the periods presented. Pro
forma net income does not reflect two significant charges that the Company
will record in the quarter in which the offering is consummated: (i) a
charge for income tax expense representing the cumulative deferred tax
liability (estimated to be $5.6 million as of March 31, 1997) resulting from
the termination of the Company's S corporation status; and (ii) a
compensation charge, estimated at $4.9 million, related to the grant to
employees on January 31, 1997 of options for an aggregate of 403,975 shares
of Common Stock. The estimated compensation expense represents the
difference between the assumed initial public offering price of $14.00 per
share and the option exercise price of $1.46 per share ($150,000 of which
was recognized in the quarter ended March 31, 1997). The option exercise
price is based on the book value of the Common Stock at September 30, 1996,
and was established pursuant to pre-existing compensation arrangements with
certain of the Company's key employees. See "Management -- Executive
Compensation," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations" and Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements.

(5) Assumes 12,246,000 and 12,167,000 shares were issued and outstanding during
the year ended September 30, 1996 and the six months ended March 31, 1997,
respectively. Such amounts consist of 11,418,000 and 11,339,000 weighted
average shares outstanding for the respective periods, the shares issuable
upon the exercise of options granted in January 1997, and the shares
necessary to replace equity to be distributed as a result of the S



Corporation Dividend. See "S Corporation Dividend," "Management -- Executive
Compensation" and Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements.

(6) Reflects the S Corporation Dividend to be paid to the shareholders, a
reclassification of redeemable common stock to reflect elimination of the
Company's obligation to purchase its Common Stock from shareholders and the
net deferred tax liability that would have been recorded by the Company if
its S corporation status was terminated at that date. See "S Corporation
Dividend," "Capitalization" and Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

MAXIMUS provides program management and consulting services to government
health and human services agencies in the United States. Founded in 1975, the
Company has been profitable every year since inception. The Company conducts its
operations through two groups, the Government Operations Group and the
Consulting Group. The Government Operations Group administers and manages
government health and human services programs, including welfare-to-work and job
readiness, child support enforcement, managed care enrollment and disability
services. The Consulting Group provides health and human services planning,
information technology consulting, strategic program evaluation, program
improvement, communications planning and revenue maximization services.

The Company's revenues are generated from contracts with various payment
arrangements, including: (i) costs incurred plus a fixed fee ("cost-plus"); (ii)
fixed price; (iii) performance-based criteria; and (iv) time and materials
reimbursement (utilized primarily by the Consulting Group). For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 1996, revenues from these contract types were approximately
62%, 23%, 11% and 4%, respectively, of total revenues. Traditionally, federal
government contracts have been cost-plus and a majority of the contracts with
state and local government agencies have been fixed price and performance-based.
Fixed price and performance-based contracts generally offer higher margins but
typically involve more risk than cost-plus or time and materials reimbursement
contracts because the Company is subject to potential cost overruns or
inaccurate revenue estimates. As discussed further below, the SSA Contract was
terminated in December 1996 as a result of legislative action. Excluding the SSA
Contract, fiscal 1996 revenues from the above contract types were approximately
15%, 51%, 25% and 9%, respectively, of total revenues.

In October 1996, President Clinton signed into law an amendment to the
Social Security Act of 1935, effective January 1, 1997, that eliminated Social
Security Income and Supplemental Security Disability Insurance benefits based
solely on drug and alcohol disabilities. As a result of this legislative act,
the Social Security Administration terminated the SSA Contract effective at the
end of February 1997. All services to be provided to the Social Security
Administration were completed in the quarter ended March 31, 1997. The SSA
Contract contributed $31.6 million, $56.5 million, $14.3 million and $2.9
million to the Company's revenues in the six months ended March 31, 1997 and
fiscal years 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. The termination of the SSA
Contract will significantly reduce the Company's revenue base as compared to
prior periods. No assurance can be given that the Company will be able to
generate additional revenues in future periods in amounts sufficient to replace
the revenues received under the SSA Contract and, as a result, the Company may
experience materially lower revenues as compared to prior periods. The Company
has experienced a limited number of other early terminations since inception.
See "Risk Factors -- Variability of Quarterly Operating Results."

The Government Operations Group's contracts generally contain base periods
of one or more years as well as one or more option periods that may cover more
than half of the potential contract duration. As of September 30, 1996, the
Company's average Government Operations contract duration was 3 1/2 years. The
Company's Consulting Group is typically engaged for periods in excess of 24
months. Indicative of the long-term nature of the Company's engagements,
approximately 84% of the Company's fiscal 1996 revenues were in backlog as of
September 30, 1995.

The Company's most significant expense is cost of revenues, which consists
primarily of project related employee salaries and benefits, subcontractors,
computer equipment and travel expenses. The Company's ability to accurately
predict personnel requirements, salaries and other costs as well as to
effectively manage a project or achieve certain levels of performance can have a
significant impact on the service costs related to the Company's fixed price and
performance-based contracts. Service cost variability has little impact on cost-
plus arrangements because allowable costs are reimbursed by the client. The
profitability of the Consulting Group's contracts is largely dependent upon the



utilization rates of its consultants.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses consist of management,
marketing and administration costs including salaries, benefits, travel,
recruiting, continuing education and training, facilities costs, printing,
reproduction, communications and equipment depreciation. Selling, general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues have decreased in recent
years as these costs have been absorbed by a larger revenue base.

From October 1, 1987 to the date of this offering, the Company elected to
be treated as an S corporation for federal income tax purposes. For all periods
prior to October 1, 1996, the Company's income was taxed directly to its
shareholders on the cash basis and for the period from October 1, 1996 through
the date of this offering, the Company plans to have its income taxed directly
to its shareholders on the accrual basis. Upon completion of this offering, the
Company's S corporation status will terminate and the Company will be subject to
income tax on the accrual basis as a C corporation.

During the quarter in which this offering is completed, the Company will
recognize two significant charges against income. The completion of this
offering will result in the termination of the Company's S corporation status.
As a result the Company will record a one-time income statement charge to
operations estimated at $5.6 million based on the deferred tax liabilities as of
March 31, 1997. In connection with this offering, on January 31, 1997, certain
key employees of the Company surrendered rights to purchase shares of Common
Stock of the Company in exchange for options to purchase shares of Common Stock
at an exercise price of $1.46 per share. The Company will recognize a non-cash
compensation charge against income equal to the difference between the initial
public offering price and the option exercise price for all outstanding options.
Compensation expense totalling $150,000 has been recognized through March 31,
1997, and upon completion of this offering at an assumed initial public offering
price of $14.00 per share, the Company will incur an additional charge against
income of $4.9 million. The option exercise price is based on the book value of
the Common Stock at September 30, 1996, and was established pursuant to
pre-existing compensation arrangements with these employees. As a result of
these charges, the Company will report a significant net loss in the period in
which this offering is completed, which is anticipated to be the quarter ended
June 30, 1997. See "Management -- Executive Compensation."
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected
statements of income data as a percentage of revenues:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
SIX MONTHS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, ENDED MARCH 31,
1994 1995 1996 1996 1997
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Revenues:
Government Operations Group........... 39.4% 32.6% 20.1% 22.9% 34.3%
Consulting GroUP . .« v vt v v et e eeenennenns 50.7 39.8 25.1 31.5 19.8
SSA ContracCt.. ... innenennns 9.9 27.6 54.8 45.6 45.9
Total revenUEeS.....vvtii i eenns 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Gross profit:
Government Operations Group........... 5.2 22.7 25.5 23.3 21.9
Consulting GroUP . .« v vt v v et e eeenennenns 46.9 48.0 46.9 45.9 46.8
SSA ContracCt.. ... innnenennns 14.8 14.8 12.9 15.3 13.9
Gross profit as percentage of total
FEVENUES . v vt vttt vttt neeneeneenenn 27.3 30.6 23.9 26.8 23.1
Selling, general and administrative
EXPENSES v v et e vttt et 23.4 17.5 12.7 14.9 11.8
Income from operations...........ooee... 3.9 13.1 11.2 11.9 11.3
Interest and other income............... 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2
Income before income taxes.............. 4.2 13.4 11.5 12.1 11.5
Provision for income taxes.............. 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Net InCOME. ..ttt ittt it i e 4.2% 13.2% 11.3% 11.9% 11.3%

</TABLE>



SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 1997 COMPARED TO SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 1996

Revenues. Total contract revenues increased 73.7% to $68.8 million for the
six months ended March 31, 1997 as compared to $39.6 million for the same period
in 1996. Government Operations Group revenues increased 103.6% to $55.2 million
for the six months ended March 31, 1997 from $27.1 million for the same period
in 1996 due to an increase in the number of projects and an increase in revenues
from the SSA Contract. For the six months ended March 31, 1997, revenues from
the SSA Contract were $31.6 million as compared to $18.1 million for the same
period in 1996. Excluding the SSA Contract, Government Operations Group revenues
increased 160.6% to $23.6 million in the six months ended March 31, 1997 from
$9.0 million for the same period in 1996. Consulting Group revenues increased
8.8% to $13.6 million for the six months ended March 31, 1997 from $12.5 million
for the same period in 1996 due to an increase in the number of contracts.

Gross Profit. Total gross profit increased 50.1% to $15.9 million for the
six months ended March 31, 1997 as compared to $10.6 million for the same period
in 1996. Government Operations Group gross profit increased 96.4% to $9.6
million for the six months ended March 31, 1997 from $4.9 million for the six
months ended March 31, 1996. As a percentage of revenues, Government Operations
Group gross profit decreased to 17.3% in the six months ended March 31, 1997
from 17.9% in the same period in 1996, primarily due to the increased revenue
contribution of the SSA Contract, which had a lower gross profit margin, and the
pass-through of approximately $2.1 million of project start-up costs which
generated no gross margin. Consulting Group gross profit increased 10.8% to $6.4
million for the six months ended March 31, 1997 from $5.7 million for the same
period in 1996 due to higher revenues. As a percentage of revenues, Consulting
Group gross profit increased to 46.7% for the six months ended March 31, 1997
from 45.9% for the same period in 1996 primarily due to a reduction in revenue
from a cost-type contract which has a lower gross profit margin.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Total selling, general and
administrative expenses increased 38.7% to $8.2 million for the six months ended
March 31, 1997 as compared to $5.9 million for the same period in 1996. The
increase was due to increased professional and administrative staff, training
costs,
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and professional fees in the six months ended March 31, 1997. As a percentage of
revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased to 11.9% for
the six months ended March 31, 1997 from 14.9% for the same period in 1996 as
the Company was able to support its revenue growth without a proportionate
increase in associated costs.

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1996 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1995

Revenues. Total revenues increased 98.4% to $103.1 million in fiscal 1996
from $52.0 million in fiscal 1995. Government Operations Group revenues
increased 147.0% to $77.2 million in fiscal 1996 from $31.3 million in fiscal
1995. This growth was due to an increase in the number of projects and an
increase in revenues from the SSA Contract, which contributed $56.5 million to
fiscal 1996 revenues as compared to $14.3 million to fiscal 1995 revenues.
Excluding the SSA Contract, Government Operations Group revenues increased 22.0%
to $20.7 million in fiscal 1996 from $17.0 million in fiscal 1995. Consulting
Group revenues increased 25.1% to $25.9 million in fiscal 1996 from $20.7
million in fiscal 1995 primarily due to an increase in revenues from revenue
maximization contracts. The Consulting Group's nine revenue maximization
contracts in fiscal 1996 contributed $5.1 million to fiscal 1996 revenues as
compared to two revenue maximization contracts which contributed $2.2 million to
fiscal 1995 revenues.

Gross Profit. Total gross profit increased 55.3% to $24.7 million in
fiscal 1996 from $15.9 million in fiscal 1995. Government Operations Group gross
profit increased 110.6% to $12.5 million in fiscal 1996 from $6.0 million in
fiscal 1995. As a percentage of revenues, Government Operations Group gross
profit decreased to 16.2% in fiscal 1996 as compared to 19.0% in fiscal 1995,
primarily due to the increased revenue contribution of the SSA Contract, which
had a lower gross margin. Excluding the SSA Contract, as a percentage of
revenues, Government Operations Group gross profit increased to 25.5% for fiscal
1996 from 22.7% for fiscal 1995. Consulting Group gross profit increased 22.2%
to $12.1 million in fiscal 1996 from $9.9 million in fiscal 1995 as a result of
higher revenues. As a percentage of revenues, Consulting Group gross profit
decreased to 46.9% in fiscal 1996 from 48.0% in fiscal 1995, which represents
normal variability of gross profit from year to year.



Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Total selling, general and
administrative expenses increased 44.3% to $13.1 million in fiscal 1996 from
$9.1 million in fiscal 1995. This increase in costs was due to increases in both
professional and administrative personnel necessary to support the Company's
growth. The total number of employees increased to 754 at September 30, 1996
from 439 at September 30, 1995. Additionally, marketing and proposal preparation
expenditures increased as the Company pursued further revenue growth. As a
percentage of revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased
to 12.7% in fiscal 1996 from 17.5% in fiscal 1995 due to the Company's ability
to support its growth without a proportionate increase in associated costs.

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1995 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1994

Revenues. Total revenues increased 74.0% to $52.0 million in fiscal 1995
from $29.9 million in fiscal 1994. Government Operations Group revenues
increased 112.4% to $31.3 million in fiscal 1995 from $14.7 million in fiscal
1994 due to an increase in the number of projects and an increase in revenue
from the SSA Contract, which commenced in February 1994. The SSA Contract
contributed $14.3 million to fiscal 1995 revenues as compared to $2.9 million to
fiscal 1994 revenues. Excluding the SSA Contract, Government Operations Group
revenues increased 43.9% to $17.0 million in fiscal 1995 from $11.8 million in
fiscal 1994. Consulting Group revenues increased 36.7% to $20.7 million in
fiscal 1995 from $15.1 million in fiscal 1994 due to an increase in the number
of contracts and revenues resulting from revenue maximization contracts, which
the Company commenced performing in fiscal 1994. Revenues attributable to
revenue maximization contracts grew to $2.2 million in fiscal 1995 from $0.3
million in fiscal 1994.

Gross Profit. Total gross profit increased 95.1% to $15.9 million in
fiscal 1995 from $8.1 million in fiscal 1994. Government Operations Group gross
profit increased 468.5% to $6.0 million in fiscal 1995 from $1.0 million in
fiscal 1994. As a percentage of revenues, Government Operations Group gross
profit increased to 19.0% in fiscal 1995 from 7.1% in fiscal 1994. This increase
in gross margin resulted primarily from
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nonrecurring losses on two of its contracts in fiscal 1994, whereas the Company
realized above normal profit on one of its contracts in fiscal 1995. Consulting
Group gross profit increased 40.0% to $9.9 million in fiscal 1995 from $7.1
million in fiscal 1994 due to higher revenues. As a percentage of revenues,
Consulting Group gross profit increased to 48.0% in fiscal 1995 from 46.9% in
fiscal 1994 which represents normal variability of gross profit from period to
period.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Total selling, general and
administrative expenses increased 30.1% to $9.1 million in fiscal 1995 from $7.0
million in fiscal 1994. This increase in costs was due to increased professional
and administrative personnel necessary to support the growth of the Company. The
number of Consulting Group professionals increased 46% during the year ended
September 30, 1995 and administrative personnel increased 30% over the same
period. As a percent of revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses
decreased to 17.5% for fiscal 1995 from 23.4% for fiscal 1994 due to the ability
of the Company to support its growth without a proportionate increase in
associated costs.

QUARTERLY RESULTS

Set forth below are selected income statement data for the ten quarters
ended March 31, 1997. This information is derived from unaudited quarterly
financial statements which include, in the opinion of management, all
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the information for such
periods. This information should be read in conjunction with the Financial
Statements and related Notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Prospectus.
Results of operations for any fiscal quarter are not necessarily indicative of
results for any future period.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
QUARTERS ENDED
DEC. 31, MAR. 31, JUNE 30, SEPT. 30, DEC. 31, MAR. 31, JUNE 30, SEPT. 30,
31, MAR. 31,
1994 1995 1995 1995 1995 1996 1996 1996
1997
(IN THOUSANDS)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
<C>
Revenues:
Government

Operations

DEC.

1996

<C>



GrOUP. et v vewn.. $ 4,303 $ 4,715 $ 3,964 $ 3,969 $ 4,102 S 4,947 S 4,896
8,029 $15,551
Consulting
GroUpP. . ouveun.. 4,742 5,030 5,446 5,481 5,152 7,333 5,832
6,704 6,885
SSA Contract..... 2,290 2,724 3,787 5,512 7,446 10,606 17,170
22,511 9,082

Total
revenues..... 11,335 12,469 13,197 14,962 16,700 22,886 27,898
37,244 31,518
Cost of revenues... 8,124 8,385 9,004 10,498 12,027 16,962 21,577
29,534 23,323

Gross profit....... 3,211 4,084 4,133 4,464 4,673 5,924 6,321
7,710 8,195
Selling, general

and

administrative

EXPENSES . v v v v v 1,762 2,176 2,446 2,694 2,742 3,144 3,343
4,039 4,122

Income from

operations....... 1,449 1,908 1,687 1,770 1,931 2,780 2,978
3,671 4,073
Interest and other

income........... 34 36 46 53 53 46 63
84 64

Income before

income taxes..... 1,483 1,944 1,733 1,823 1,984 2,826 3,041
3,755 4,137
Provision for

income taxes..... 26 35 31 32 39 55 60
57 93

Net income......... $ 1,457 $ 1,909 $ 1,702 $ 1,791 $ 1,945 $ 2,771 s 2,981
3,698 $ 4,044

$ 6,736

7,585

21,308

35,629

27,863

3,891

3,993

</TABLE>

The Company's revenues and operating results are subject to significant
variation from quarter to quarter depending on a number of factors, including
the progress of contracts, revenues earned on contracts, the commencement and
completion of contracts during any particular quarter, the schedule of the
government agencies for awarding contracts, the term of each contract that the
Company has been awarded and general economic conditions. Because a significant
portion of the Company's expenses are relatively fixed, successful contract
performance and variation in the volume of activity as well as in the number of
contracts commenced or completed during any quarter may cause significant
variations in operating results from quarter to quarter. Furthermore, the
Company has on occasion experienced a pattern in its results of operations
pursuant to which it incurs greater operating expenses during the start-up and
early stages of significant contracts. In addition, the termination of the SSA
Contract and the absence of revenues thereunder after March 31, 1997, will
significantly reduce the Company's revenue base as compared to previous
quarters. No assurances can be
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given that quarterly results will not fluctuate, causing a material adverse
effect on the Company's operating results and financial condition. See "Risk
Factors —-- Variability of Quarterly Operating Results."

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's primary source of liquidity has been cash flows from
operations. The Company's cash flows from operations were $4.2 million, $3.1
million, $2.9 million and $0.3 million for the six months ended March 31, 1997
and for the years ended September 30, 1996, 1995, and 1994, respectively.
Because the Company elected to be treated as an S corporation for tax purposes,
the Company's net cash provided by operations reflects only certain state taxes.
The timing of receipt of contract payments can vary and, combined with the
requirement to provide start-up funding for new projects, cash flows fluctuate
from period to period.




Of the $1.3 million of cash flow used for investing activities for the year
ended September 30, 1996, $1.0 million was used to purchase short-term municipal
bonds, which can be readily converted to cash if needed. The Company has no
material commitments for capital expenditures and, as a services company, does
not anticipate making any significant capital expenditures over the next two
years.

Cash flows from financing activities consisted solely of stock sales to
employees, purchases from departing employees and S corporation distributions,
which were made to fund the payment of income taxes by the shareholders. The
Company does not anticipate the future payment of dividends, other than the S
Corporation Dividend.

The Company has a $10.0 million revolving credit facility (the "Credit
Facility") with a bank, which may be used for borrowing and the issuance of
letters of credit. Outstanding letters of credit totalled $0.8 million at March
31, 1997. The Credit Facility bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR
(approximately 5.7% at May 12, 1997) plus 2.0%. The Credit Facility contains
certain restrictive covenants and financial ratio requirements, including a
minimum net worth requirement of $10.5 million. The Company has not used the
Credit Facility to finance its working capital needs and, at March 31, 1997, the
Company had $9.2 million available under the Credit Facility.

The Company believes the net proceeds from the sale of Common Stock offered
hereby, together with funds generated by operations, will provide adequate cash
to fund its anticipated cash needs over the next 12 months, which may include
start-up costs associated with new contract awards, obtaining additional office
space, establishing new offices, expansion of international operations,
investment in upgraded systems infrastructure or acquisitions of other
businesses, technologies, product rights or distribution rights. In addition,
the Company's stronger financial condition should facilitate its ability to
compete for certain larger contracts from which it is currently restricted.

RECENTLY ISSUED FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, was issued in October 1995. The Company will be
required to adopt the new standard for its fiscal year ending September 30,
1997. This standard establishes the fair-value-based method (the "FAS 123
Method") rather than the intrinsic value based method as the preferred
accounting methodology for stock-based compensation arrangements. Entities are
allowed to: (i) continue to use the intrinsic value based methodology in their
basic financial statements and provide in the footnotes pro forma net income and
earnings per share information as if the FAS 123 Method had been adopted; or
(ii) adopt the FAS 123 Method. The Company anticipates providing the required
disclosures in the Notes to Financial Statements.

In February 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement
No. 128, Earnings per Share, which is required to be adopted on December 31,
1997. At that time, the Company will be required to change the method currently
used to compute earnings per share and to restate all prior periods. Under the
new requirements for calculating primary earnings per share, the dilutive effect
of stock options will be excluded. The impact is expected to result in an
increase in primary pro forma earnings per share for the year ended September
30, 1996 and the six months ended March 31, 1997 of $.02 and $.01 per share,
respectively.
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BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

MAXIMUS provides program management and consulting services to government
health and human services agencies in the United States. The Company believes
that it has been at the forefront of innovation in "Helping Government Serve the
People (TM)" since its inception in 1975. The Company's services are designed to
make government operations more efficient and cost effective while improving the
quality of the services provided to program beneficiaries. The Company applies
an entrepreneurial, private sector approach incorporating advanced technology in
large scale projects in almost every state in the nation. The Company believes
that its leading position in the emerging private sector health and human
services industry is reflected by its continued success in being awarded
competitively bid contracts by government health and human services agencies and
a corresponding growth in annual revenues from approximately $19 million in
fiscal 1990 to over $100 million in fiscal 1996.



MAXIMUS conducts its operations through two groups, the Government
Operations Group and the Consulting Group. The Government Operations Group
administers and manages government health and human services programs, including
welfare-to-work and job readiness, child support enforcement, managed care
enrollment and disability services. The Consulting Group provides health and
human services planning, information technology consulting, strategic program
evaluation, program improvement, communications planning and revenue
maximization services.

MARKET OPPORTUNITY

The Company believes that providing program management and consulting
services to government agencies in the health and human services sector
represents a significant market opportunity for the Company. Federal, state and
local government agencies in the United States spend over $200 billion annually
on the health and human services programs for which the Company markets its
services, including welfare, child care, child support enforcement, food stamps,
Social Security Disability Insurance, Supplemental Security Income and Medicaid.
These programs cost an estimated $21.0 billion in annual administrative costs.
The following chart sets forth currently available data from U.S. government
publications for programs served by the Company:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
ESTIMATED NUMBER ESTIMATED ANNUAL
PROGRAM OF BENEFICIARIES SERVED ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES
<S> <C> <C>
Social Security Disability Insurance... 5.9 million $ 1.1 billion
Supplemental Security Income........... 6.5 million 2.0 billion
Food StampsS...iiieieeeeteennneneeenennns 28.0 million 3.7 billion
Medicaid....oe ittt i 35.1 million 7.7 billion
Temporary Assistance to Needy
Families. .ot n i it iiieieenn 13.6 million 3.5 billion
Child Support Enforcement.............. 9.9 million 3.0 billion
</TABLE>

There has been a recent surge in legislation and initiatives to reform
federal, state and local welfare and health and human services systems. The most
significant of these legislative reforms is the Welfare Reform Act, which
restructures the benefits available to welfare recipients, eliminates
unconditional welfare entitlement and, most importantly, restructures the
funding mechanisms that exist between federal and state governments. Under the
Welfare Reform Act, states will receive block grant funding from the federal
government and will no longer be able to seek reimbursement in the form of
matching federal government funds for expenditures in excess of block grants.
Accordingly, states will bear the financial risk for the operation of their
welfare programs. A number of state governments are taking action to respond to
the changes created by welfare reform. For example, the State of Wisconsin
recently awarded a performance-based contract to the Company to manage the
welfare-to-work program in a section of Milwaukee.

The Company believes that political pressures, combined with the financial
constraints imposed by the Welfare Reform Act, will accelerate the rate at which
state and local health and human services agencies seek
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new solutions to reduce costs and improve the effectiveness of entitlement
programs. The Company believes that government agencies are increasingly turning
to companies similar to MAXIMUS to administer programs more effectively.
Government outsourcing ranges from the engagement of sophisticated private
consulting firms working with government to improve the delivery of human
services to the complete outsourcing of certain functions of government health
and human services programs. The Company believes that many government agencies
have concluded that private companies, similar to MAXIMUS, offer cost savings
and increased efficiency due to their ability to: (i) accept contracts where
compensation is based on performance; (ii) attract and compensate experienced,
high level management personnel; (iii) rapidly procure and utilize advanced
technology; (iv) vary the number of personnel on a project to match fluctuating
work loads; (v) increase productivity by providing employees with financial
incentives and performance awards and more readily terminating non-productive
employees; (vi) provide employees with ongoing training and career development
assistance; and (vii) maintain a professional work environment that is more
conducive to employee productivity.

STRENGTHS AND DIFFERENTIATIONS

MAXIMUS believes that it has been a pioneer in offering state and local



government agencies a private sector alternative to the internal administration
of government health and human services programs and has been innovative in
developing new businesses and market opportunities for the Company's services.
The Company believes that the following business strengths and differentiating
characteristics position it to capitalize on the significant market
opportunities presented by the environment of changing health and human services
program regulation and evolving technologies.

Single Market Focus. The Company believes that it is the largest company
dedicated exclusively to providing program management and consulting services to
government health and human services agencies. The Company has accumulated a
detailed knowledge base and understanding of the regulation and operation of
health and human services programs that allows it to apply proven methodologies,
skills and solutions to new projects in a cost-effective and timely fashion. The
Company believes that its exclusive focus, size and broad range of health and
human services program expertise differentiate it from both small firms and non-
profit organizations with limited resources and skill sets as well as from large
consulting firms that serve multiple industries but lack the focus necessary to
understand the complex nature of serving government agencies.

Proven Track Record. Since 1975, MAXIMUS has successfully applied its
entrepreneurial private sector approach to assisting government health and human
services agencies. Over the last five years, MAXIMUS has successfully completed
approximately 100 program management and consulting services projects for state
and local health and human services agencies serving millions of beneficiaries
in nearly every state. The Company believes that the successful execution of
these projects has earned MAXIMUS a reputation for providing efficient and
cost-effective services to government agencies while improving the quality of
services provided to program beneficiaries. This reputation has contributed
significantly to its ability to compete successfully for new contracts.

Wide Range of Services. Many of the Company's clients require their
vendors to provide a broad array of service offerings, something many of the
Company's competitors cannot provide. Engagements often require creative
solutions that must be drawn from diverse areas of expertise. The Company's
expertise in a wide range of services enable it to better pursue such
opportunities and to offer itself as a single-source provider of program
management, consulting and information technology services to government
agencies.

Proprietary Case Management Software Program. MAXIMUS has developed a
proprietary automated case management software program called the MAXSTAR Human
Services Application Builder. MAXSTAR is a software platform that allows the
Company to reduce project implementation time and cost. Because government
agencies are required to manage vast amounts of data and large numbers of cases
without access to advanced technology and experienced professionals, the Company
believes that MAXSTAR, together with the Company's information technology
professionals, is a key element of its success.
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Experienced Team of Professionals. MAXIMUS has assembled an experienced
management team of former government executives, state agency officials,
information technology specialists and other professionals with backgrounds in
the public health and human services industry. The Company's employees
understand the problems and challenges faced in the marketing, assessment and
delivery of government agency services. Furthermore, since state and local
government administrators are subject to changing legislative and political
mandates, MAXIMUS has developed strong relationships with experienced political
consultants who inform and advise the Company with respect to strategic
marketing and legislative initiatives.

GROWTH STRATEGY

The Company's goal is to be the leading provider of program management and
consulting services to government health and human services programs. The
Company's strategy to achieve this goal includes the following:

Capitalize on Trends Toward Outsourcing Government Functions. The Company
believes that it is well-positioned to benefit from the expected increase in
demand for new program management and consulting services that will arise in an
environment characterized by changing regulation and evolving technology. The
Company believes that fiscal pressures will compel state governments to
rationalize program operations and upgrade existing technology to operate more
cost-efficient and productive programs. To achieve these efficiencies, MAXIMUS
believes that many government agencies will turn to outside experts for help.



Aggressively Pursue New Business Opportunities. The Company believes that
throughout its 2l1-year history, it has been a leader in developing innovative
solutions to meet the evolving needs of state and local health and human
services agencies. The Company plans to expand its revenue base by: (i)
marketing new and innovative program management solutions to the Company's
extensive client base; (ii) expanding the Company's client base by marketing the
Company's experience and established methodologies and systems; (iii) investing
in early identification of government bid opportunities; and (iv) submitting
competitive bids that leverage the Company's proven solutions for past projects.

Recruit Highly Skilled Professionals. The Company continually strives to
recruit top government management and information technology professionals with
the experience, skills and innovation necessary to design and implement
solutions to complex problems presented by resource-constrained government
agencies. The Company also seeks to attract middle-level consultants with a
proven track record in the health and human services field and a network of
political contacts to leverage the Company's existing management infrastructure,
client relationships and areas of expertise.

Pursue Strategic Acquisitions. Given the highly fragmented structure of
the government services and consulting marketplace, MAXIMUS believes that
numerous acquisition opportunities exist. Acquisitions can provide the Company
with a rapid, cost-effective method to grow its number of consultants, broaden
its client base, establish or expand its presence in a geographic region or
obtain additional skill sets.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in
implementing any or all of its growth strategies or in achieving its goal, all
of which are subject to various risks, including legislative change,
requirements for significant up-front financial investment, continued ability to
attract and retain qualified employees and risks related to acquisitions. See
"Risk Factors."

SERVICES

The Company's services are designed to make government operations more
efficient and cost effective while improving the quality of the services
government agencies provide to program beneficiaries. The Company organizes its
operations into two groups: (i) the Government Operations Group, specializing in
the management of government health and human services operations; and (ii) the
Consulting Group, providing health and human services planning, information
technology consulting, strategic program evaluation, program improvement and
revenue maximization services.
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GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS GROUP

The Company's Government Operations Group is comprised of four divisions
specializing in the administration and management of government health and human
services programs.

Welfare Reform Division. The Company manages welfare-to-work programs by
providing a wide range of services, including eligibility determination,
emergency assistance, job referral and placement, transition services such as
child care and transportation, community work training services, job readiness
preparation, case management services and selected educational and training
services. The Company's typical welfare-to-work contract involves the engagement
of the Company for a period of three to five years. The Company has served
approximately 212,000 welfare recipients at 28 locations in six states. In 1996,
for example, Fairfax County, Virginia awarded the Company a one year, $2 million
contract to place welfare recipients into unsubsidized employment. To date, the
Company has achieved a placement rate in excess of 90% on this contract. In
addition, in 1997, the State of Connecticut awarded MAXIMUS a two-year, $11.6
million contract to manage its statewide childcare program.

Child Support Enforcement Division. The Company provides a full range of
child support enforcement ("CSE") services, including: (i) outreach to and
interview of parents of children entitled to child support; (ii) establishing
paternity and obtaining, enforcing, reviewing and modifying child support
orders; and (iii) payment processing. The Company operates statewide client
service units, updates case arrearage and demographic data for new CSE automated
systems and provides training to CSE workers. The Company believes that it has
one of the largest CSE staffs in the private sector with over 350 professionals.
The Company has been performing these services since 1976, which the Company
believes is longer than any other private sector firm in the United States. The
Company is currently engaged in the management of CSE programs in 13 locations
in seven states providing full child support services for approximately 150,000
cases and specialized services for an additional 95,000 cases. For example, the
Company currently is providing services under a five-year, $12 million,
full-service CSE program management contract in Nashville, Tennessee.



Disability Services Division. The Company provides a host of
disability-related services geared toward case management, client assessment,
treatment and vocational rehabilitation referral, client monitoring and
innovative return-to-work strategies. MAXIMUS became the first company to
operate a national case management and monitoring program for disability
beneficiaries in 1995 when it won a contract with the Social Security
Administration to provide referral and monitoring services to beneficiaries with
drug or alcohol disabilities. The SSA Contract was the largest ever awarded by
the SSA with potential revenues of $350 million. Under the SSA Contract, the
Company has successfully referred approximately 100,000 disabled beneficiaries
into treatment as a first step to re-entering the work force. The Company
believes the skills and tools it employed in the SSA Contract will be invaluable
in pursuing other large scale program management contracts. One example is the
1996 five-year, $4.6 million contract awarded to the Company by the State of New
Jersey to develop and implement a program to identify and locate family members
responsible for paying the institutional care costs of their disabled relatives.

Managed Care Enrollment Services Division. MAXIMUS has obtained
significant experience in managing certain aspects of Medicaid programs through
projects in 20 states. In these projects, MAXIMUS provides recipient outreach,
education and enrollment services; an automated information system customized
for the state; data collection and reporting; outreach to community-based
organizations and advocacy groups; design and development of program materials;
collection of enrollment premiums for uninsured participants; encounter data
reporting to health plans; and care coordination for Early and Periodic
Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment services. MAXIMUS currently operates the
California Options Project, a three-year managed care enrollment contract
awarded to the Company in 1996. This project is one of the largest Medicaid
managed care enrollment programs in the country with over two million program
beneficiaries.

CONSULTING GROUP

The Company's Consulting Group is organized into four operational
divisions: the Human Services Division, the Information Technology Division, the
Systems Planning and Integration Division and the International Division.
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Human Services Division. The Company provides consulting and technical
support to the federal government as well as to state and local government
agencies in the financing, delivery and management of a range of human services
programs in the areas of revenue maximization, program evaluations and program
improvement. Revenue maximization involves seeking to increase federal financial
participation in state health and human services programs. The Company collects
a contingency fee based on the amount of additional federal revenues recovered.
Since it began offering revenue maximization services, the Company has succeeded
in obtaining approximately $150 million in additional federal revenues and is
currently engaged in projects that the Company estimates will yield more than
$150 million in additional federal revenues. The Company is also frequently
engaged to conduct evaluations and provide improvement recommendations for
government programs. Program evaluation consulting contracts are frequently
long-term, multi-year research projects involving the collection of extensive
data using automated data merges as well as surveys and case record reviews.
Since 1994, the Company has completed 50 revenue maximization, program
evaluation and program improvement projects in over 25 states and localities and
has recorded approximately $16 million in revenues from these types of projects.
Since 1993, the State of Wisconsin has awarded to the Company a series of
program evaluation engagements for the Department of Health and Social Services
valued at $6 million.

Information Technology Division. The Company provides computer system
management services to state and local government agencies administering health
and human services and criminal justice programs. MAXIMUS provides assistance in
designing and/or implementing emerging technologies involving Internet/Intranet,
imaging, telephony, automated kiosks and touch screen technology. The Company
provides assistance in assessing and evaluating the extent of Year 2000 problems
and in strategic planning to resolve compliance issues. The Company believes
that welfare reform legislation will increase the need for new and re-engineered
systems applications, thus increasing the demand for the Company's services.
This division also supports the technical electronic data processing needs of
the Company's other divisions. Since 1991, the Company has provided information
technology systems and design services for 41 projects in 17 states. For
example, the Company is currently engaged in a six month, $900,000 contract to
provide Year 2000 planning to the Office of Policy and Management of the State
of Connecticut.

Systems Planning and Integration Division. The Company provides a range of
systems consulting support services to state and local government health and
human services agencies and criminal justice systems. This division focuses on
integrating different systems and provides objective, third party strategic



planning, procurement and project management support. Since 1990, the State of
Michigan has awarded to the Company various contracts valued at more than $7
million in the aggregate to monitor and assess Family Assistance Management
Information Systems, CSE systems and Medicaid Management Information Systems.

International Division. The Company provides healthcare consulting and
systems services to assist foreign government agencies and healthcare
organizations responsible for the delivery of treatment services to large
populations. The Company automates and restructures clinical information systems
for large outpatient providers, hospital information systems, managed care
information systems, beneficiary management systems and treatment network
management systems for managing large networks of health treatment facilities.
In addition, MAXIMUS consults with foreign government agencies in developing
healthcare policy reforms, treatment quality improvements and productivity
enhancements. The Company's healthcare systems software, developed in
ORACLE7 (R), is a platform-independent and multi-language software package. The
Company has developed an Arabic language version of this software for use in the
Middle East. Currently, the division is engaged in a major automation project
for the United States Agency for International Development in Egypt. The
objective of the five-year, $22 million contract is to install a national
healthcare system database in 18 hospitals and 200 clinics throughout Egypt,
allowing the Egyptian Health Insurance Organization to better manage its
facilities. In Argentina, the Company recently signed a three-year, $5 million
contract pursuant to which it will provide organizational and management
services to the health plan of an employee union with almost 500,000 members.

BACKLOG

The Company's backlog represents an estimate of the remaining future
revenues from existing signed contracts and revenues from contracts which have
been awarded but not yet signed. Using the best available information, the
Company estimates backlog on a quarterly basis with respect to all executed
contracts. The backlog estimate includes revenues expected under the current
terms of executed contracts, revenues from
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contracts in which the scope and duration of the services required are not
definite but estimable and does not assume any contract renewals or extensions.

Changes in the backlog calculation from quarter to quarter result from: (i)
additional revenues from the execution of new contracts or extension or renewal
of existing contracts; (ii) reduction in revenues from fulfilling contracts
during the most recent quarter; (iii) reduction in revenues from the early
termination of contracts; and (iv) adjustments to estimates of previously
included contracts.

At March 31, 1997 and March 31, 1996, the Company's backlog for services
pursuant to its contracts with federal, state and local health and human
services agencies was approximately $194.5 million and $114.2 million,
respectively. At March 31, 1997 and March 31, 1996, the Company's backlog,
excluding the SSA Contract, was approximately $194.5 million and $44.8 million,
respectively. The backlog for services at March 31, 1997 included $96.0 million
pursuant to four contracts which have been awarded to the Company but have not
yet been signed. The Company anticipates that these contracts will be signed
during the quarter ending June 30, 1997.

MARKETING AND SALES

The Company's Government Operations Group obtains program management
contracts from state and local authorities by responding to RFPs issued by such
authorities. Whenever possible, prior to the issuance of an RFP, senior
executives in the Government Operations Group work with senior government
representatives, such as the governor, members of the governor's staff and the
heads of health and human services agencies to encourage them to outsource
certain health and human services functions. To identify opportunities to work
with government officials at early stages and to optimize the government's
receptivity to the Company's proposal to provide program management services,
the Company establishes and maintains relationships with elected officials,
political appointees and government employees. The Company occasionally engages
marketing consultants, including lobbyists to establish and maintain
relationships with these client representatives. The Company's consultants and
lobbyists provide introductions to government personnel and provide information
to the Company regarding the status of legislative and executive
decision-making.

Following the issuance of an RFP the Government Operations Group
participates in formal discussions, if any, between the contracting government
agency and the group of potential service providers seeking to modify the RFP



and prepare the proposal. Upon the award of a government operations contract,
the Company's representatives then negotiate the contract with representatives
of the contracting government authority until all terms are agreed.

The Consulting Group generates leads for consulting contracts by employing
lobbyists, maintaining relationships with government personnel in charge of
health and human services operations and communicating directly with current and
prospective clients. The Consulting Group participates in professional
associations of government administrators and industry seminars featuring
presentations by MAXIMUS personnel. Senior executives from the Consulting Group
develop leads through on-site presentations to the decision-makers. In most
cases, consulting contracts, like program management contracts, are obtained
after responding to a formal RFP. The Consulting Group's efforts in generating a
lead prior to the RFP can facilitate the Company's insight in responding to a
particular RFP. A portion of the Consulting Group's new business arises from
prior client engagements, in which case the Company may be the sole source of
services. In addition, clients frequently expand the scope of engagements during
delivery to include follow-on activities.

COMPETITION

The market for providing program management and consulting services to
state and local health and human services agencies is competitive and subject to
rapid change. The Company's Government Operations Group competes for program
management contracts with local non-profit organizations such as the United Way
and Goodwill Industries, government services divisions of large companies such
as Lockheed Martin Corp. and Electronic Data Systems, Inc., managed care
enrollment companies such as Foundation Health Corporation and specialized
service providers such as Andersen Consulting, America Works, Inc., Policy
Studies Incorporated and GC Services, Inc. The Company's Consulting Group
competes with the consulting divisions of the "Big 6" accounting firms as well
as Electronic Data Systems, Inc. Many of these companies are national and
international in scope and have greater financial, technical, marketing and
personnel resources than the Company. The Company anticipates that it will face
increased competition in the future as
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new companies enter the market. The Company believes that its experience,
reputation, industry focus and broad range of services will enable it to compete
effectively in its marketplace. See "Risk Factors -- Intense Competition."

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

The market for the Company's services exists under a United States federal
regulatory framework of social programs which are largely implemented at the
state or local level. The following summarizes this framework:

WELFARE PROGRAMS. Under Title IV-A of the federal Social Security Act, the
federal government provides financial assistance to underprivileged families
under several programs known as "Welfare," which have included the Aid to
Families with Dependent Children Program ("AFDC") and the Job Opportunities and
Basic Skills Training Program ("JOBS"). Under the AFDC program, cash welfare
payments are provided to needy children who have been deprived of parental
support or care and certain others in the household of the child. State
governments are required to define "need," set their own benefit levels,
establish (within federal limitations) income and resource limits and administer
the program or supervise its administration. Beginning in October 1990, the
federal government required each state to implement a JOBS program, which is
designed to help needy families with children to avoid long-term Welfare
dependency by providing education, training, job placement and other supportive
services, including child care.

Under the recently enacted Welfare Reform Act, AFDC and JOBS have been
combined into a single program, known as "Temporary Assistance to Needy
Families" or "TANF." Under TANF the federal government will make "block grants"
of funds to the states, to be administered at the state level in programs that
include certain mandatory work, education and job-related activities, including
job training and job search for the purposes of: (i) providing needy families
with time-limited assistance in order to end their dependency on government
benefits and achieve self-sufficiency; (ii) preventing and reducing
out-of-wedlock pregnancies, especially teenage pregnancies; and (iii)
encouraging the formation and maintenance of two-parent families. While the
federal act provides general requirements, states must determine how these
requirements will be met.

CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT. The federal Child Support Enforcement ("CSE")
program, authorized under Title IV-D of the Social Security Act, was established
in 1975 in response to the increasing failure of many parents to provide
financial support to their children. The purpose of the CSE program is to help
strengthen families and reduce Welfare dependency by placing the responsibility
for supporting children on the parents rather than on the government. State
governments are generally required to locate absent parents, establish paternity



if necessary, obtain judicial support orders and collect the support payments
required by those orders. Child Support Enforcement has been the subject of
close scrutiny in recent years and is an area of health and human services where
government has sought significant private sector involvement including full
service program management efforts.

The Child Support Enforcement Amendments of 1984 mandated that state CSE
information systems, in order to receive matching federal funding, must meet
certain federal functional requirements covering case initiation, case
management, database linkage, financial management, enforcement, security,
privacy and reporting. The Family Support Act of 1988, effective October 1992,
mandated enhanced functional requirements for state CSE systems, including the
implementation of automated systems able to interface electronically with other
state systems such as Welfare, driver and vehicle registration and Medicaid
systems.

SOCIAL SECURITY DISABILITY INSURANCE AND SUPPLEMENTAL SOCIAL SECURITY
INCOME. Titles II and XVI of the federal Social Security Act provide for the
administration and distribution of financial assistance to disabled individuals
whose impairments make them unemployable. These benefits fall into two
categories: (i) Social Security Disability Insurance (Title II) provides
financial benefits to individuals who have contributed to Social Security during
a prior period of employment; and (ii) Supplemental Security Income or SSI
(Title XVI) provides financial benefits to individuals who meet all the
disability criteria used to determine eligibility under Title II, but who have
not made a sufficient contribution to Social Security. Recently, there has been
political pressure on the Social Security Administration (the "SSA") to review
the caseload of Title II and Title XVI beneficiaries to ensure that each
individual's disability still exists and that the extent of such disability
remains sufficient to preclude employment. In addition, the SSA has been under
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pressure to increase and improve vocational rehabilitation efforts focused on
returning disabled beneficiaries to work and self-sufficiency.

MEDICAID AND MEDICARE. Medicaid and Medicare were implemented under Title
XIX and XVIII of the Social Security Act. Medicaid is a federal-state matching
entitlement program, that provides reimbursement for the cost of medical care to
low-income individuals who are aged, blind, disabled or AFDC beneficiaries, and
to certain pregnant woman and children. Within broad federal guidelines, each
state designs and administers its own program. Eligibility and claims processing
systems are automated by each state to handle this program, which is typically
the largest line item in a state budget. Federal assistance is also available on
a waiver basis for managed care enrollment for Medicaid recipients and similar
populations. Medicare is a federal entitlement program providing reimbursement
of a portion of the cost of medical care provided to the elderly.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of May 6, 1997, the Company had 1,102 employees, consisting of 909
employees in the Government Operations Group, 107 employees in the Consulting
Group and 86 administrative employees. The Company's success depends in large
part on attracting, retaining and motivating talented, innovative and
experienced professionals at all levels. In connection with its hiring efforts,
the Company employs a full-time human resources coordinator, retains several
executive search firms and relies on personal and business contacts to recruit
senior level employees for senior management positions in the Government
Operations Group and the Consulting Group and for senior administrative
positions. When the Company's Government Operations Group is awarded a contract
by state or local government, the Company is often under a tight timetable to
hire project leaders and case management personnel to meet the needs of the new
project. To meet such needs, the Company engages intensive short-term hiring
efforts at the project's location. See "Risk Factors -- Reliance on Key
Executives" and "-- Attraction and Retention of Employees."

The Company's hiring focus is to identify candidates who are well suited by
background and temperament to serve the Company's government clients. The
Company's Government Operations employees are largely drawn from government
employment positions, while the Consulting Group employees are largely selected
from other consulting organizations and government agencies.

MAXIMUS offers employees an internal training program designed to enhance
professional skills and knowledge. Offered twice a year, the three-day program
includes human resources topics such as cultural sensitivity, sexual harassment
and wrongful termination; marketing, proposal writing and public relations;
project administration topics, such as contract negotiations, project
management, deliverable preparation and client management; and technology
updates. In addition, MAXIMUS offers partial tuition reimbursement for employees
pursuing relevant degree programs and fully reimburses employees for relevant
training seminars and short courses.



The Company promotes loyalty and continuity of its employees by offering
packages of base and incentive compensation and benefits that it believes are
significantly more attractive than those offered by the government or other
government consulting firms in general. In addition, to attract and retain
employees, the Company has established several employee benefit plans. See
"Management -- Stock Plans" and "-- 401 (k) Plan."

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On March 12, 1997, Network Six, Inc. ("Network Six") served MAXIMUS with a
First Amended Third-Party Complaint filed in the State of Hawaii Circuit Court
of the First Circuit. In this complaint, Network Six named the Company and other
parties as third party defendants in an action by the State of Hawaii against
Network Six. In 1991, the Company's Consulting Group was engaged by the State of
Hawaii to provide assistance in planning for and monitoring the development and
implementation by Hawaii of a statewide automated child support system. In 1993,
Hawaii contracted with Network Six to provide systems development and
implementation services for this project. In 1996 the state terminated the
Network Six contract for cause and filed an action against Network Six. Network

Six counterclaimed against Hawaii that
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the state breached its obligations under the contract with Network Six. In the
Third Party Complaint, Network Six alleges that the Company is liable to Network
Six on grounds that: (i) Network Six was an intended third party beneficiary
under the contract between the Company and Hawaii; (ii) the Company engaged in
bad faith conduct and tortiously interfered with the contract and relationship
between Network Six and Hawaii; (iii) the Company negligently breached duties to
Network Six; and (iv) the Company aided and abetted Hawaii in Hawaii's breach of
contract. Network Six's complaint seeks damages, including punitive damages,
from the third party defendants in an amount to be proven at trial. The Company
believes that Network Six was not an intended third party beneficiary under its
contract with Hawaii and that Network Six's claims are without factual or legal
merit. The Company does not believe this action will have a material adverse
effect on the Company's business, and it intends to rigorously defend this
action. However, given the early stage of this litigation, no assurance may be
given that the Company will be successful in its defense. A decision by the
court in Network Six's favor or any other conclusion of this litigation in a
manner adverse to the Company could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Company is not a party to any material legal proceedings, except as set

forth above.

FACILITIES

The Company is headquartered in McLean,

Virginia, in a 21,000 square foot

office building which is owned by the Company. The Company leases office space
for other management and administrative functions in connection with the
performance of its contracts in various states and foreign countries. On March
31, 1997, the Company conducted operations from twenty-nine leased office
facilities totalling 200,000 square feet. See Note 6 of Notes to Financial
Statements. The lease terms vary from month-to-month to three-year leases and
are at market rates. The Company believes that additional space will be required
as the business expands and believes that it will be able to obtain such space

as needed.
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MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND KEY EMPLOYEES

The Company's executive officers, directors and key employees and their

respective ages and positions as of March 31,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

NAME AGE
<S> <C>
David V. Mastran(l)........coovvu.n 54
Raymond B. Ruddy(l) ......covivuvnn. 53

1997, are as follows:

POSITION
<C>
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Vice President of
the Company and President of Consulting Group



Russell A. Beliveau(2).......cuocu.. 49 President of Government Operations Group and Director
F. Arthur Nerret..........ccvviiunn 49 Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

Donna J. Muldoon.........veviuennnn 54 Vice President of Administrative Services, Secretary
and Director

Susan D. Pepin(2) ....c.oviiiienn.. 42 President of Systems Planning and Integration Division
and Director

Lynn P. Davenport.. ... eeeeeneens 50 President of Human Services Division and Director
Robert J. Muzzio................... 62 Executive Vice President and Director

Ilene R. Baylinson.........coeveu.n. 40 President of Disability Services Division

Edward F. Hilz......ooiiiiiiinnnn. 52 Chief Information Officer

David A. HOgan......euiiiiieennennnn 48 President of Child Support Division

John P. Lau, Sr......iuiiuiinienennn.. 53 President of International Division

Holly A. Payne....eeeeeeeeenennnens 44 President of Welfare Reform Division

</TABLE>

(1) Member of the Compensation Committee.
(2) Member of the Audit Committee.

David V. Mastran has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since
he founded the Company in 1975. Dr. Mastran received his Sc. D. in Operations
Research from George Washington University in 1973, his M.S. in Industrial
Engineering from Stanford University in 1966 and his B.S. from the United States
Military Academy at West Point in 1965.

Raymond B. Ruddy has served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors since
1985 and President of the Company's Consulting Group since 1986. From 1969 until
he joined the Company, Mr. Ruddy served in various capacities with Touche Ross &
Co., including, Associate National Director of Consulting from 1982 until 1984
and Director of Management Consulting (Boston, Massachusetts office) from 1978
until 1983. Mr. Ruddy received his M.B.A. from the Wharton School of Business of
the University of Pennsylvania and his B.S. in Economics from Holy Cross
College.

Russell A. Beliveau has served as the President of the Company's Government
Operations Group since 1995. Mr. Beliveau has more than 20 years experience in
the Health and Human Services Industry during which he has worked in both
government and private sector positions at the senior executive level. Mr.
Beliveau's past positions include Vice President of Operations at Foundation
Health Corporation of Sacramento, California from 1988 through 1994 and Deputy
Associate Commissioner (Medicaid) for the Massachusetts Department of Public
Welfare from 1983 until 1988. Mr. Beliveau received his M.B.A. in Business
Administration and Management Information Systems from Boston College in 1980
and his B.A. in Psychology from Bridgewater State College in 1974.

F. Arthur Nerret has served as Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since 1994 and serves as Trustee of the Company's 401 (k) Plan. He has
over 24 years of accounting experience as a CPA. From 1981 until he joined the
Company, Mr. Nerret held a variety of positions at Frank E. Basil, Inc. in
Washington, D.C. including Vice President, Finance from 1991 to 1994 and
Director of Finance from 1989 until 1991. Mr. Nerret received his B.S. in
Accounting from the University of Maryland in 1970.
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Donna J. Muldoon has served as the Vice President of the Company's
Administrative Services Division since 1989 and has served in various
administrative capacities since 1978. Before joining the Company, Ms. Muldoon
was an Administrative/Top Secret Control Officer with the Department of the Air
Force, Logistic Plans and Programs, from 1973 until joining the Company.

Susan D. Pepin has served as the President of the Company's Systems
Planning and Integration Division since 1994 and has been with the Company since
1988. She has over 14 years experience in technical management and consulting
with a focus on health and human services management information systems. Before
joining the Company, Ms. Pepin served as Director of eligibility systems for the
Massachusetts Department of Public Welfare from 1984 until 1987 and a Project
Leader for Wang Laboratories, Inc. from 1979 until 1984. Ms. Pepin received her
B.S. in Home Economics with a concentration in Consumer Studies and a minor in
Business from the University of New Hampshire in 1976.



Lynn P. Davenport has served as the President of the Company's Human
Services Division since he joined the Company in 1991 after 17 years of health
and human services experience in the areas of administration, productivity
improvement, management consulting, revenue maximization and management
information systems. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Davenport was employed by
Deloitte & Touche, and its predecessor, Touche Ross & Co., in Boston,
Massachusetts, where he became a partner in 1987. Mr. Davenport received his
M.P.A. in Public Administration from New York University in 1971 and his B.A. in
Political Science and Economics from Hartwick College in 1969.

Robert J. Muzzio has served in various positions with the Company since
1979, including Executive Vice President since 1987, and has more than 30 years
of experience as a health care administrator, health systems researcher, and
personnel and manpower analyst. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Muzzio held
many public and private sector positions in the health care industry, including
Life Support Coordinator for the Morrison Knudsen Saudi Arabia Consortium in
1978 and 1979 and Director of the Personnel Policies Division of the Office of
the Surgeon General, Department of the Army, from 1976 until 1978. Mr. Muzzio
received his M.A. in Health Care Administration from Baylor University in 1967
and his B.A. in Public Health from San Jose State College in 1956.

Ilene R. Baylinson has served as the President of the Company's Disability
Services Division since 1995 and as Chief Operating Officer from 1991 to 1995.
She has more than 17 years of experience in health and human services program
administration. After obtaining her B.A. from John Hopkins University in 1978,
Ms. Baylinson worked in a variety of positions for Koba Associates, Inc. of
Washington, D.C., including Senior Vice President for Corporate Management,
Marketing and Operations from 1989 until her departure and Corporate Vice
President/Director, Law and Justice Division from 1985 through 1991.

Edward F. Hilz has served as the Company's Chief Information Officer since
1992 and has over 18 years of experience in the areas of research and
development, telecommunications, health, marketing, finance and data center
management. From 1987 until joining the Company, Mr. Hilz served as Chief
Operating Officer of Nationwide Remittance Centers of McLean, Virginia.
Previously, Mr. Hilz had worked in a variety of capacities for Martin Marietta
Data Systems, Inc. since 1980. Mr. Hilz received a B.S. in Business
Administration and Computer Sciences from the University of Baltimore in 1969.

David A. Hogan has served as the President of the Company's Child Support
Division since 1994 and served as a Vice President of the division from 1993
until 1994. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Hogan spent 23 years working in
numerous positions for the Washington State Department of Social and Health
Services including five years as the State's Child Support Director. Mr. Hogan
also served one year as the President of the National Child Support Directors
Association. Mr. Hogan received his J.D. from the University of Puget Sound in
1976 and his B.A. from Western Washington University in 1970.

John P. Lau, Sr. has served as the President of the Company's International
Division since 1993 and served as President of the Company's Advanced Systems
Division from 1989 until 1993. From 1961 until 1988, Mr. Lau worked in a variety
of government and private health care systems organizations in technical,
managerial and executive positions. Most recently, Mr. Lau was a Vice President
of Modern Psychiatric Systems in Rockville, Maryland in 1988 and 1989 and served
from 1968 through 1988 as Consultant to the
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President of Creative SocioMedics Corporation. Mr. Lau received his M.S. in
Physics from Fairleigh Dickinson University in 1968 and his B.S. in Physics from
St. Peter's College, Jersey City, New Jersey in 1965.

Holly A. Payne has served in various executive capacities at the Company
since 1987 and as President of the Company's Welfare Reform Division since 1995.
Ms. Payne has over 21 years of human services programs experience. From 1983
until she joined the Company, Ms. Payne was a Program Manager at Electronic Data
Systems Corporation in Bethesda, Maryland and from 1978 until 1983 she worked in
several capacities for the Departments of Social Services in Prince William and
Fairfax Counties in Virginia. Ms. Payne received her M.S.W. from West Virginia
University in 1978 and her B.S. in Family Services from Northern Illinois
University in 1975.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company's Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, to be filed
concurrently with the closing of this offering, provide for a classified board
of directors consisting of three classes, with each class being as nearly equal
in number of directors as possible. The Board of Directors currently consists of
seven members. The Company expects to increase the size of the Board of
Directors within 90 days after the closing of this offering and to fill the
newly created seats on the Board of Directors with at least two independent
directors.

The term of one class of Directors expires, and their successors are



elected for a term of three years, at each annual meeting of the Company's
shareholders. The Company has designated two Class I directors (Donna J. Muldoon
and Robert Muzzio), two Class II directors (Russell A. Beliveau and Susan D.
Pepin) and three Class III directors (David V. Mastran, Raymond B. Ruddy and
Lynn P. Davenport). These Class I, Class II and Class III directors will serve
until the annual meetings of shareholders to be held in 1998, 1999 and 2000,
respectively, and until their respective successors are duly elected and
qualified, or until their earlier resignation or removal. The Amended and
Restated Articles of Incorporation provide that directors may be removed only
for cause by a majority of shareholders. There are no family relationships among
any of the directors or executive officers.

Each of Raymond B. Ruddy and David V. Mastran, who will together hold 62.4%
of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company after giving effect to this
offering, has agreed to vote his shares in favor of the election of the other to
the Board of Directors, as long as each of such shareholders owns or controls at
least 20% of the Company's outstanding Common Stock. See "Agreements with
Executives."

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company's Board of Directors has standing Audit and Compensation
Committees but does not have a Nominating Committee. The selection of nominees
for the Board of Directors may be made either by the entire Board of Directors
or, subject to certain notice provisions contained in the Company's Bylaws, by
any shareholder entitled to vote for the election of directors.

The Audit Committee, consisting of Mr. Beliveau and Ms. Pepin was formed in
January 1997 and has not held any meetings. The primary function of the Audit
Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in the discharge of its duties and
responsibilities by providing the Board with an independent review of the
financial health of the Company and of the reliability of the Company's
financial controls and financial reporting systems. The Audit Committee reviews
the general scope of the Company's annual audit, the fees charged by the
Company's independent accountants and other matters relating to internal control
systems. The Company intends to appoint two independent directors to the Audit
Committee.

The Compensation Committee determines the compensation to be paid to all
executive officers of the Company, including the Chief Executive Officer. The
Compensation Committee also administers the Company's 1997 Equity Incentive
Plan, including the grant of stock options and other awards under the Equity
Plan. The Compensation Committee, consisting of Dr. Mastran and Mr. Ruddy, was
also formed in January 1997 and has not held any meetings. The Company intends
to appoint two independent directors to the Compensation Committee or to a
separate committee that will administer executive officer compensation.
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1997 DIRECTOR STOCK OPTION PLAN

All of the directors who are not employees of the Company or of any
subsidiary of the Company (the "Eligible Directors") are currently eligible to
participate in the Company's 1997 Director Stock Option Plan (the "Director
Plan"). Upon the closing of the Company's initial public offering and upon any
subsequent election or re-election of an Eligible Director, such director is
automatically granted an option to purchase 2,000 shares of Common Stock for
each year of the term of office for which such director has been elected (the
"Options"). The Options become exercisable with respect to 2,000 shares on the
date of grant, and if such Option is for more than 2,000 shares, such Option
shall become exercisable as to 2,000 shares on the next, or each of the next two
annual meetings of shareholders of the Company, as the case may be. The Options
have a term of ten years and an exercise price payable in cash or shares of
Common Stock. The exercise price for Options granted under the Director Plan is
equal to the closing price for the Common Stock on the business day immediately
preceding the date of grant, as reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation. The following table sets forth certain information
concerning compensation paid in the fiscal year ended September 30, 1996 to the
Company's Chief Executive Officer and four most highly compensated executive

officers of the Company, whose total salary for such fiscal year exceeded
$100,000 (collectively, the "Named Executive Officers").

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

<TABLE>



<CAPTION>

NAME AND PRINCIPAL POSITION
<S>
David V. Mastran.........eeeiieeneennns
President and Chief Executive Officer
Raymond B. RUAAY. .. vviiiennnnenaeennnn
Chairman of the Board, Vice President
of the Company, President of
Consulting Services
Ilene R. Baylinson......coeieuiiineennnnn
President of Disability Services
Division
Lynn P. Davenport.........oiiiiieennnnn
President of Human Services Division
Susan D.
President of Systems Planning and
Integration Division
</TABLE>

ANNUAL
COMPENSATION (1)

SALARY
<C>
$311,538

300,000

181,731

212,884

184,358

BONUS (2)
<C>
$190,039

177,165

200,175

246,067

212,883

LONG-TERM
COMPENSATION AWARDS (4)

SECURITIES
UNDERLYING OPTIONS
<C>

13,750

13,200

13,200

(1) In accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
other compensation in the form of perquisites and other personal benefits
has been omitted in those instances where the aggregate amount of such

perquisites and other personal benefits constituted less than the

lesser of

$50,000 or 10% of the total amount of annual salary and bonus for the

executive officer for the year ended September 30,

(2) Bonuses earned for the year ended September 30,
Baylinson,
1996 for Mr.

30, 1996 for Mr.
Mastran,

Ruddy and Ms.
and on December 19,

1996.

1996 were paid on
on October 21, 1996 for Dr.

Davenport and Ms.

September

Pepin.

(3) The figures in this column represent the amount contributed by the Company

to the employee under the Company's 401 (k)

Plan.

(4) The figures in this column represent rights to purchase shares of Common
Stock at a price of $0.94 per share granted to certain Named Executive

Officers in the year ended September 30,

year ended September 30, 1995.

March 1996.

Option Grants.

1996 for performance during the
All such purchase rights were exercised in

The following table sets forth certain information

concerning options granted to the Named Executive Officers in the fiscal year

ended September 30, 1996.

OPTION GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
SHARES
UNDERLYING
OPTIONS
NAME GRANTED (1)
<S> <C>
David V. Mastran.........oeevueeeuenn -
Raymond B. Ruddy......ouveviiiiniineen. -
Ilene R. Baylinson........coeveuune.. 13,750
Lynn P. Davenport.........ueeeeueenenn. 13,200
Susan D. Pepin... ..o iiiineennnnn 13,200
</TABLE>

% OF TOTAL
OPTIONS
GRANTED TO
EMPLOYEES
IN FISCAL
YEAR 1996

<C>

10.9
10.5
10.5

EXERCISE
OR BASE EXPIRATION
PRICE DATE
<C> <C>
$ 0.94 3/31/96
0.94 3/31/96
0.94 3/31/96

(1) Options were granted in October 1995 and became exercisable in full upon

calculation of the exercise price,
share on September 30, 1995.

which was equal to the book value per

ALL OTHER
COMPENSATION (3)
<C>

$ 12,000

6,375

6,063

7,374

POTENTIAL
REALIZABLE
VALUE AT ASSUMED
ANNUAL RATES OF
STOCK
PRICE APPRECIATION
FOR
OPTION TERM (2)

5% 10%
<C> <C>
$319.18 $630.85

306.42 605.62
306.42 605.62



(2) Amounts represent hypothetical gains for the respective options if exercised
at the end of the option term. The gains are based on assumed rates of stock
price appreciation of 5% and 10% compounded annually from the date of grant
until the option expiration date. There was no public trading market for the
Common Stock at the option expiration date. Accordingly, these values have
been calculated based on $0.94 per share, the book value per share at
September 30, 1995 which is also the option exercise price. These
assumptions are not intended to forecast future appreciation of the
Company's stock price. The potential realizable value computation does not
take into account federal or state income tax consequences or option
exercises of appreciated stock. All options were exercised prior to their
expiration. The actual values realized upon exercise of these options is
disclosed in the table below captioned "Aggregate Option Exercises in Last
Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Option Values."

In November 1996, the Company granted options to certain Named Executive
Officers to purchase shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $1.46 per
share, as follows: Ms. Baylinson, 34,650 shares; Mr. Davenport, 110,000 shares;
and Ms. Pepin, 110,000 shares. These options were exchanged in January 1997 for
options granted under the Company's 1997 Equity Incentive Plan exercisable for
the same number of shares at the same price per share and which terminate (i) on
June 30, 1997, in the event that the initial public offering has not closed on
or prior to that date; or (ii) upon the earlier of (x) the termination of the
Named Executive Officer's employment with the Company or (y) January 31, 2007.

Option Exercises and Year-End Values. The following table sets forth
certain information concerning each exercise of stock options during the fiscal
year ended September 30, 1996 by each of the Named Executive Officers. None of
the Named Executive Officers held unexercised options at September 30, 1996.

AGGREGATE OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

AND FISCAL YEAR-END OPTION VALUES

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
NUMBER OF
SECURITIES VALUE OF
UNDERLYING UNEXERCISED
SHARES ACQUIRED VALUE UNEXERCISED OPTIONS IN-THE-MONEY OPTIONS
NAME ON EXERCISE (1) REALIZED (2) AT FISCAL YEAR-END AT FISCAL YEAR-END
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
David V. Mastran..........coceueeon. -= - 0 0
Raymond B. RUddy......cououeeiuenennn. -= -= 0 0
Ilene R. BaylinsonN......oeeeuenenn. 13,750 $3,075.00 0 0
Lynn P. Davenport...........ceue.. 13,200 2,952.00 0 0
Susan D. Pepin.....oueeiiiiinnnenn. 13,200 2,952.00 0 0
</TABLE>
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(1) The shares acquired by each Named Executive Officer upon the exercise of
options in the fiscal year ended September 30, 1996 are subject to
repurchase by the Company at current book value upon termination of the
Named Executive Officer's employment with the Company, with or without
cause, pursuant to the terms of a Stockholder Agreement that will terminate
upon the consummation of this offering.

(2) The options set forth in this table were exercised in March 1996. There was
no public trading market for the Common Stock at the option exercise date
and the shares of Common Stock acquired upon exercise were subject to
repurchase by the Company as described in Note (1) above. Accordingly, value
realized represents the difference between the book value per share of the
Company's Common Stock at March 31, 1996, the last day of the fiscal quarter
during which all of such options were exercised ($1.17), and the exercise
price of the option ($0.94), multiplied by the number of shares acquired on
exercise.

STOCK PLANS



1997 Equity Incentive Plan. The Company's 1997 Equity Incentive Plan (the
"Equity Plan") authorizes the grant of incentive stock options within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
"Code"), and non-qualified stock options for the purchase of an aggregate of
1,000,000 shares (subject to adjustment for stock splits and similar capital
changes) of Common Stock to employees of the Company and, in the case of
non-qualified stock options, to consultants of the Company or any Affiliate (as
defined in the Equity Plan) capable of contributing to the Company's
performance. Grants of options under the Equity Plan and all questions of
interpretations with respect to the Equity Plan are determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors has appointed the Compensation
Committee to administer the Equity Plan. As of the date of this Prospectus,
options to purchase 403,975 shares had been granted under the Equity Plan.

1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Company has also adopted an
employee stock purchase plan (the "Purchase Plan") under which employees may
purchase shares of Common Stock at a discount from fair market value. There are
500,000 shares of Common Stock reserved for issuance under the Purchase Plan. To
date, no shares of Common Stock have been issued under the Purchase Plan. The
Purchase Plan is intended to qualify as an employee stock purchase plan within
the meaning of Section 423 of the Code. Rights to purchase Common Stock under
the Purchase Plan are granted at the discretion of the Compensation Committee,
which determines the frequency and duration of individual offerings under the
Plan and the dates on which stock may be purchased. Eligible employees
participate voluntarily and may withdraw from any offering at any time before
stock is purchased. Participation terminates automatically upon termination of
employment. The purchase price per share of Common Stock in an offering is 85%
of the lesser of its fair market value at the beginning of the offering period
or on the applicable exercise date and may be paid through payroll deductions,
periodic lump sum payments or a combination of both. The Purchase Plan
terminates on January 31, 2007. No shares have been or will be issued under the
Purchase Plan until after the closing of this offering.

401 (K) PLAN

The Company has a 401 (k) savings and retirement plan (the "401 (k) Plan")
which covers substantially all employees of the Company. The 401 (k) Plan allows
participants to agree to certain salary deferrals which the Company allocates to
the participants' plan account. These amounts may not exceed statutorily
mandated annual limits set forth in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended. During the Company's most recent fiscal year, the Company matched
employee contributions to the 401 (k) Plan dollar-for-dollar for the first four
percent of the employee's gross salary contributed to the plan per calendar
year.

AGREEMENTS WITH EXECUTIVES

Before the closing of this offering, the Company will have entered into
Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction
Agreements with Dr. Mastran, Mr. Ruddy, Mr. Beliveau, Ms. Baylinson, Ms. Pepin
and Mr. Davenport (each, an "Executive Agreement") pursuant to which each
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individual will agree to serve as an officer of the Company. Pursuant to the
terms of the Executive Agreements, the officer will be entitled to a base salary
and a year end bonus consistent with the Company's past practices. The initial
base salary for each of Dr. Mastran, Mr. Ruddy, Mr. Beliveau, Ms. Baylinson, Ms.
Pepin and Mr. Davenport will be $350,000, $350,000, $237,500, $182,000, $220,000
and $250,000, respectively. The term of the employment obligation under each
Executive Agreement will be four years subject to the right of the Company to
terminate each officer if the officer breaches any material duty or obligation
to the Company or engages in certain other proscribed conduct. Each Executive
Agreement also will provide that the officer will not compete with the Company
for four years and will maintain the Company's trade secrets in strict
confidence. In addition, the Executive Agreements will restrict the ability of
each officer to sell or transfer shares of Common Stock of the Company held by
such officer during a four year period following this offering and will grant to
the officer certain piggyback registration rights with respect to such shares.
See "Shares Eligible for Future Sale."

In the Executive Agreements with each of Raymond B. Ruddy and David V.
Mastran, such executives will agree to vote their shares in favor of the
election of the other to the Board of Directors, as long as each of such
executives owns or controls at least 20% of the outstanding Common Stock. In
addition, Mr. Ruddy will agree in his Executive Agreement to vote his shares of
Common Stock in a manner consistent with instructions received from Dr. Mastran
during the four year period commencing on the closing of this offering.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The Compensation Committee was not in existence prior to January 1997.
Accordingly, Dr. Mastran and Messrs. Ruddy and Beliveau consulted one another
regarding executive officer compensation matters, with Dr. Mastran retaining
sole responsibility for any and all final decisions.



CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

In January 1995, the Company loaned to Russell A. Beliveau, President of
Government Operations Group and a Director of the Company, the aggregate
principal amount of $64,860, evidenced by an interest bearing promissory note.
The note was repaid in full in September 1996.

In May 1995, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with
Raymond B. Ruddy, under which the parties agreed that the Company will purchase
up to 2,878,040 of Mr. Ruddy's shares of Common Stock over a four year period at
a price per share equal to the book value of the stock on the date of sale,
subject to various conditions including an election by Mr. Ruddy after each
fiscal year end to demand such sale. This agreement will terminate upon
completion of this offering.

In March 1996, the Company loaned to Lynn P. Davenport, President of Human
Services Division, the aggregate principal amount of $85,000, evidenced by an
interest bearing promissory note. The note was repaid in full in January 1997.
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PRINCIPAL AND SELLING SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial
ownership of Common Stock immediately prior to this offering, and as adjusted to
reflect the sale of the shares offered hereby, by: (i) each person known by the
Company to own beneficially five percent or more of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock; (ii) each of the Company's directors; (iii) each of the Named
Executive Officers; (iv) each Selling Shareholder; and (v) all directors and
executive officers of the Company as a group. The Company believes that each
person named below has sole voting and investment power with respect to all
shares of Common Stock shown as beneficially owned by such holder, subject to
community property laws where applicable. Unless otherwise indicated, each of
the Company's shareholders has an address in care of the Company's principal
executive offices.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP
PRIOR TO BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP
OFFERING (1) (2) NUMBER AFTER OFFERING (1)
—————————————————————— OF SHARES e
NUMBER OF BEING NUMBER OF
NAME SHARES PERCENT OFFERED (2) SHARES PERCENT
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
David V. Mastran.....eee e oo enenennns 6,050,000 54.5% 911,276 5,138,724 37.2%
Raymond B. RUAAY. v eviiinininnenennn. 4,088,370 36.8 609,377 3,478,993 25.2
Russell A. BeliveauU.....cueeeeenennennn. 253,000 2.3 36,879 216,121 1.6
F. Arthur Nerret.........ciiiiiiinnnn. 4,125 * 0 4,125 *
Ilene R. BaylinsSON.....c.uoeeiuewnennnnn 48,400 * 7,056 41,344 *
Lynn P. Davenport...ee e e ieeenaeenns 343,200 3.1 50,027 293,173 2.1
Donna J. MuldoOn. .. vves et eeeenennnnnn 116,325 1.0 16,957 99,368 *
Susan D. Pepin......coiiiiiiiiinnenn. 288,200 2.6 42,010 246,190 1.8
Robert J. MUZZIO. .. i i e ieieennnnnn. 143,550 1.3 20,925 122,625 *
All Directors and Executive Officers
as a group (9 persons) .............. 11,335,170 99.6 1,694,507 9,640,663 68.4
William F. Dinneen........oueeeeeeeennn. 6,050 * 882 5,168 *
David A. HOGaN. .ot vt tn e innenenennns 11,000 * 1,604 9,396 *
Philip A. Richardson.................. 15,675 * 2,285 13,390 *
Robert L. SarNO....ieeieeeeneeneeeeennn 4,950 * 722 4,228 *
</TABLE>

* Less than 1%

(1) Applicable percentage of ownership prior to this offering is based upon
11,109,945 shares of Common Stock outstanding. For ownership after
completion of this offering, applicable percentage ownership is based on
13,809,945 shares of Common Stock outstanding and assumes no exercise of the
Underwriters' over-allotment option. Beneficial ownership is determined in
accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and
includes voting and investment power with respect to the shares shown as
beneficially owned. Number of shares of Common Stock deemed beneficially
owned by any person includes outstanding shares of Common Stock held by such
person and any shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of stock
options held by such person exercisable within 60 days. Upon the closing of
this offering, each of the following Selling Shareholders will beneficially
own fully exercisable options to purchase that number of shares of Common
Stock set forth after his or her respective name: Ms. Baylinson, 34,650; Mr.



Beliveau, 12,100; Mr. Davenport, 110,000; Mr. Dinneen, 2,750; Mr. Hogan,
6,050; Ms. Muldoon, 3,575; Mr. Muzzio, 3,575; Ms. Pepin, 110,000; Mr.
Richardson, 8,880; and Mr. Sarno, 2,200. All directors and executive
officers as a group are deemed to beneficially own an aggregate of 275,825
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options which will be
fully exercisable within 60 days.

(2) If the over-allotment option is exercised in full, each of the following
Selling Shareholders will sell that number of additional shares of Common
Stock set forth after his or her respective name equal to an aggregate of
660,000 shares of Common Stock: Ms. Baylinson, 2,773; Mr. Beliveau, 14,494;
Mr. Davenport, 19,661; Mr. Dinneen, 347; Mr. Hogan, 631; Dr. Mastran,
353,293; Ms. Muldoon, 6,664; Mr. Muzzio, 8,224; Ms. Pepin, 16,510; Mr.
Richardson, 898; Mr. Ruddy, 236,221; and Mr. Sarno, 284.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following summary describes the material terms of the Company's Common
Stock. Such summary is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, applicable
law and the provisions of the Company's Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation (the "Restated Articles") and the Company's Amended and Restated
By-Laws (the "Restated By-Laws"), each to be effective immediately prior to the
closing of this offering and both of which are included as exhibits to the
Registration Statement of which this Prospectus is a part. See "Additional
Information." The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of 30,000,000
shares of Common Stock, no par value per share, of which 11,109,945 shares were
outstanding immediately prior to this offering.

COMMON STOCK

Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share held on all
matters submitted to a vote of shareholders and do not have cumulative voting
rights. Accordingly, holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common
Stock entitled to vote in any election of directors may elect all of the
directors standing for election. Holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive
ratably such dividends, if any, as may be declared by the Board of Directors out
of funds legally available therefor. Upon the liquidation, dissolution or
winding-up of the Company, holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive
ratably the net assets of the Company available for distribution after the
payment of all debts and other liabilities of the Company. Holders of Common
Stock have no preemptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights. The
outstanding shares of Common Stock are, and the shares offered hereby will be,
when issued and paid for, fully paid and nonassessable. The rights, preferences
and privileges of holders of Common Stock are subject to, and may adversely be
affected by, the rights of holders of shares of any series of Preferred Stock
that the Company may authorize, designate and issue in the future.

Prior to this offering the outstanding Common Stock was held of record by
21 shareholders. After giving effect to the issuance of the shares of Common
Stock offered by the Company (assuming no exercise of the Underwriters'
overallotment option), there will be 13,809,945 shares of Common Stock
outstanding, plus an additional 403,975 shares of Common Stock issuable upon
exercise of options exercisable upon the closing of the offering.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

The Restated Articles limit the liability of the Company's directors and
officers to the maximum extent permitted by Virginia law. Thus, the directors
and officers of the Company shall not be personally liable to the Company or its
shareholders for any breach of any duty based upon any act or omission, except
for an act or omission; (i) resulting from such person's willful misconduct; or
(ii) in knowing violation of criminal law or any federal or state securities
law.

ANTI-TAKEOVER PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BY-LAWS

The Restated Articles prohibit the Company's shareholders from taking any
action, or consenting to any action, by unanimous written consent without a
meeting. The Company's Restated Articles also provide that the directors of the
Company shall be classified into three classes, with staggered three-year terms.
See "Management -- Board of Directors." Any director may be removed only for
cause upon the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the shares entitled to
vote for the election of directors.

The Company's Restated By-Laws provide that for nominations for the Board
of Directors or for other business to be properly brought by a shareholder
before a meeting of shareholders, the shareholder must first have given timely
notice thereof in writing to the Chairman of the Board, if any, the President or
the Secretary of the Company. To be timely, a notice must be delivered to or
mailed and received not less than 45 days before the meeting of the
shareholders; provided, however, that if less than 60 days notice or prior
public disclosure of the date of the meeting is given to shareholders, notice by
the shareholder, to be timely, must be received no later than the close of



business on the 15th day following the day on which such notice or public
disclosure of the meeting date was made. The notice must contain, among other
things, certain information
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about the shareholder delivering the notice and, as applicable, background
information about each nominee or a description of the proposed business to be
brought before the meeting. The Company's Restated By-Laws also provide that
special meetings of shareholders may be called only by the President or a
majority of the Board of Directors of the Company. These provisions could have
the effect of delaying, until the next annual shareholders meeting, holder
actions that are favored by the holders of a majority of the outstanding voting
securities of the Company.

The foregoing provisions could have the effect of making it more difficult
for a third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third party from acquiring,
control of the Company.

ANTI-TAKEOVER PROVISIONS OF VIRGINIA LAW

Restrictions on Affiliated Transactions. The Virginia Stock Corporation
Act (the "VSCA") requires the approval of certain material transactions (an
"Affiliated Transaction") between a Virginia corporation and any beneficial
holder of more than 10% of any class of its outstanding voting shares (an
"Interested Shareholder") by the other holders of voting shares. Affiliated
Transactions include any merger, share exchange or material disposition of
corporate assets not in the ordinary course of business involving an Interested
Shareholder, any dissolution of the corporation proposed by or on behalf of an
Interested Shareholder, or any reclassification, including reverse stock splits,
recapitalizations or mergers of the corporation with its subsidiaries which
increases the percentage of voting shares owned beneficially by an Interested
Shareholder by more than 5%.

These provisions were designed to deter certain takeovers of Virginia
corporations. In addition, the statute provides that, by affirmative vote of a
majority of the voting shares other than shares owned by any Interested
Shareholder, a corporation can adopt an amendment to its articles of
incorporation or bylaws providing that the Affiliated Transactions provisions
shall not apply to the corporation. On February 2, 1997, the Company, by action
of its shareholders, adopted such an amendment to its Articles of Incorporation.
The amendment will become effective eighteen months after the date of its
adoption. Any subsequent amendment eliminating the election not to be governed
by this statute would not restrict an Affiliated Transaction between the Company
and an Interested Shareholder existing at the time of such subsequent amendment.

Voting Restrictions Arising from Control Share Acquisitions. The VSCA also
contains provisions governing "Control Share Acquisitions." These provide that
shares of a Virginia public issuer acquired in a transaction that would cause
the voting strength of the acquiring person and its associates to meet or exceed
any of three thresholds (20%, 33 1/3% or 50%) have no voting rights unless
granted by a majority vote of shares not owned by the acquiring person or any
officer or employee-director of the Virginia public issuer. An acquiring person
may require the Virginia public issuer to hold a special meeting of shareholders
to consider the matter within 50 days of the request. The Company has "opted
out" of the Control Share Acquisitions provisions.

Fiduciary Duty of Directors. The provisions of the VSCA governing
Affiliated Transactions and those governing Control Share Acquisitions
explicitly provide a statutory standard of care for directors, which applies to
all aspects of a Board's actions in responding to a tender offer. Specifically,
the VSCA states that a director shall discharge his duties as a director in
accordance with his good faith business judgment of the best interests of the
corporation, and, in determining the best interests of the corporation, a
director may consider the possibility that those interests may best be served by
the continued independence of the corporation.

TRANSFER AGENT

The transfer agent and registrar for the Common Stock is American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company.
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Upon completion of this offering, the Company will have 13,809,945 shares
of Common Stock outstanding, assuming no exercise of the Underwriters'
over-allotment option or of any other outstanding options, warrants or other
rights to purchase Common Stock. Of these shares, the 4,400,000 shares sold in
this offering will be freely tradable, without restriction or further
registration under the Securities Act, except for shares purchased by
"affiliates"™ of the Company as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the
Securities Act. In general, affiliates include directors, executive officers and
holders of 10% or more of the outstanding Common Stock.



The remaining 9,409,945 outstanding shares of Common Stock are owned by
existing shareholders. In addition, a total of 403,975 shares of Common Stock
are issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable upon the
closing of this offering. All such shares, and any shares issued upon exercise
of such options are deemed "Restricted Shares" under Rule 144. These may not be
resold, except pursuant to an effective registration statement or an applicable
exemption from registration. Upon expiration of the 180 day lock-up agreements
described below, all such shares will be eligible for sale under Rules 144 and
701.

In general, under Rule 144, as amended on April 29, 1997, a person (or
persons whose shares are aggregated), including an affiliate, who has
beneficially owned Restricted Shares for at least one year from the later of the
date such Restricted Shares were acquired from the Company and (if applicable)
the date they were acquired from an affiliate, is entitled to sell, within any
three-month period, a number of shares that does not exceed the greater of 1% of
the then outstanding shares of Common Stock or the average weekly trading volume
in the public market during the four calendar weeks preceding such sale. Since
the Restricted Shares were acquired in connection with the shareholder's
employment pursuant to an exemption from registration under Rule 701 of the
Securities Act, but for the lock-up agreements discussed below, such Restricted
Shares would be eligible for sale under Rule 144 commencing 90 days after the
effective date of this offering regardless of when such Restricted Shares were
acquired. Except in the case of Restricted Shares held by persons other than
affiliates for more than two years, sales under Rule 144 are also subject to
certain requirements as to the manner of sale. In addition, sales of Restricted
Shares and any other shares of Common Stock held by affiliates under Rule 144
are subject to notice of sale, the availability of public information concerning
the Company and volume limitations.

The Company's directors and executive officers and its existing
shareholders have agreed that they will not, without the prior consent of
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation offer to sell, sell,
contract to sell, grant any options to sell or otherwise dispose of or require
the Company to file with the Commission a registration statement under the Act
to register any shares of Common Stock during the 180-day period following the
effective date of the Registration Statement. In addition, pursuant to the
Executive Agreements, Dr. Mastran, Mr. Ruddy, Mr. Beliveau, Ms. Baylinson, Ms.
Pepin and Mr. Davenport have agreed for the four year period commencing at the
closing of this offering not to offer, sell, assign, grant a participation in,
pledge or otherwise transfer any of their respective shares of Common Stock of
the Company without the prior written consent of the Company other than: (i) to
certain permitted transferees; (ii) as may be required by applicable federal or
state law or regulation; or (iii) pursuant to a registration of such shares.
Because these agreements will be between the Company and each executive officer
and may be waived by the Company at any time, investors should not rely on the
stock restrictions contained therein.

At the completion of this offering, Dr. Mastran, Mr. Ruddy, Mr. Beliveau,
Ms. Baylinson, Ms. Pepin and Mr. Davenport (the "Rightsholders"), will be
entitled to certain piggyback rights with respect to registration under the
Securities Act, for resale to the public, of an aggregate of 9,414,545 shares of
Common Stock (including 266,750 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of
outstanding stock options exercisable upon the closing of this offering)
(collectively, the "Registrable Shares") under the terms of each Rightsholder's
Executive Agreement with the Company. If the Company proposes to register shares
of Common Stock in an underwritten offering under the Securities Act, the
Rightsholders will be entitled to include Registrable Shares in such
registration, subject to certain conditions and limitations, which include the
right of the managing underwriter of any such offering to exclude Registrable
Shares from such registration;
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provided, however, that the Registrable Shares shall not be reduced to less than
an amount equal to 25% of the total number of shares to be registered.

The Company plans to file registration statements under the Securities Act
to register 1,000,000, 100,000 and 500,000 shares of Common Stock issuable under
the Equity Plan, the Director Plan and the Stock Purchase Plan, respectively.
Upon registration, such shares are eligible for immediate resale upon exercise,
subject, in the case of affiliates, to the volume and notice requirements of
Rule 144.

No prediction can be made as to the effect, if any, that sales of
additional shares or the availability of such additional shares for sale will
have on the market price of the Common Stock. No assurance can be given,
however, that sales of substantial amounts of Common Stock in the public market
will not have an adverse impact on the market price for the Common Stock. See
"Risk Factors -- Shares Eligible for Future Sale."
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UNDERWRITING

Subject to certain terms and conditions of the Underwriting Agreement, the
underwriters named below (the "Underwriters"), for whom Donaldson, Lufkin &
Jenrette Securities Corporation and Lehman Brothers Inc. are acting as
Representatives (the "Representatives"), have severally agreed to purchase from
the Company and the Selling Shareholders, and the Company and the Selling
Shareholders have agreed severally to sell to each of the Underwriters, the
number of shares of Common Stock (the "Shares") set forth opposite their
respective names at the initial public offering price per share less the
underwriting discounts and commissions set forth on the cover of this
Prospectus.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
NUMBER OF
UNDERWRITERS SHARES
<S> <C>
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation............coiiiiinino..
Lehman Brothers InC. ..ttt ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt et eenneeeeeennneeeeenns
A = 4,400,000

</TABLE>

The Underwriting Agreement provides that the obligations of the several
Underwriters to purchase the Shares are subject to approval of certain legal
matters by their counsel and to certain other conditions. If any of the Shares
are purchased by the Underwriters pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the
Underwriters are obligated to purchase all Shares (other than those covered by
the over-allotment option described below).

The Company and the Selling Shareholders have been advised by the
Underwriters that they propose to offer the Shares to the public initially at
the price to the public set forth on the cover page of this Prospectus and to
certain dealers at such price, less a concession not in excess of $ per
Share. The Underwriters may allow, and such dealers may re-allow, a concession
not in excess of $ per Share to certain other dealers. After this offering,
the offering price and other selling terms may be changed by the Underwriters.

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, certain Selling Shareholders have
granted to the Underwriters an option, exercisable not later than 30 calendar
days from the date of the Underwriting Agreement, to purchase up to an aggregate
660,000 of additional Shares at the initial offering price set forth on the
cover page of this Prospectus, less the underwriting discounts and commissions,
solely to cover over-allotments.

To the extent that the Underwriters exercise such option, each of the
Underwriters will have a firm commitment to purchase approximately the same
percentage of the option shares as the number of Shares to be purchased by it
shown in the above table bears to the total number of Shares shown in the above
table, and the Selling Shareholders will be obligated, pursuant to the option,
to sell such shares to the Underwriters. The Underwriters may exercise such
option only to cover over-allotments made in connection with the sale of the
Shares. If purchased, the Underwriters will sell such additional 660,000 shares
on the same terms as those on which the Shares are being offered.

The Underwriting Agreement contains covenants of indemnity among the
Underwriters, the Company and the Selling Shareholders against certain civil
liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

The Company and each of its directors, executive officers, shareholders and
optionholders who will own in the aggregate 9,813,920 shares of Common Stock
after this offering, including 403,975 shares of Common Stock issuable upon
exercise of outstanding stock options exercisable upon the closing of this
offering
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(assuming no exercise of the Underwriters' over-allotment option), each have
agreed that during the 180-day period after the date of this Prospectus they
will not, without the prior written consent of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
Securities Corporation, sell, offer to sell, contract to sell, grant any options
to purchase or otherwise dispose of any shares of Common Stock or any securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Common Stock, other than the
Shares, except that the Company may issue shares upon the exercise of stock
options granted prior to the execution of the Underwriting Agreement, and may
grant additional options under the Equity Plan, provided that, without the prior
written consent of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, such
options shall not be exercisable during such period.

In connection with this offering, the Underwriters have advised the Company
that, pursuant to Regulation M under the Exchange Act, certain persons



participating in this offering may engage in transactions that stabilize,
maintain or otherwise affect the price of the Common Stock. Specifically, the
Underwriters may overallot this offering, creating a syndicate short position.
In addition, the Underwriters may bid for and purchase shares of Common Stock in
the open market to cover syndicate short positions or to stabilize the price of
the Common Stock. Finally, the underwriting syndicate may reclaim selling
concessions from syndicate members in this offering, if the syndicate
repurchases previously distributed Common Stock in syndicate covering
transactions, in stabilization transactions or otherwise. Any of these
activities may stabilize or maintain the market price of the Common Stock above
independent market levels. The Underwriters have advised the Company that such
transactions may be effected on the New York Stock Exchange or otherwise and, if
commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

The Representatives have informed the Company and the Selling Shareholders
that the Underwriters do not intend to confirm sales to any discretionary
accounts without prior specific written approval of the client.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for the shares of
Common Stock. The initial public offering price will be negotiated among the
Company, the Selling Shareholders and the Representatives. Among the factors to
be considered in determining the initial public offering price of the Common
Stock, in addition to prevailing market conditions, are the Company's historical
performance, estimates of the business potential and earnings prospects of the
Company, an assessment of the Company's management and the consideration of the
above factors in relation to market valuations of companies in related
businesses.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of Common Stock offered hereby will be passed
upon for the Company by Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts. Certain legal
matters in connection with this offering will be passed upon for the
Underwriters by Winston & Strawn, Chicago, Illinois.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of the Company as of September 30, 1995 and 1996
and for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 1996 included
in this Prospectus and Registration Statement have been audited by Ernst & Young
LLP, independent auditors, as set forth in their report thereon appearing
elsewhere herein, and are included in reliance on such report given upon the
authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
"Commission") a Registration Statement on Form S-1 (the "Registration
Statement™) under the Securities Act, with respect to the shares of Common Stock
offered hereby. This Prospectus, which constitutes part of the Registration
Statement, does not contain all of the information set forth in the Registration
Statement, certain parts of which are omitted in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the Commission. For further information with respect to the
Company and the Common Stock, reference is made to the Registration Statement
and the exhibits and schedules filed therewith. This Prospectus contains
accurate summaries of the material terms
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of certain contracts or other documents filed as exhibits to the Registration
Statement. Such summaries are qualified in all respects by reference to the
copies of such contracts or other documents filed as exhibits to the
Registration Statement. A copy of the Registration Statement may be inspected
without charge at the principal office of the Commission, 450 Fifth Street,
N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549, and copies of all or any part thereof may be
obtained from the Commission upon the payment of certain fees prescribed by the
Commission. Such reports and other information can also be reviewed through the
Commission's Web site on the Internet (http://www.sec.gov).

"Helping Government Serve the People" and MAXSTAR are trademarks of the
Company. All other trademarks and registered trademarks used in this Prospectus
are the property of their respective owners.
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F-1

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors
MAXIMUS, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of MAXIMUS, Inc. as of
September 30, 1995 and 1996, and the related statements of income, changes in
redeemable common stock and retained earnings, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended September 30, 1996. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of MAXIMUS, Inc. at September
30, 1995 and 1996, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended September 30, 1996, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Washington, D.C.
February 7, 1997

F-2
MAXIMUS, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
SEPTEMBER 30, PRO FORMA
————————————————— MARCH 31, MARCH 31,
1995 1996 1997 1997
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED --
NOTE 3)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. ... u ittt it teneeneeneenns $ 2,502 $ 2,326 $ 5,886 $ 5,886
Short-term investments. ... ..ottt nneeeenennns -= 1,007 1,007 1,007
Accounts receivable, Net. ...ttt ettt eennnnnns 15,941 25,352 30,638 30,638
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings..... 776 2,949 5,531 5,531
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.............. 354 605 870 870
Total CUrrent aSSelS ..ttt ittt ittt eeonneeneeens 19,573 32,239 43,932 43,932
Property and equipment at cost:
T oL 662 662 662 662
Building and improvements..........ciieiiiiinennennennns 1,627 1,676 1,679 1,679
Office furniture and equipment........ouoii it ennn 913 1,206 1,336 1,336
Leasehold improvementsS. ...ttt in et ittt nenneenennns 188 188 188 188
3,390 3,732 3,865 3,865

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization........ (810) (1,096) (1,237) (1,237)



Total property and equipment, net............ ..., 2,580 2,636 2,628 2,628
Other assets. . it i i it i ii i 517 618 559 559
TOLALl S S St ittt ittt ettt et ettt ettt ieee et enaaeeeeenns $22,670 $35,493 $47,119 $47,119
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAVaAl L. i ittt ettt ettt et ettt $ 2,200 $ 2,043 $ 2,899 $ 2,899
Accrued compensation and benefits.............. ... .. ... 793 1,912 3,551 3,551
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings..... 3,118 5,208 6,760 6,760
Note payable. ...ttt e e e e et e e e -- -- 375 375
Income taxes pPayvable. . .ttt ettt ittt 41 19 156 156
Deferred 1NnCOME LaAXES e v uu et e eeeeeeeenneeeeeeeeennnn 237 357 387 1,350
Dividend pavable. ...ttt ittt ittt -= -= - 20,500
Total current liabilities.......c.iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininnnn. 6,389 9,539 14,128 35,597
Deferred 1NCOME LAXES . v v v it ittt et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennenenn -— -— - 4,584
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6, 9 and 10)
Redeemable common stock:
No par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 11,210,870,
11,453,145, 11,109,945 shares issued and
outstanding, at redemption amount................... 10,575 16,757 21,076 —-=
Shareholders' equity:
Common stock, no par value; 30,000,000 shares
authorized; 11,109,945 pro forma shares issued and
outstanding, at stated amount............. . i -— -— -— 11,838
Retained earnings (deficit) .......ciiiiiiiiinninnnn. 5,706 9,197 11,915 (4,900)
Total shareholders' eqUILY. ...ttt ittt 5,706 9,197 11,915 6,938
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity............... $22,670 $35,493 $47,119 $47,119
</TABLE>
See notes to financial statements.
F-3
MAXIMUS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
SIX MONTHS ENDED
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, MARCH 31,
1994 1995 1996 1996 1997
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
REVENUES s sttt ittt ettt ettt ettt $29,860 $51,963 $103,113 $39,586 $68,762
COSt Of FeVENUES . ¢ttt ittt ettt ee et eeeeeeeenns 21,716 36,071 78,429 28,989 52,857
Gross Profit. ... ettt 8,144 15,892 24,684 10,597 15,905
Selling, general and administrative
RPN S e ¢ v et ettt ettt et 6,979 9,078 13,104 5,886 8,101
Income from operations............ociuieinon. 1,165 6,814 11,580 4,711 7,744
Interest and other income..............ooo.n 80 169 264 99 148
Income before income taxesS.........ocvuveeuenn 1,245 6,983 11,844 4,810 7,892
Provision (benefit) for income taxes........ (5) 124 225 94 150
Net 1NCOME. v vttt ettt ettt et ettt eeennnnn S 1,250 S 6,859 $ 11,619 S 4,716 S 7,742
Pro forma data (Unaudited -- Note 3)
Historical income before income taxes..... $ 11,844 $ 7,892
Pro forma income tax expense.............. 4,738 3,157
Pro forma net incCome........uouuveemnnnnnnsn $ 7,106 S 4,735
Pro forma net income per share............ S 0.58 $ 0.39
Shares used in computing pro forma net
income per share....... oo, 12,246 12,167

</TABLE>

See notes to financial statements.
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MAXIMUS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN REDEEMABLE COMMON STOCK
AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
REDEEMABLE
COMMON RETAINED
STOCK EARNINGS
<S> <C> <C>
Balance at September 30, 1993 . ... ittt ittt ittt ettt e S 6,971 S 2,484

Purchase of redeemable common stock from employees.........ovueeeeennn (293) -

Issuance of redeemable common stock to employees.........iiieeieennnn. 148 --

J S o e Y@ 111 —-= 1,250

Adjustment to redemption value of redeemable common stock............ 63 (63)

S Corporation distributions......u.i ittt ittt ineeeteteeenneeeennn -- (750)
Balance at September 30, 1994 . ... . ittt ittt ittt tneeeteeeennaeeenns 6,889 2,921

Purchase of redeemable common stock from employees...........oeeevnnn (548) -=

Issuance of redeemable common stock to employees.......vviieeeennnnns 277 -

1 L s 15 o YT 111 - 6,859

Adjustment to redemption value of redeemable common stock............ 3,957 (3,957)

S Corporation distributions...... ...ttt ittt - (117)
Balance at September 30, 1005, . ... ittt ittt ittt ittt 10,575 5,706

Issuance of redeemable common stock to employees.......ivieeeeennnnns 229 -

1 L= s 15 o YT 111 - 11,619

Adjustment to redemption value of redeemable common stock............ 5,953 (5,953)

S Corporation distributions...... ...ttt ittt - (2,175)
Balance at September 30, 1006. ... .ttt ittt ittt 16,757 9,197

Purchase of redeemable common stock from employee.........vivuveeenennn (501) -

Compensation charge for stock options......... ... 150 -=

Net income (UNaudited) v v e ittt ittt ittt eeeeeeeeeonneeeeeneeenns —-= 7,742

Adjustment to redemption value of redeemable common stock............ 4,670 (4,670)

S Corporation distributions. ... vttt ittt ineeeeneenneeeennn -- (354)
Balance at March 31, 1997 (Unaudited) « v i it itttieeeeeeeenneneeeeeenns $ 21,076 $ 11,915
</TABLE>

See notes to financial statements.
F-5
MAXIMUS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
SIX MONTHS ENDED
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, MARCH 31,
1994 1995 1996 1996 1997
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net InCOmME. .ttt ittt ittt ittt i e $ 1,250 $ 6,859 $11,619 $ 4,716 S 7,742
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation........ouiiiiiiiiii.n. 172 168 307 122 141
[ o8 o 11 -- (22) -= 150

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net................ (3,162) (6,640) (9,411) (7,6606) (5,286)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess

Of PIllingsS. vttt it 195 1,587 (2,173) (1,543) (2,582)
Prepaid expenses and other current

ASSEES . vttt i i e e e e e e (166) 245 (251) (143) (265)
Other assets. ...ttt eineennnn (189) (124) (101) (158) 59
Accounts payable. ...ttt (271) 1,680 (157) 2,183 856
Accrued compensation and benefits....... 109 le6l 1,119 2,034 1,639
Billings in excess of costs and

estimated earnings........... o 2,405 (1,154) 2,090 1,538 1,552
Income taxes payable...........iiiieo.. (23) 41 (22) 58 137
Deferred income taAXES....eeweeeeeeeennnn (20) 62 120 - 30

Net cash provided by operating activities.... 311 2,879 3,118 1,141 4,173



CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment......... (317) (180) (348) (110)
Purchase of short-term investments......... -— -— (1,000) -—
Net cash used in investing activities........ (317) (180) (1,348) (110)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

S Corporation distributions................ (750) (117) (2,175) (58)
Redeemable common stock purchased.......... (24) (548) -= -
Redeemable common stock issued............. 148 277 229 223
Payment of note for purchase of redeemable

COMMON SEOCK . ¢ ittt et ettt ettt eeeeeeennn (135) (134) -— -

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities... ..ol i e (761) (522) (1,946) 165

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents. vttt e e e e (767) 2,177 (1706) 1,196
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of

V2S5 5 1,092 325 2,502 2,502
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year....... S 325 $ 2,502 $ 2,326 $ 3,698
</TABLE>

See notes to financial statements.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

MAXIMUS, Inc. (the "Company") provides a wide range of program management
and consulting services to federal, state and local government health and human
services agencies. The Company conducts its operations through two groups. The
Government Operations Group administers and manages government health and human
services programs, including welfare-to-work and job readiness, child support
enforcement, managed care enrollment and disability services. The Consulting
Group provides health and human services planning, information technology
consulting, strategic program evaluation, program improvement, communications
planning and assistance in identifying and collecting previously unclaimed
federal welfare revenues.

The Company operates predominantly in the United States. Revenues from
foreign-based projects were less than 10% for the year ended September 30, 1996.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a description of the Company's more significant accounting
policies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes, in particular, estimates used in the earnings recognition
process. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenues under various arrangements, generally
long-term contracts under which revenues are based on costs incurred plus a
negotiated fee, a fixed price or various performance-based criteria. Revenues
for cost-plus contracts are recorded as costs are incurred and include a pro
rata amount of the negotiated fee. Revenues on long-term fixed price and
performance-based contracts are recognized as costs are incurred. The timing of
billing to clients varies based on individual contracts and often differs from
the period of revenue recognition. These differences are included in costs and
estimated earnings in excess of billings and billings in excess of costs and
estimated earnings.

Management reviews the financial status of its contracts periodically and
adjusts revenues to reflect the current expectations on realization of costs and
estimated earnings in excess of billings. Provisions for estimated losses on
incomplete contracts are provided in full in the period in which such losses
become known. The Company has various fixed price and performance-based
contracts that may generate profit in excess of the Company's expectations. The



Company recognizes additional revenue and profit in these situations after
management concludes that substantially all of the contractual risks have been
eliminated, which generally is at task or contract completion.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
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Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments consist of interest bearing investments with
maturities of less than one year but greater than three months when purchased.
These investments are readily convertible to cash and are stated at fair value.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated using the
straight-line method based on estimated useful lives of 32 years for the
Company's building and between three and ten years for office furniture and
equipment. Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided using the
straight-line method over the lesser of the life of the improvement or the
remaining term of the lease.

Income Taxes

Effective October 1, 1993, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (SFAS 109). The
cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle was not material and is
included in the provision for income taxes for the year ended September 30,
1994. Under SFAS 109, deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based
on the difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and
liabilities using enacted rates expected to be in effect during the year in
which the differences reverse.

The Company and its shareholders have elected to be treated as an S
corporation under the Internal Revenue Code. Under the provisions of the tax
code, the Company's shareholders include their pro rata share of the Company's
income in their personal income tax returns. Accordingly, the Company was not
subject to federal and most state income taxes during the periods presented. The
Company currently anticipates completing an initial public offering of its
common stock in 1997 (the "IPO"), which will result in the termination of the
Company's S corporation status.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company considers the recorded value of its financial assets and
liabilities, which consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments, accounts receivable and accounts payable, to approximate the fair
value of the respective assets and liabilities at September 30, 1995 and 1996.

Interim Financial Information

The financial statements as of March 31, 1997 and for the six months ended
March 31, 1996 and 1997 are unaudited and have been prepared on the same basis
as the audited financial statements included herein. In the opinion of
management, the unaudited financial statements include all adjustments,
consisting only of normal recurring items, necessary to present fairly the
periods indicated. Results of operations for the interim period ended March 31,
1997 are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full fiscal year.

Recently Issued Financial Accounting Standards

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, was issued in October 1995. The Company will be
required to adopt the new standard for its fiscal year ending September 30,
1997. This standard establishes the fair-value-based method (the "FAS 123
Method") rather than the intrinsic value based method as the preferred
accounting methodology for stock-based compensation arrangements. Entities are
allowed to: (i) continue to use the intrinsic value based methodology in their
basic financial statements and provide in the footnotes pro forma net income and
earnings per share information as if the FAS 123 Method had been adopted; or
(ii) adopt the FAS 123 Method. The Company anticipates providing the required
disclosures in the Notes to Financial Statements.
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In February 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement
No. 128, Earnings per Share, which is required to be adopted on December 31,
1997. At that time, the Company will be required to change the method currently
used to compute earnings per share and to restate all prior periods. Under the
new requirements for calculating primary earnings per share, the dilutive effect
of stock options will be excluded. The impact is expected to result in an
increase in primary pro forma earnings per share for the year ended September
30, 1996 and the six months ended March 31, 1997 of $.02 and $.01 per share,
respectively.

3. PRO FORMA INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Pro Forma Balance Sheet

The pro forma balance sheet of the Company as of March 31, 1997 reflects
the declaration of a dividend payable to the shareholders, a reclassification of
redeemable common stock to reflect elimination of the Company's obligation to
purchase its common shares from the shareholders, and the net deferred tax
liability which would have been recorded by the Company if its S corporation
status was terminated at that date.

The Company will pay a dividend to its shareholders in connection with the
IPO. The dividend (estimated at $20,500) will be paid in part from available
cash and in part from proceeds of the offering.

Upon completion of the IPO, the Company's obligation to purchase common
shares from its shareholders will terminate. Accordingly, amounts classified as
redeemable common stock will be reclassified into shareholders' equity.

The pro forma net deferred tax liability represents the tax effect of the
cumulative differences between the financial reporting and income tax basis of
certain assets and liabilities as of March 31, 1997. The actual net deferred tax
liability recorded will be adjusted to reflect the effect of the Company's
operations for the period through the date immediately preceding the termination
of its S corporation status.

The Company's income currently taxable to its shareholders as an S
corporation has been determined under a cash basis of accounting through
September 30, 1996. In the year the Company completes the IPO, it will be
required to begin reporting its taxable income on an accrual basis. The
cumulative deferred tax obligation for the difference between cash and accrual
income will be settled over four years. The Company plans to elect the accrual
basis of accounting beginning October 1, 1996, and accordingly, one-fourth of
the taxable income related to the cash versus accrual accounting difference will
be allocated to the Company's shareholders. The significant items comprising the
Company's pro forma net deferred tax liability as of March 31, 1997 are as
follows:

<TABLE>
<S>
PRO FORMA DEFERRED TAX ASSETS-CURRENT:
Liabilities for costs deductible in future periods..........c.iiiiinenn..
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings............cciiiiiiin.

Total pro forma deferred tax @SSetS . ittt ittt eneeteieeeneeeeeennnens
PRO FORMA DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES-CURRENT:
Cash versus accrual aCCOUNtLING. @ttt ittt ittt ettt ittt et eeeenaeesennns
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings.........ciiiiiiienn..

Total pro forma deferred tax liabilities.......c..iiiiiiiiiiiiniineineennnnns
Pro forma net deferred tax liability-current.......... ..o iiiiieineennennnn
PRO FORMA DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY-NON-CURRENT:

Cash versus accrual aCCOUNTINg. ...ttt ittt ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeaeeann

Total pro forma net deferred tax liability........iiiiiiiiiiiiiineinnennnnnn



</TABLE>
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The pro forma retained earnings (deficit) of $4,900 results from the charge
to compensation expense related to stock options granted to employees. See
further discussion below under "Pro Forma Statements of Income."

Pro Forma Statements of Income

Upon

the closing of the IPO, the Company will terminate its status as an S

corporation and will be subject to federal and state income taxes thereafter.
Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma data shown on the statements of income
includes an adjustment to reflect income tax expense as if the Company had been
a C corporation at an estimated combined effective income tax rate of 40%.

In the period the IPO is completed the Company will recognize two
significant charges against income. As described above, completion of
will result in the termination of the Company's S corporation status,

the IPO
and the

Company will recognize the cumulative deferred tax liability at that time by a
charge against income. Based on the pro forma deferred tax liability as of March

31, 1997,

the one-time income statement charge would be approximately $5,553.

As discussed in Note 9, in January 1997 the Company issued options to

employees

to acquire the Company's common stock at a formula price based on book

value. Upon completion of the IPO, the Company will recognize a charge against
income for the difference between the IPO price and the formula price for all
options outstanding. Assuming an IPO price of $14.00 per share, the charge to
compensation expense would be approximately $4,900, net of the related income
tax benefit, if any.

Pro Forma Net Income Per Share

The pro forma net income per share presented in the accompanying statements

of income
beginning

have been computed giving effect to the assumed issuance, as of the
of the pro forma periods presented, of the number of shares of Common

Stock necessary to: (i) replace equity to be distributed as a result of the S
corporation dividend to the extent such amount exceeds earnings since April 1,

1996; and

(ii) give effect to options issued in January 1997 to purchase Common

Stock of the Company.

4. COSTS AND ESTIMATED EARNINGS ON UNCOMPLETED CONTRACTS

Uncompleted contracts consist of the following components:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
BALANCE SHEET
COSTS AND
ESTIMATED
EARNINGS IN
EXCESS OF BILLINGS
<S> <C>
September 30, 1995:
Costs and estimated earnings........oiiiiiiennnnnn. $ 29,702
= e I 4 Y 28,926
$ 776
September 30, 1996:
Costs and estimated earnings........oiiiiiiiennnnnn. $ 89,893
=3 e I 4 Y
</TABLE>

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings relate primarily to
performance-based contracts which provide for billings based on attainment of
results specified in the contract and differences between actual and provisional

CAPTION
BILLINGS IN
EXCESS OF COSTS
AND ESTIMATED
EARNINGS
<C>

$48,661
51,779

65,697



billing rates on cost-based contracts.
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5. CREDIT FACILITIES

The Company has a $10 million revolving line of credit with a bank for
borrowings and letters of credit. Borrowings under this line bear interest at
LIBOR plus 2% and are secured by the Company's accounts receivable. Borrowings
are limited to 90 percent of eligible accounts receivable. At September 30, 1995
and 1996, the Company had letters of credit outstanding amounting to $2,139 and
$1,210, respectively. There were no outstanding borrowings under the line of
credit facility. The Company is required to meet certain conditions on net worth
and to maintain certain financial ratios.

6. LEASES

The Company leases office space under various operating leases, the
majority of which contain clauses permitting cancellation upon certain
conditions. Terms of these leases provide for certain minimum payments as well
as increases in lease payments based upon the operating cost of the facility and
the consumer price index. Rent expense for the years ended September 30, 1994,
1995 and 1996 was $602, $1,150 and $2,282, respectively.

Minimum future payments under these leases are as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
<S> <C>
R $3,021
S 2,826
3 1,558
2000 . e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 801
220 565
Thereafter . vttt i i it it et it i ittt it 138
$8,909
</TABLE>

7. EMPLOYEE 401 (K) PLAN

The Company has a 401 (k) plan for the benefit of all employees who meet
certain eligibility requirements. In the year ended September 30, 1996, the
Company implemented a program to match employee contributions. The plan also
allows management to make discretionary contributions. The Company made no
contributions to the plan during the years ended September 30, 1994 and 1995.
During the year ended September 30, 1996, the Company contributed $574 to the
plan.

8. INCOME TAXES
The tax provision (benefit) consists of the following state taxes for those

states in which the Company, rather than the shareholders, is liable for income
taxes:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER
30,

1994 1995 1996
<S> <C> <C> <C>
CUXTENT TAX EXPEIMSE . v ittt ittt e et e e ettt e ee ettt eeeeeeeeaens $ 15 $ 62 $105
Deferred tax expense (benefit) ... ... iiiieiinnnnn (20) 62 120

S (5) $124 $225

</TABLE>

No federal income taxes have been recorded due to the Company's S
corporation status. Upon the closing of the IPO, the Company will terminate its
status as an S corporation and will be subject to federal and state income taxes
thereafter. In the period the IPO is completed, the Company will recognize the
cumulative deferred tax liability by a charge against income. Based on the pro
forma deferred tax liability as of March 31, 1997, the one-time income statement
charge would be approximately $5,553. See Note 3. Deferred tax
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liabilities resulting from temporary differences at September 30, 1995 and 1996
are primarily related to use of the cash basis of accounting for income taxes
reported in certain states and differences related to revenue recognition. Cash
paid for income taxes during the years ended September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996
was $67, $9 and $110, respectively.

9. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Redeemable Common Stock

The Shareholders' Agreement, dated January 1996, obligates the Company to
purchase all shares offered for sale by the Company's shareholders at a formula
price based on the book value of the Company. In addition, shareholders are
obligated to sell and the Company is obligated to purchase at the formula price
all of the shares owned by the shareholders upon the shareholder's death,
disability or termination of employment. Accordingly, the redemption obligation
is reflected as redeemable common stock in the accompanying balance sheets. The
Company has insurance polices totaling approximately $18,000 on the lives of its
two major shareholders that may be used to fund this obligation.

During 1994, the Company purchased shares of redeemable common stock at the
formula price in exchange for a note payable of $269. The note was paid in full
during 1994 and 1995. In January 1997, the Company purchased shares of
redeemable common stock at the formula price as of September 30, 1996 in
exchange for a note payable of $501, of which $126 was paid through March 31,
1997. In May 1997, the Company made an additional payment of $124 relating to
its purchase of these shares for the increase in the formula price through the
redemption date.

Agreement with Major Shareholder

In May 1995, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with one
of its shareholders. Under this agreement, the parties agreed that the Company
will purchase up to 2,878,040 of its shares owned by the shareholder over a four
year period, subject to various conditions including an election by the
shareholder after each fiscal year end to demand such sale. Under this
agreement, sales will be transacted at the formula price referred to above. This
agreement will terminate upon completion of the IPO.

Employee Stock Purchases and Options

The Company entered into agreements at various times with certain employees
that provided for the employee to purchase common stock of the Company at the
formula price. During the years ended September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996 the
Company sold 126,500, 231,000 and 242,275 shares, respectively, under these
arrangements.

In January 1997, the Company issued options to various employees to
purchase 403,975 shares of the Company's common stock at the formula price.
These options are exercisable at completion of the IPO. The options terminate on
June 30, 1997 in the event the IPO has not been completed by that date. If the
IPO is completed, the options will have a term of 10 years. These options were
granted in exchange for stock purchase rights awarded pursuant to certain
pre-existing compensation arrangements with certain of the Company's key
employees. The Company recorded compensation cost related to these options in
the amount of $150 in the six months ended March 31, 1997. In the period the IPO
is completed, the Company will recognize a charge against income for the
difference between the IPO price and the formula price for all options
outstanding. Assuming an IPO price of $14.00 per share, the charge to
compensation expense would be approximately $4,900, net of the related income
tax benefit, if any.

Stock Split
In December 1995, the Company effected a 10 for 1 stock split. On February
3, 1997, the Company's shareholders approved an amendment to the Company's
articles of incorporation to increase the number of
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authorized shares to 30,000,000, to eliminate the par value of common stock and
to effect an 11 for 1 split of the common stock. Amounts for all periods have
been adjusted to reflect the effects of these changes.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

On February 3, 1997, the Company was named as a third party defendant by
Network Six, Inc. ("Network Six") in a legal action brought by the State of
Hawaii against Network Six. Network Six alleges that the Company is liable to
Network Six on various grounds. The Company believes Network Six's claims are
without merit and intends to vigorously defend this action. The Company believes
this action will not have a material adverse effect on its financial condition
or results of operations and has not accrued for any loss related to this claim.

The Company also is involved in various other legal proceedings in the
ordinary course of its business. In the opinion of management, these proceedings
involve amounts that would not have a material effect on the financial position
or results of operations of the Company if such proceedings were disposed of
unfavorably.

DCAA Audits

A substantial portion of payments to the Company from U.S. Government
agencies is subject to adjustments upon audit by the Defense Contract Audit
Agency (DCAA). Audits through 1993 have been completed with no material
adjustments. In the opinion of management, the audits of subsequent years are
not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial
position or results of operations.

11. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant
concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of accounts receivable and costs
and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts. To date,
these financial instruments have been derived from contract revenues earned
primarily from federal, state and local agencies located in the United States.
At September 30, 1995 and 1996, $8,260 and $14,815, respectively, of the
Company's accounts receivable were due from the U.S. Government. Revenues under
contracts with various agencies of the United States Government were $7,480),
$17,851 and $61,317 for the years ended September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996,
respectively. Of these amounts, $2,943, $14,314 and $56,530 for the years ended
September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996, respectively, were revenues of the government
operations segment. As a result of legislation that eliminated certain Social
Security Administration program benefits, a contract with the U.S. Government
that contributed $56.5 million of contract revenues for the year ended September
30, 1996 was terminated by the United States Government. No revenues are
expected to be earned on this contract after March 31, 1997.
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12. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The following table provides certain financial information for each
business segment:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1994 1995 1996
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Revenues:
Government OperationNsS. .....ue e iietieneeneeneeneenns $14,723 $31,265 $ 77,211
LG} o ¥ B i 1 o Y 15,137 20,698 25,902
$29,860 $51,963 $103,113
Income (loss) from operations:
Government OperationNsS. .. ..o e inetieneeneeneeneenns $(1,878) $ 1,636 $ 4,936
CONSULEING . ot ittt e ettt e e et e et e e e 3,043 5,178 6,644
$ 1,165 $ 6,814 $ 11,580
Identifiable assets:
Government OperationNsS. .. ...ue e ineteneeneeneeneenns $ 5,642 $ 8,962 $ 19,369
CONSULEING .ttt ittt ettt e e et e et e e e 6,488 8,416 9,910
(@73 <o B 2t o 3,417 5,292 6,214



Capital expenditures:

Government Operations.......oiiiiiiiiiineiiennnnnens
LG} o B i 1 o Y
[ sy T B et

Depreciation and amortization:

Government Operations..........oiiiiiiiininnenennns
(@703 o 1= B 5 o Y
[0 s T B =

</TABLE>

NO DEALER, SALESPERSON OR ANY OTHER PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY

$15,547 $22,670 $ 35,493
$ 203 $ 2 $ 4
14 19 73

100 159 271

s 317 $ 180 $ 348
$ 15 $ 5 $ 99
17 17 27

140 146 181

s 172 $ 168 $ 307

INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS
PROSPECTUS AND, IF GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATIONS MUST NOT

BE RELIED UPON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE COMPANY OR ANY OF THE
UNDERWRITERS. THIS PROSPECTUS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL OR A

SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY THE SHARES BY ANYONE IN ANY JURISDICTION IN
WHICH SUCH OFFER OR SOLICITATION IS NOT AUTHORIZED, OR IN WHICH THE PERSON

MAKING THE OFFER OR SOLICITATION IS NOT QUALIFIED TO DO SO, OR TO ANY PERSON TO
WHOM IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE SUCH OFFER OR SOLICITATION. NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF

THIS PROSPECTUS NOR SALE MADE HEREUNDER SHALL CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THE
INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS CORRECT AS OF ANYTIME SUBSEQUENT TO ITS DATE.
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PART II
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS
ITEM 13. OTHER EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION

The estimated expenses to be paid by the Registrant in connection with this
offering are as follows:

<TABLE>
<S>
SEC registration fee. ... .ttt e et ettt
New York Stock Exchange Listing fee.. ...ttt itteetteieennaenens
NASD filing fee and EXPENSES .t i it ittt it it e et et eaeeneeeeeneeeeeeneenenens
Blue SKY fEES and EXPENSE S . v v i ittt ittt etet et oeenaeeseeenneeseseenaesssnnns
Legal fees and eXPENSES . i ittt ettt tneneeeteeenaeeeeeenneeeeeennneeesenns
Accounting fees and EXPEINSE S . ittt it ittt ettt eneeeseeenasseeeennesseesnnees
Printing and engraving eXPeNSES .« v vt i ettt it ettt eneeneseeeneenneennns
Transfer Agent and Registrar fees. ...ttt ittt etenenneeenennns
MiSCEllanEOUS EXPENSES . v vt v vttt et e et et ateeaeeaeeneeeeseeeseseeeeneenenns

</TABLE>

All of the above figures, except the SEC registration fee and NASD filing
fee, are estimates.

ITEM 14. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Registrant's Restated Articles of Incorporation provide that the
Registrant's directors and officers shall be indemnified to the full extent
required or permitted by the VSCA, including the advance of expenses, and that
other employees and agents shall be indemnified to such extent as shall be
authorized by the Board of Directors or the Bylaws of the Registrant and as
shall be permitted by law.

Sections 13.1-697 and 13.1-702 of the VSCA permit the Registrant to
indemnify an individual made party to a proceeding because he was a director,
officer, employee or agent of the Registrant against liability incurred in the
proceeding if (1) he conducted himself in good faith, (2) he believed, in the
case of conduct in his official capacity, that such conduct was in the
Registrant's best interests, or, in all other cases, that such conduct was at
least not opposed to the Registrant's best interests, and (3) he had no
reasonable cause to believe, in the case of a criminal proceeding, that his
conduct was unlawful; provided, however, no indemnification shall be permitted
(1) in connection with a proceeding by or in the right of the Registrant in
which the individual is adjudged liable to the Registrant, or (2) in connection
with any other proceeding charging improper personal benefit to such individual
in which the individual is adjudged liable on the basis that personal benefit
was improperly received by such individual. Under sections 13.1-698 and 13.1-702
of the VSCA, unless limited by its Articles of Incorporation, the Registrant
shall indemnify a director or officer who entirely prevails in the defense of
any proceeding to which he was a party because he is or was a director or
officer against reasonable expenses incurred.

The Registrant carries Directors' and Officers' insurance which covers its
directors and officers against certain liabilities they may incur when acting in
their capacity as directors or officers of the Registrant.

ITEM 15. RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

(a) Issuances of Common Stock.

Since February 1, 1994, the Registrant has issued and sold the unregistered
securities described below. In each case, the number of shares issued and sold
reflects a 10-for-1 stock split effected in December 1995 and an 1l-for-1 stock
split effected February 3, 1997.

On October 1, 1994 the Registrant sold 110,000 shares of Common Stock to
Gene DeLucia for an aggregate purchase price of $64,860.

<C>
$ 24,546
120,000
8,600
15,000
275,000
150,000
150, 000
10,000
116,854



II-1

In October 1994, the Registrant sold 77,000 shares of Common Stock to Susan
D. Pepin for a purchase price of $45,402.

In January 1995 and October 1995, the Registrant sold 110,000 and 11,000
shares of Common Stock to Russell A. Beliveau for purchase prices of $64,860 and
$10,376, respectively.

In January 1996, the Registrant sold an aggregate of 121,275 shares of
Common Stock to certain of the Registrant's employees for an aggregate purchase

price of $114,438.

(b)

Grants and Exercises of Stock Options.

In January 1997, pursuant to the Registrant's 1997 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "Plan"), the Registrant granted to certain employees options to purchase an
aggregate of 403,975 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price per share of
$1.46 exercisable on the closing of the initial public offering. The options

expire (1)

on June 30, 1997, in the event that the initial public offering has

not closed on or prior to that date, or (ii) the earlier of (x) the termination
of each respective option holder's employment with the Registrant or (y) ten
years from the date of issuance. All of such options are outstanding and none
have been exercised, and 596,025 shares of Common Stock remain available for
future grant under the Plan.

No underwriter was engaged in connection with the foregoing sales of

securities.

Sales of Common Stock to employees have been made in reliance upon

the exemption for the registration requirements afforded by Section 4(2) of the
Securities Act and Rule 701 thereunder as sales of an issuer's securities
pursuant to a written contract relating to the compensation of such individuals.
The Registrant has reason to believe that all of the foregoing purchasers were
familiar with or had access to information concerning the operations and
financial condition of the Registrant, and all of those individuals acquired
shares for investment and not with a view to the distribution thereof. At the
time of issuance, all of the foregoing shares of Common Stock were deemed to be
restricted securities for the purposes of the Securities Act, and the
certificates representing such securities bore legends to that effect.

ITEM 16. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) List of Exhibits

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>
EXHIBIT
NUMBER EXHIBIT
<C> <S>

*1.1 Form of Underwriting Agreement.

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant as amended through February 10, 1997.

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Registrant, as proposed
to be amended and restated.

3.3 By-laws of the Registrant.

3.4 Form of Amended and Restated By-laws of Registrant, as proposed to be amended and
restated.

*4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate.

*5.1 Opinion of Palmer & Dodge LLP with respect to the legality of the securities being
registered.

10.1 1997 Equity Incentive Plan.

10.2 1997 Director Stock Option Plan.

10.3 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

10.4 Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and David V. Mastran to be executed at the closing
of the offering.

10.5 Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and Raymond B. Ruddy to be executed at the closing
of the offering.

10.6 Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and Rusell A. Beliveau to be executed at the closing
of the offering.

</TABLE>
I1-2

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

EXHIBIT

NUMBER EXHIBIT

<C> <S>

10.7 Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement

by and between the Registrant and Susan D. Pepin to be executed at the closing of



the offering.

10.8 Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and Ilene R. Baylinson to be executed at the closing

of the offering.

10.9 Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and Lynn P. Davenport to be executed at the closing

of the offering.

10.10 Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between the Registrant and each of the

directors of the Registrant.

10.11 Letter Agreement dated June 29, 1995, as amended by the Letter Amendment dated
April 10, 1996, between the Registrant and Crestar Bank with respect to a $10
million line of credit, and the Letter Amendment dated February 10, 1997.

10.12 California Options Project Contract, dated October 1, 1996, by and between the
Registrant and the Department of Health Services of the State of California.

*11 Statement re Computation of Pro Forma Net Income Per Share.
*23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors.
*23.2 Consent of Palmer & Dodge LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1).
24 Powers of Attorney.
*27 Financial Data Schedule.
</TABLE>

* Filed herewith.

All other exhibits previously filed.
(b) Financial Statement Schedules
None.

ITEM 17. UNDERTAKINGS

(a) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities
Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the
Registrant pursuant to the provisions described under "Item
14 -- Indemnification of Directors and Officers" above, or otherwise, the
Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange
Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the
Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for
indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the
Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling
person of the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or
proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in
connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in
the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent,
submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such
indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities
Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

(b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) to provide to the underwriters at the closing specified in the
underwriting agreement, certificates in such denominations and registered
in such names as required by the underwriter to permit prompt delivery to
each purchaser;

(2) that, for purposes of determining any liability under the
Securities Act, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed
as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and
contained in a form of prospectus filed by the Registrant pursuant to Rule
424 (b) (1) or (4) or 497 (h)

II-3

under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration
statement as of the time it was declared effective; and

(3) that, for purposes of determining any liability under the
Securities Act, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of
prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to
the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that
time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

I1-4
SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the
Registrant has duly caused this Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement to

be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the
city of McLean, Commonwealth of Virginia, on the 15th day of May, 1997.



MAXIMUS, INC.

By: /s/ F. ARTHUR NERRET

F. Arthur Nerret
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, this Amendment No. 2 to
the Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the
capacities indicated.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
<S> <C> <C>
DAVID V. MASTRAN* President, Chief Executive May 15, 1997
e Officer and Director (Principal
David V. Mastran Executive Officer)
RAYMOND B. RUDDY* Chairman of the Board of May 15, 1997
— e Directors

Raymond B. Ruddy

/s/ F. ARTHUR NERRET Chief Financial Officer May 15, 1997
e e i (Principal Financial and

F. Arthur Nerret Accounting Officer)

RUSSELL A. BELIVEAU* Director May 15, 1997

Russell A. Beliveau

LYNN P. DAVENPORT* Director May 15, 1997
Lynn P. Davenport
ROBERT J. MUZZIO* Director May 15, 1997

Robert J. Muzzio

MULDOON* Director May 15, 1997
Muldoon

PEPIN* Director May 15, 1997
Pepin

Susan D.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION
EXHIBI

NUMBER

<C>
*1.
3.
3.

3.
3.

*4.
*5.

10.
10.
10.
10.

>
T

fa

=

B w N e

F. Arthur Nerret
Attorney-in-fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX

EXHIBIT
<S>
Form of Underwriting Agreement.
Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant as amended through February 10, 1997.
Form of Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Registrant, as proposed
to be amended and restated.
By-laws of the Registrant.
Form of Amended and Restated By-laws of Registrant, as proposed to be amended and
restated.
Specimen Common Stock Certificate.
Opinion of Palmer & Dodge LLP with respect to the legality of the securities being
registered.
1997 Equity Incentive Plan.
1997 Director Stock Option Plan.
1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and David V. Mastran to be executed at the closing
of the offering.



10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

*11

*23.1

*23.2

24

*27
</TABLE>

* Filed

All other

Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and Raymond B. Ruddy to be executed at the closing
of the offering.

Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and Rusell A. Beliveau to be executed at the closing
of the offering.

Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and Susan D. Pepin to be executed at the closing of
the offering.

Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and Ilene R. Baylinson to be executed at the closing
of the offering.

Executive Employment, Non-Compete, Confidentiality and Stock Restriction Agreement
by and between the Registrant and Lynn P. Davenport to be executed at the closing
of the offering.

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between the Registrant and each of the
directors of the Registrant.

Letter Agreement dated June 29, 1995, as amended by the Letter Amendment dated
April 10, 1996, between the Registrant and Crestar Bank with respect to a $10
million line of credit, and the Letter Amendment dated February 10, 1997.
California Options Project Contract, dated October 1, 1996, by and between the
Registrant and the Department of Health Services of the State of California.
Statement re Computation of Pro Forma Net Income Per Share.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors.

Consent of Palmer & Dodge LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1).

Powers of Attorney (included on the signature pages attached hereto).

Financial Data Schedule.

herewith.

exhibits previously filed.



EXHIBIT 1.1
W&S DRAFT
5/9/97
4,400,000 Shares
MAXIMUS, INC.
Common Stock
UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

, 1997

DONALDSON, LUFKIN & JENRETTE
SECURITIES CORPORATION

LEHMAN BROTHERS INC.

As representatives of the
several underwriters named in
Schedule I hereto

c/o Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
Securities Corporation

277 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10172

Dear Sirs and Mesdames:

MAXIMUS, Inc., a Virginia corporation (the "Company"), and the stockholders
of the Company named in Schedule II hereto, (collectively, the "Selling

Stockholders"), severally propose to sell an aggregate of 4,400,000 shares of
common stock, no par value, of the Company (the "Firm Shares"), to the several
underwriters named in Schedule I hereto (the "Underwriters"). The Firm Shares

consist of 2,700,000 shares to be issued and sold by the Company and 1,700,000
outstanding shares to be sold by the Selling Stockholders. The Selling
Stockholders also propose to sell to the several Underwriters not more than
660,000 additional shares of common stock, no par value, of the Company (the
"Additional Shares"), if requested by the Underwriters as provided in Section 2
hereof. The Firm Shares and the Additional Shares are herein collectively called
the Shares. The shares of common stock of the Company to be outstanding after
giving effect to the sales contemplated hereby are hereinafter referred to as
the Common Stock. The Company and the Selling Stockholders are hereinafter
collectively called the Sellers.

1. REGISTRATION STATEMENT AND PROSPECTUS. The Company has prepared and
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") in
accordance with the provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder (collectively called the
"Act"), a registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-21611) including

a prospectus relating to the Shares, which may be amended. The registration
statement as amended at the time when it becomes effective, including a
registration statement (if any) filed pursuant to Rule 462 (b) under the Act
increasing the size of the offering registered under the Act and information (if
any) deemed to be part of the registration statement at the time of
effectiveness pursuant to Rule 430A under the Act, is hereinafter referred to as
the Registration Statement; and the prospectus in the form first used to confirm
sales of Shares is hereinafter referred as the Prospectus.

2. AGREEMENTS TO SELL AND PURCHASE. On the basis of the representations and
warranties contained in this Agreement, and subject to its terms and conditions,
(i) the Company agrees to issue and sell 2,700,000 Firm Shares, (ii) each
Selling Stockholder agrees, severally and not jointly, to sell the number of
Firm Shares set forth opposite such Selling Stockholder's name in Schedule II
hereto and (iii) each Underwriter agrees, severally and not jointly, to purchase
from each Seller at a price per share of $ (the "Purchase Price") the
number of Firm Shares (subject to such adjustments to eliminate fractional
shares as you may determine) which bears the same proportion to the total number
of Firm Shares to be sold by such Seller as the number of Firm Shares set forth
opposite the name of such Underwriter in Schedule I hereto bears to the total
number of Firm Shares.

On the basis of the representations and warranties contained in this
Agreement, and subject to its terms and conditions, (i) certain of the Selling
Stockholders agree, severally and not jointly, to sell up to the number of



Additional Shares set forth opposite such Selling Stockholder's name in Schedule
IT hereto and (ii) the Underwriters shall have the right to purchase, severally
and not jointly, up to an aggregate of 660,000 Additional Shares from those
Selling Stockholders who have agreed to sell Additional Shares, at the Purchase
Price. Additional Shares may be purchased solely for the purpose of covering
over-allotments made in connection with the offering of the Firm Shares. The
Underwriters may exercise their right to purchase Additional Shares in whole or
in part from time to time by giving written notice thereof to the Company within
30 days after the date of this Agreement. You shall give any such notice on
behalf of the Underwriters and such notice shall specify the aggregate number of
Additional Shares to be purchased pursuant to such exercise and the date for
payment and delivery thereof. The date specified in any such notice shall be a
business day (i) no earlier than the Closing Date (as hereinafter defined), (ii)
no later than ten business days after such notice has been given and (iii) no
earlier than two business days after such notice has been given. The maximum
number of Additional Shares to be purchased from each such Selling Stockholder
is set forth on Schedule II hereto. If less than the maximum number of
Additional Shares are to be purchased hereunder, each of such Selling
Stockholders, severally and not jointly, agrees to sell to the Underwriters the
number of Additional Shares (subject to such adjustments to eliminate fractional
shares as you may determine) which bears the same proportion to the total number
of Additional

Shares to be purchased by the Underwriters as the maximum number of Additional
Shares to be sold by each of such Selling Stockholders bears to the total number
of Additional Shares. If any Additional Shares are to be purchased, each
Underwriter, severally and not jointly, agrees to purchase from such Selling
Stockholders the number of Additional Shares (subject to such adjustments to
eliminate fractional shares as you may determine) which bears the same
proportion to the total number of Additional Shares to be purchased from such
Selling Stockholders as the number of Firm Shares set forth opposite the name of
such Underwriter in Schedule I bears to the total number of Firm Shares.

The Sellers hereby agree, severally and not jointly, and the Company shall,
concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, deliver an agreement executed
by (i) each of the directors and officers of the Company and (ii) each
stockholder of the Company, pursuant to which each such person agrees not to
offer, sell, contract to sell, pledge, grant any option to purchase, or
otherwise dispose of any common stock of the Company or any securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for such common stock or in any
other manner transfer all or a portion of the economic consequences associated
with the ownership of any such common stock, except to the Underwriters pursuant
to this Agreement, for a period of 180 days after the date of the Prospectus
without the prior written consent of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities
Corporation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, during such period (i) the Company
may grant stock options pursuant to the Company's existing stock option plan
described in the Prospectus and (ii) the Company may issue shares of its common
stock upon the exercise of an option or warrant or the conversion of a security
outstanding on the date hereof.

3. TERMS OF PUBLIC OFFERING. The Sellers are advised by you that the
Underwriters propose (i) to make a public offering of their respective portions
of the Shares as soon after the effective date of the Registration Statement as
in your judgment is advisable and (ii) initially to offer the Shares upon the
terms set forth in the Prospectus.

4., DELIVERY AND PAYMENT. Delivery to the Underwriters of and payment for
the Firm Shares shall be made at 10:00 A.M., New York City time, on the third or
fourth business day following the date this Agreement becomes effective unless
otherwise permitted by the Commission pursuant to Rule 15c6-1 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 'Exchange Act") (the "Closing Date"), at
such place outside the State of New York as you shall designate. The Closing
Date and the location of delivery of and the form of payment for the Firm Shares
may be varied by agreement between you and the Sellers.

Delivery to the Underwriters of and payment for any Additional Shares to be
purchased by the Underwriters shall be made at such place as you shall designate
at 10:00 A.M., New York City time, on the date specified in the applicable
exercise notice given by you

pursuant to Section 2 (an "Option Closing Date"). Any such Option Closing Date
and the location of delivery of and the form of payment for such Additional
Shares may be varied by agreement between you and the Company and the Selling



Stockholders.

Certificates for the Shares shall be registered in such names and issued in
such denominations as you shall request in writing not later than two full
business days prior to the Closing Date or an option Closing Date, as the case
may be. Such certificates shall be made available to you for inspection not
later than 9:30 A.M., New York City time, on the business day next preceding the
Closing Date or an Option Closing Date, as the case may be. Certificates in
definitive form evidencing the Shares shall be delivered to you on the Closing
Date or an Option Closing Date, as the case may be, with any transfer taxes
thereon duly paid by the respective Sellers, for the respective accounts of the
several Underwriters, against payment of the Purchase Price therefor by wire
transfer of same day funds to the order of the applicable Sellers.

5. AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY. The Company agrees with you:

(a) To use its best efforts to maintain the effectiveness of the
Registration Statement.

(b) To advise you promptly and, if requested by you, to confirm such advice
in writing, (i) when the Registration Statement has become effective and when
any post-effective amendment to it becomes effective, (ii) of any request by the
Commission for amendments to the Registration Statement or amendments or
supplements to the Prospectus or for additional information, (iii) of the
issuance by the Commission of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of the
Registration Statement or of the suspension of qualification of the Shares for
offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or the initiation of any proceeding for
such purposes, and (iv) of the happening of any event during the period referred
to in paragraph (e) below which makes any statement of a material fact made in
the Registration Statement or the Prospectus untrue or which requires the making
of any additions to or changes in the Registration Statement or the Prospectus
in order to make the statements therein not misleading. If at any time the
Commission shall issue any stop order suspending the effectiveness of the
Registration Statement, the Company will make every reasonable effort to obtain
the withdrawal or lifting of such order at the earliest possible time.

(c) To furnish to you, without charge, two (2) signed copies of the
Registration Statement as first filed with the Commission and of each amendment
to it, including all exhibits, and to furnish to you and each Underwriter
designated by you such number of conformed copies of the Registration Statement
as so filed and of each amendment to it, without exhibits, as you may reasonably
request.

(d) Not to file any amendment or supplement to the Registration Statement,
whether before or after the time when it becomes effective, or to make any
amendment or supplement to the Prospectus of which you shall not previously have
been advised or to which you shall reasonably object; and to prepare and file
with the Commission, promptly upon your reasonable request, any amendment to the
Registration Statement or supplement to the Prospectus which may be necessary or
advisable in connection with the distribution of the Shares by you, and to use
its best efforts to cause the same to become promptly effective.

(e) promptly after the Registration Statement becomes effective, and from
time to time thereafter for such period as in the opinion of counsel for the
Underwriters a prospectus is required by law to be delivered in connection with
sales by an Underwriter or a dealer, to furnish to each Underwriter and dealer
as many copies of the Prospectus (and of any amendment or supplement to the
Prospectus) as such Underwriter or dealer may reasonably request.

(f) If during the period specified in paragraph (e) any event shall occur
as a result of which, in the opinion of counsel for the Underwriters it becomes
necessary to amend or supplement the Prospectus in order to make the statements
therein, in the light of the circumstances when the Prospectus is delivered to a
purchaser, not misleading, or if it is necessary to amend or supplement the
Prospectus to comply with any law, forthwith to prepare and file with the
Commission an appropriate amendment or supplement to the Prospectus so that the
statements in the Prospectus, as so amended or supplemented, will not in the
light of the circumstances when it is so delivered, be misleading, or so that
the Prospectus will comply with law, and to furnish to each Underwriter and to
such dealers as you shall specify, such number of copies thereof as such
Underwriter or dealers may reasonably request.

(g) Prior to any public offering of the Shares, to cooperate with you and
counsel for the Underwriters in connection with the registration or
qualification of the Shares for offer and sale by the several Underwriters and
by dealers under the state securities or Blue Sky laws of such jurisdictions as
you may request, to continue such qualification in effect so long as required



for distribution of the Shares and to file such consents to service of process
or other documents as may be necessary in order to effect such registration or
qualification.

(h) To mail and make generally available to its stockholders as soon as
reasonably practicable an earnings statement covering a period of at least
twelve months after the effective date of the Registration Statement (but in no
event commencing later than 90 days after such date) which shall satisfy the
provisions of Section II(a) of the Act, and to advise you in writing when such
statement has been so made available.

(i) During the period of five years after the date of this Agreement, to
comply with all reporting and shareholder communication obligations imposed
upon the Company under the Exchange Act.

(j) During the period referred to in paragraph (i), to furnish to you as
soon as available a copy of each report or other publicly available information
of the Company mailed to the holders of Common Stock or filed with the
Commission and such other publicly available information concerning the Company
and its subsidiaries, if any, as you may reasonably request.

(k) To pay all costs, expenses, fees and taxes incident to (i) the
preparation, printing, filing and distribution under the Act of the Registration
Statement (including financial statements and exhibits), each preliminary
prospectus and all amendments and supplements to any of them prior to or during
the period specified in paragraph (e), (ii) the printing and delivery of the
Prospectus and all amendments or supplements to it during the period specified
in paragraph (e), (iii) the photocopying and delivery of this Agreement, the
Blue Sky Memoranda and all other agreements, memoranda, correspondence and other
documents delivered in connection with the offering of the Shares (including in
each case any disbursements of counsel for the Underwriters relating to such
photocopying and delivery), (iv) the registration or qualification of the Shares
for offer and sale under the securities or Blue Sky laws of the several states
(including in each case the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for the
Underwriters relating to such registration or qualification and memoranda
relating thereto), (v) filings and clearance with the National Association of
Securities Dealers, Inc. in connection with the offering (including the
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for the Underwriters relating to
such filings and clearance), (vi) the listing of the Shares on the New York
Stock Exchange, (vii) furnishing such copies of the Registration Statement, the
Prospectus and all amendments and supplements thereto as may be requested for
use in connection with the offering or sale of the Shares by the Underwriters or
by dealers to whom Shares may be sold and (viii) the performance by the Sellers
of their other obligations under this Agreement.

(1) To use its best efforts to maintain the listing of the Common Stock
on the New York Stock Exchange (or on a national securities exchange) for a
period of five years after the effective date of the Registration Statement.

(m) To use its best efforts to do and perform all things required or
necessary to be done and performed under this Agreement by the Company prior to
the Closing Date or any Option Closing Date, as the case may be, and to satisfy
all conditions precedent to the delivery of the Shares.

6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY. The Company represents
and warrants to each Underwriter that:

(a) The Registration Statement has become effective; no stop order
suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement is in effect, and no
proceedings for such purpose are pending before or threatened by the Commission.

(b) (i) Each part of the Registration Statement, when such part became
effective, did not contain and each such part, as amended or supplemented, if
applicable, will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein not misleading, (ii) the Registration Statement and the
Prospectus comply and, as amended or supplemented, if applicable, will comply in
all material respects with the Act and (iii) the Prospectus does not contain
and, as amended or supplemented, if applicable, will not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make



the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading, except that the representations and warranties set forth
in this paragraph (b) do not apply to statements or omissions in the
Registration Statement or the Prospectus based upon information relating to any
Underwriter furnished to the Company in writing by such Underwriter through you
expressly for use therein.

(c) Each preliminary prospectus filed as part of the registration statement
as originally filed or as part of any amendment thereto, or filed pursuant to
Rule 424 under the Act, and each Registration Statement filed pursuant to Rule
462 (b) under the Act, if any, complied when so filed in all material respects
with the Act; and did not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading.

(d) The Company has been duly incorporated, is validly existing as a
corporation in good standing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia and
has the corporate power and authority to carry on its business as it is
currently being conducted and to own, lease and operate its properties, and is
duly qualified and is in good standing as a foreign corporation authorized to do
business in each jurisdiction in which the nature of its business or its

ownership or leasing of property requires such qualification, except where the
failure to be so qualified would not have a material adverse effect on the
Company.

(e) All the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company (including
the Shares to be sold by the Selling Stockholders) have been duly authorized and
validly issued and are fully paid, non-assessable and not subject to any
preemptive or similar rights; and the Shares to be issued and sold by the
Company hereunder have been duly authorized and, when issued and delivered to
the Underwriters against payment therefor as provided by this Agreement, will be
validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and the issuance of such Shares
will not be subject to any preemptive or similar rights.

(f) The authorized capital stock of the Company, including the Common
Stock, conforms as to legal matters to the description thereof contained in the
Prospectus.

(g) The Company is not in violation of its charter or by-laws or in default
in the performance of any obligation, agreement or condition contained in any
bond, debenture, note or any other evidence of indebtedness or in any other
agreement, indenture or instrument material to the conduct of the business of
the Company to which the Company is a party or by which the Company or its
property is bound.

(h) The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, compliance
by the Company with all the provisions hereof and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby will not require any consent, approval,
authorization or other order of any court, regulatory body, administrative
agency or other governmental body (except as such may be required under the
federal securities laws and the securities or Blue Sky laws of the various
states) and will not conflict with or constitute a breach of any of the terms or
provisions of, or a default under, the charter or by-laws of the Company or any
agreement, indenture or other instrument to which the Company is a party or by
which the Company or its property is bound, or violate or conflict with any
laws, administrative regulations or rulings or court decrees applicable to the
Company or its property.

(i) Except as otherwise set forth in the Prospectus, there are no material
legal or governmental proceedings pending to which the Company is a party or of
which any of its property is the subject, and, to the best of the Company's
knowledge, no such proceedings are threatened or contemplated. No contract or
document of a character required to be described in the Registration Statement
or the Prospectus or to be filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement is
not so described or filed as required.

(j) The Company has not violated any foreign, federal, state or local law
or regulation relating to the protection of human health and safety, the
environment or hazardous or toxic substances



or wastes, pollutants or contaminants ("Environmental Laws"), nor any federal or
state law relating to discrimination in the hiring, promotion or pay of
employees nor any applicable federal or state wages and hours laws, nor any
provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act or the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, which in each case might result in any
material adverse change in the business, prospects, financial condition or
results of operation of the Company.

(k) The Company has all material permits, licenses, franchises and
authorizations of governmental or regulatory authorities ("permits"), including,
without limitation, under any applicable Environmental Laws, as are necessary to
own, lease and operate its properties and to conduct its business; the Company
has fulfilled and performed all of its material obligations with respect to such
permits and no event has occurred which allows, or after notice or lapse of time
would allow, revocation or termination thereof or results in any other material
impairment of the rights of the holder of any such permit; and, except as
described in the Prospectus, such permits contain no restrictions that are
materially burdensome to the Company.

(1) Except as otherwise set forth in the Prospectus or such as are not
material to the business, prospects, financial condition or results of operation
of the Company, the Company has good and marketable title, free and clear of all
liens, claims, encumbrances and restrictions except liens for taxes not yet due
and payable, to all property and assets described in the Registration Statement
as being owned by it. All leases to which the Company is a party are valid and
binding and no default has occurred or is continuing thereunder which might
result in any material adverse change in the business, prospects, financial
condition or results of operation of the Company and the Company enjoys peaceful
and undisturbed possession under all such leases to which it is a party as
lessee with such exceptions as do not materially interfere with the use made by
the Company.

(m) The Company maintains reasonably adequate insurance.

(n) Ernst & Young LLP are independent public accountants with respect to
the Company as required by the Act.

(0) The Company owns or possesses adequate rights with respect to the use
of all trade secrets, know-how, propriety techniques, including processes and
substances, trademarks, service marks, trade names and copyrights (collectively,
"Intellectual Property") described or referred to in the Prospectus as owned or
used by it, or which are necessary for the conduct of its business as described
in the Prospectus, other than Intellectual Property the lack of which would not
reasonably be expected to result in any material adverse change in the business,
prospects, financial condition or results of operation of the Company and no
such rights as are material to the business and prospects of the Company expire
or are subject to termination at the election of another party without cause or
the Company's consent at a time or under circumstances which would result in any
material adverse change in

the business, prospects, financial condition or results of operation of the
Company. The Company has not received any notice of infringement of or conflict
with asserted rights of others with respect to any patents, patent rights,
inventions, trade secrets, know-how, proprietary techniques, including processes
and substances, trademarks, service marks, trade names or copyrights which would
result in any material adverse change in the business, prospects, financial
condition or results of operation of the Company.

(p) The Company is not involved in any labor dispute which, either
individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to result in any
material adverse change in the business, prospects, financial condition or
results of operation of the Company, nor, to the knowledge of the Company, is
any such dispute threatened.

(q) The financial statements, together with related notes forming part of
the Registration Statement and the Prospectus (and any amendment or supplement
thereto), present fairly the consolidated financial position, results of
operations and changes in financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
on the basis stated in the Registration Statement at the respective dates or for
the respective periods to which they apply; such statements and related
schedules and notes have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles consistently applied throughout the periods involved,
except as disclosed therein; and the other financial and statistical information
and data set forth in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus (and any
amendment or supplement thereto) is, in all material respects, accurately
presented and prepared on a basis consistent with such financial statements and



the books and records of the Company. The pro forma financial statements and
data set forth in the Prospectus present fairly in all material respects the
information shown therein, have been prepared in accordance with the
Commission's rules and guidelines with respect to pro forma information, have
been properly compiled on the pro forma basis described therein, and, in the
opinion of the Company, the assumptions used in the preparation thereof are
reasonable and the adjustments used therein are appropriate under the
circumstances.

(r) The Company is not an "investment company" or a company "controlled" by
an "investment company" within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of
1940, as amended.

(s) Except as disclosed in the Prospectus, no holder of any security of the
Company has any right to require registration of shares of Common Stock or any
other security of the Company.

(t) The Company has complied with all provisions of Section 517.075,
Florida Statutes (Chapter 92-198, Laws of Florida).

(u) The Company has filed a registration statement pursuant to Section
12 (g) of the Exchange Act, to register the Common Stock, has filed an
application to list the Shares on the New York Stock Exchange,

and has received notification that the listing has been approved,
subject to notice of issuance.

(v) There are no outstanding subscriptions, rights, warrants, options,
calls, convertible securities, commitments of sale or liens related to or
entitling any person to purchase or otherwise to acquire any shares of the
capital stock of, or other ownership interest in, the Company or any subsidiary
thereof except as otherwise disclosed in the Registration Statement.

(w) Except as disclosed in the Prospectus, there are no business
relationships or related party transactions required to be disclosed therein by
Item 404 of Regulation S-K of the Commission.

(x) The Company maintains a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions are executed in
accordance with management's general or specific authorizations; (ii)
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to
maintain asset accountability; (iii) access to assets is permitted only in
accordance with management's general or specific authorization; and (iv) the
recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at
reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any
differences.

(y) All material tax returns required to be filed by the Company in any
jurisdiction have been filed, other than those filings being contested in good
faith, and all material taxes, including withholding taxes, penalties and
interest, assessments, fees and other charges due pursuant to such returns or
pursuant to any assessment received by the Company have been paid, other than
those being contested in good faith and for which adequate reserves have been
provided.

7. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE SELLING STOCKHOLDERS. Each Selling
Stockholder severally represents and warrants to each Underwriter that:

(a) Such Selling Stockholder is the lawful owner of the Shares to be sold
by such Selling Stockholder pursuant to this Agreement and has, and on the
Closing Date (and Option Closing Date, if applicable) will have, good and clear
title to such Shares, free of all restrictions on transfer, liens, encumbrances,
security interests and claims whatsoever.

(b) Upon delivery of and payment for such Shares pursuant to this
Agreement, good and clear title to such Shares will pass to the Underwriters,
free of all restrictions on transfer, liens, encumbrances, security interests
and claims whatsoever.

(c) Such Selling Stockholder has, and on the Closing Date will have, full
legal right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the Custody
Agreement between the Selling Stockholders and the Company, as Custodian (the
"Custody Agreement"), and to



sell, assign, transfer and deliver such Shares in the manner provided herein and
therein, and this Agreement and the Custody Agreement have been duly authorized,
executed and delivered by such Selling Stockholder and each of this Agreement
and the Custody Agreement is a valid and binding agreement of such Selling
Stockholder enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as rights to
indemnity and contribution hereunder may be limited by applicable law.

(d) The power of attorney signed by such Selling Stockholder appointing
David V. Mastran and Raymond B. Ruddy , or either one of them, as his
attorney-in-fact to the extent set forth therein with regard to the transactions
contemplated hereby and by the Registration Statement and the Custody Agreement
has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by or on behalf of such Selling
Stockholder and is a valid and binding instrument of such Selling Stockholder
enforceable in accordance with its terms, and, pursuant to such power of
attorney, such Selling Stockholder has authorized David V. Mastran and Raymond
B. Ruddy , or either one of them, to execute and deliver on his or her behalf
this Agreement and any other document necessary or desirable in connection with
transactions contemplated hereby and to deliver the Shares to be sold by such
Selling Stockholder pursuant to this Agreement.

(e) Such Selling Stockholder has not taken, and will not take, directly or
indirectly, any action designed to, or which might reasonably be expected to,
cause or result in stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of
the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of the Shares pursuant to the
distribution contemplated by this Agreement, and other than as permitted by the
Act, the Selling Stockholder has not distributed and will not distribute any
prospectus or other offering material in connection with the offering and sale
of the Shares.

(f) The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such
Selling Stockholder, compliance by such Selling Stockholder with all the
provisions hereof and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby
will not require any consent, approval, authorization or other order of any
court, regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental body (except
as such may be required under the Act, state securities laws or Blue Sky laws)
and will not conflict with or constitute a breach of any of the terms or
provisions of, or a default under, organizational documents of such Selling
Stockholder, if not an individual, or any agreement, indenture or other
instrument to which such Selling Stockholder is a party or by which such Selling
Stockholder or property of such Selling Stockholder is bound, or violate or
conflict with any laws, administrative regulation or ruling or court decree
applicable to such Selling Stockholder or property of such Selling Stockholder.

(g) (i) To the knowledge of such Selling Stockholder, the representations
and warranties of the Company set forth in Section 6 hereof are true and correct
and (ii) such parts of the Registration Statement under the caption "Principal
and Selling

Shareholders" which specifically relate to such Selling Stockholder do not
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein,
in light of circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

(h) At any time during the period described in paragraph 5(e) hereof, if
there is any change in the information referred to in paragraph 7(g) above, the
Selling Stockholders will immediately notify you of such change.

8. Indemnification. (a) The Company and each Selling Stockholder, jointly
and severally, agree to indemnify and hold harmless each Underwriter and each
person, if any, who controls any Underwriter within the meaning of Section 15 of
the Act or Section 20 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), from and against any and all S losses, claims, damages,
liabilities and judgments caused by any untrue statement or alleged untrue
statement of a material fact contained in the Registration Statement or the
Prospectus (as amended or supplemented if the Company shall have furnished any
amendments or supplements thereto) or any preliminary prospectus, or caused by
any omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading,
except insofar as such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or judgments are
caused by any such untrue statement or omission or alleged untrue statement or
omission based upon information relating to any Underwriters furnished in
writing to the Company by or on behalf of any Underwriter through you expressly
for use therein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the aggregate liability of any



Selling Stockholder pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph shall be
limited to an amount equal to, in the aggregate, the sum of (i) the purchase
price received by such Selling Stockholder from the sale of such Selling Stock-
holder's Shares hereunder and (ii) such Selling Stockholder's proportionate
share of the net proceeds from the offering received by the Company used to fund
the payment of undistributed S corporation earnings; provided, however, that the
foregoing indemnity agreement with respect to any preliminary prospectus shall
not inure to the benefit of any Underwriter from whom the person asserting any
such losses, claims, damages and liabilities and judgments purchased Shares, or
any person controlling such Underwriter, if a copy of the Prospectus (as then
amended or supplemented if the Company shall have furnished any amendments or
supplements thereto) was not sent or given by or on behalf of such Underwriter
to such person, if required by law so to have been delivered, at or prior to the
written confirmation of the sale of the Shares to such person, and if the
Prospectus (as so amended and supplemented) would have cured the defect giving
rise to such loss, claim, damage, liability or judgment.

(b) In case any action shall be brought against any Underwriter or any
person controlling such Underwriter, based upon any preliminary prospectus, the
Registration Statement or the Prospectus or any amendment or supplement thereto
and with respect to which indemnity may be sought against the Company and the

Selling Stockholders, such Underwriter shall promptly notify the Company and the
Selling Stockholders in writing and the Company and the Selling Stockholders
shall assume the defense thereof, including the employment of counsel reasonably
satisfactory to such indemnified party and payment of all fees and expenses. Any
Underwriter or any such controlling person shall have the right to employ
separate counsel in any such action and participate in the defense thereof but
the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such
Underwriter or such controlling person unless (i) the employment of such counsel
has been specifically authorized in writing by the Company, (ii) the Company and
the Selling Stockholders shall have failed to assume the defense and employ
counsel or (iii) the named parties to any such action (including any impleaded
parties) include both such Underwriter or such controlling person and the
Company or any Selling Stockholder, as the case may be, and such Underwriter or
such controlling person shall have been advised by such counsel that there may
be one or more legal defenses available to it which are different from or
additional to those available to the Company or the Selling Stockholders, as the
case may be (in which case the Company and the Selling Stockholders shall not
have the right to assume the defense of such action on behalf of such
Underwriter or such controlling person, it being understood, however, that the
Company and the Selling Stockholders shall not, in connection with any one such
action or separate but substantially similar or related actions in the same
jurisdiction arising out of the same general allegations or circumstances, be
liable for the reasonable fees and expenses of more than one separate firm of
attorneys (in addition to any local counsel) for all such Underwriters and
controlling persons, which firm shall be designated in writing by Donaldson,
Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation and that all such fees and expenses
shall be reimbursed as they are incurred). A Seller shall not be liable for any
settlement of any such action effected without the written consent of such
Seller but if settled with the written consent of such Seller, such Seller
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless any Underwriter and any such controlling
person from and against any loss or liability by reason of such settlement.
Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentence, if in any case where the
fees and expenses of counsel are at the expense of the indemnifying party and an
indemnified party shall have requested the indemnifying party to reimburse the
indemnified party for such fees and expenses of counsel as incurred, such
indemnifying party agrees that it shall be liable for any settlement of any
action effected without its written consent if (i) such settlement is entered
into more than twenty business days after the receipt by such indemnifying party
of the aforesaid request and (ii) such indemnifying party shall have failed to
reimburse the indemnified party in accordance with such request for
reimpbursement prior to the date of such settlement. No indemnifying party shall,
without the prior written consent of the indemnified party, effect any
settlement of any pending or threatened proceeding in respect of which any
indemnified party is or could have been a party and indemnity could have been
sought hereunder by such indemnified party, unless such settlement includes an
unconditional release of such indemnified

party from all liability on claims that are the subject matter of
such proceeding.



(c) Each Underwriter agrees, severally and not jointly, to indemnify and
hold harmless the Company, its directors, its officers who sign the Registration
Statement, any person controlling the Company within the meaning of Section 15
of the Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act, each Selling Stockholder and each
person, if any, controlling such Selling Stockholder within the meaning of
Section 15 of the Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act to the same extent as
the foregoing indemnity from the Sellers to each Underwriter but only with
reference to information relating to such Underwriter furnished in writing by or
on behalf of such Underwriter through you expressly for use in the Registration
Statement, the Prospectus or any preliminary prospectus. In case any action
shall be brought against the Company, any of its directors, any such officer or
any person controlling the Company or any Selling Stockholder or any person
controlling such Selling Stockholder based on the Registration Statement, the
Prospectus or any preliminary prospectus and in respect of which indemnity may
be sought against any Underwriter, the Underwriter shall have the rights and
duties given to the Sellers (except that if any Seller shall have assumed the
defense thereof) such Underwriter shall not be required to do so, but may employ
separate counsel therein and participate in the defense thereof but the fees and
expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such Underwriter), and the
Company, its directors, any such officers and any person controlling the Company
and the Selling Stockholders and any person controlling such Selling
Stockholders shall have the rights and duties given to the Underwriter, by
Section 8(b) hereof.

(d) If the indemnification provided for in this Section 8 is unavailable to
an indemnified party in respect of any losses, claims, damages, liabilities or
judgments referred to therein, then each indemnifying party, in lieu of
indemnifying such indemnified party, shall contribute to the amount paid or
payable by such indemnified party as a result of such losses, claims, damages,
liabilities and judgments (i) in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect
the relative benefits received by the Sellers on the one hand and the
Underwriters on the other hand from the offering of the Shares or (ii) if the
allocation provided by clause (i) above is not permitted by applicable law, in
such proportion as is appropriate to reflect not only the relative benefits
referred to in clause (i) above but also the relative fault of the Sellers and
the Underwriters in connection with the statements or omissions which resulted
in such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or judgments, as well as any other
relevant equitable considerations. The relative benefits received by the Sellers
and the Underwriters shall be deemed to be in the same proportion as the total
net proceeds from the offering (before deducting expenses) received by the
Sellers, and the total underwriting discounts and commissions received by the
Underwriters, bear to the total price to the public of the Shares in each case
as set forth in the table on the cover page of the Prospectus. The relative
fault of the Sellers and the Underwriters shall be determined by reference to,
among other

things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or the
omission to state a material fact relates to information supplied by the
Company, the Selling Stockholders or the Underwriters and the parties' relative
intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent
such statement or omission. The Sellers and the Underwriters agree that it would
not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to this Section 8(d) were
determined by pro rata allocation (even if the Underwriters were treated as one
entity for such purpose) or by any other method of allocation which does not
take account of the equitable considerations referred to in the immediately
preceding paragraph. The amount paid or payable by an indemnified party as a
result of the losses, claims, damages, liabilities or judgments referred to in
the immediately preceding paragraph shall be deemed to include, subject to the
limitations set forth above, any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by
such indemnified party in connection with investigating or defending any such
action or claim. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 8, no
Underwriter shall be required to contribute any amount in excess of the amount
by which the total price at which the Shares underwritten by it and distributed
to the public were offered to the public exceeds the amount of any damages which
such Underwriter has otherwise been required to pay by reason of such untrue or
alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission. No person guilty of
fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section II(f) of the Act)
shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such
fraudulent misrepresentation. The Underwriters' obligations to contribute
pursuant to this Section 8(d) are several in proportion to the respective number
of Shares purchased by each of the Underwriters hereunder and not joint.

(e) Each Seller hereby designates MAXIMUS, Inc., 1356 Beverly Road, McLean,
Virginia 22101 (a Virginia Corporation), as its authorized agent, upon which
process may be served in any action, suit or proceeding which may be instituted
in any state or federal court in the State of New York by any Underwriter or
person controlling an Underwriter asserting a claim for indemnification or



contribution under or pursuant to this Section 8, and each Seller will accept
the jurisdiction of such court in such action, and waives, to the fullest extent
permitted by applicable law, any defense based upon lack of personal
jurisdiction or venue. A copy of any such process shall be sent or given to such
Seller at the address for notices specified in Section 13 hereof.

9. CONDITIONS OF UNDERWRITERS OBLIGATIONS. The several obligations of the
Underwriters to purchase the Firm Shares under this Agreement are subject to the
satisfaction of each of the following conditions:

(a) All the representations and warranties of the Company contained in this
Agreement shall be true and correct on the Closing Date with the same force and
effect as if made on and as of the Closing Date.

(b) The Registration Statement shall have become effective not later than
5:00 P.M. (and in the case of a Registration Statement filed under Rule 462 (b) of
the Act, not later than 10:00 p.m.), New York City time, on the date of this
Agreement or at such later date and time as you may approve in writing, and at
the Closing Date no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration
Statement shall have been issued and no proceedings for that purpose shall have
been commenced or shall be pending before or contemplated by the Commission.

(c) (i) Since the date of the latest balance sheet included in the
Registration Statement and the Prospectus, there shall not have been any
material adverse change, or any development involving a prospective material
adverse change, in the condition, financial or otherwise, or in the earnings,
affairs or business prospects, whether or not arising in the ordinary course of
business, of the Company, (ii) since the date of the latest balance sheet
included in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus there shall not have
been any change, or any development involving a prospective material adverse
change, in the capital stock or in the long-term debt of the Company from that
set forth in the Registration Statement and Prospectus, (iii) the Company and
its subsidiaries shall have no liability or obligation, direct or contingent,
which is material to the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, other
than those reflected in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus and (iv)
on the Closing Date you shall have received a certificate dated the Closing
Date, signed by David V. Mastran and Raymond B. Ruddy, in their capacities as
the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board and President of
Consulting Services respectively, of the Company, confirming the matters set
forth in paragraphs (a), (b), and (c) of this Section 9.

(d) All the representations and warranties of the Selling Stockholders
contained in this Agreement shall be true and correct on the Closing Date with
the same force and effect as if made on and as of the Closing Date and you shall
have received a certificate to such effect, dated the Closing Date, from each
Selling Stockholder.

(e) You shall have received on the Closing Date an opinion (satisfactory to
you and counsel for the Underwriters), dated the Closing Date, of Palmer & Dodge
LLP counsel for the Company and the Selling Stockholders, to the effect that:

(i) the Company has been duly incorporated, is validly existing as a
corporation in good standing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia and
has the corporate power and authority required to carry on its business as it is
currently being conducted and to own, lease and operate its properties;

(ii) the Company is duly qualified and is in good standing as a
foreign corporation authorized to do business in each jurisdiction in which the
nature of its business or its ownership or leasing of property requires such
qualification, except where

the failure to be so qualified would not have a material adverse effect on the
Company;

(iii) all the outstanding shares of Common Stock (including the Shares
to be sold by the Selling Stockholders) have been duly authorized and validly
issued and are fully paid, non-assessable and not subject to any preemptive or
similar rights arising under law or any contracts known to us;



(iv) the Shares to be issued and sold by the Company hereunder have
been duly authorized, and when issued and delivered to the Underwriters against
payment therefor as provided by this Agreement, will have been validly issued
and will be fully paid and non-assessable, and the issuance of such Shares is
not subject to any preemptive or similar rights arising under law or any
contracts known to us;

(v) this Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by
the Company and each of the Selling Stockholders;

(vi) the authorized capital stock of the Company, including the Common
Stock, conforms as to legal matters to the description thereof contained in the
Prospectus;

(vii) the Registration Statement has become effective under the Act no
stop order suspending its effectiveness has been issued and no proceedings for
that purpose are, to the knowledge of such counsel, pending before or
contemplated by the Commission;

(viii) the statements under the captions "Risk Factors - Certain
Anti-Takeover Effects, and - Shares Eligible for Future Sale", "Management -
Stock Plans," "Description of Capital Stock," "Shares Eligible for Future
Sale," and "Underwriting" in the Prospectus and Items 14 and 15 of Part II of
the Registration Statement insofar as such statements constitute a summary of
legal matters documents or proceedings referred to therein, fairly present the
information called for with respect to such legal matters, documents and
proceedings;

(ix) the Company is not in violation of its charter or by-laws and, to
the best of such counsel's knowledge, the Company is not in default in the
performance of any obligation, agreement or condition contained in any bond,
debenture, note or any other evidence of indebtedness or in any other agreement,
indenture or instrument material to the conduct of the business of the Company,
to which the Company is a party or by which the Company or its property is
bound;

(x) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the
Company and each Selling Stockholder, compliance by the Company and each Selling
Stockholder with all the provisions hereof and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby will not require any consent, approval,
authorization or other

order of any court, regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental
body (except as such may be required under the Act or other securities or Blue
Sky laws) and will not conflict with or constitute a breach of any of the terms
or provisions of, or a default under, the charter or by-laws of the Company or
any agreement, indenture or other instrument known to us to which the Company

or any Selling Stockholder is a party or by which the Company or any Selling
Stockholder or their respective properties are bound, or violate or conflict
with any laws, administrative regulations or rulings or court decrees applicable
to the Company or any Selling Stockholder or their respective properties;

(xi) such counsel does not know of any legal or governmental
proceeding pending or threatened to which the Company is a party or to which any
of its property is subject which is required to be described in the Registration
Statement or the Prospectus and is not so described, or of any contract or other
document which is required to be described in the Registration Statement or the
Prospectus or is required to be filed as an exhibit to the Registration
Statement which is not described or filed as required;

(xii) to the best of such counsel's knowledge, the Company has not
violated any Environmental Laws, nor any federal or state law relating to
discrimination in the hiring, promotion or pay of employees nor any applicable
federal or state wages and . hours laws, nor any provisions of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act or the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder, which in each case might result in any material adverse change in
the business, prospects, financial condition or results of operation of the
Company;

(xiii) the Company is not an "investment company" or a company
"controlled" by an "investment company" within the meaning of the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended;

(xiv) to the best of such counsel's knowledge, except as disclosed in
the Prospectus, no holder of any security of the Company has any right to



require registration of shares of Common Stock or any other security of the
Company;

(xv) to the best of such counsel's knowledge, all leases to which the
Company is a party are valid and binding and no default has occurred or is
continuing thereunder that might result in any material adverse change in the
business, prospects, financial condition or results of operation of the Company,
and the Company enjoys peaceful and undisturbed possession under all such leases
to which it is a party as lessee with such exceptions as do not materially
interfere with the use made by the Company;

(xvi) (1) the Registration Statement (including any Registration
Statement filed under 462 (b) of the Act, if any) and the Prospectus and any
supplement or amendment thereto (except for financial statements as to which no
opinion need be expressed) comply as to form in all material respects with the
Act;

(xvii) the Custody Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by
each Selling Stockholder and is a valid and binding agreement of such Selling
Stockholder enforceable in accordance with its terms;

(xviii) each Selling Stockholder has full legal right, power and
authority, and any approval required by law (other than any approval imposed by
the applicable state securities and Blue Sky laws) to sell, assign, transfer and
deliver the Shares to be sold by him in the manner provided in this Agreement
and the Custody Agreement;

(xix) each Selling Stockholder has good and clear title to the
certificates for the Shares to be sold by such Selling Stockholder and upon
delivery thereof, pursuant hereto and payment therefore good and clear title
will pass to the Underwriters, severally, free of all restrictions on transfer,
liens, encumbrances, security interests and claims whatsoever; and

(xx) the power of attorney signed by each Selling Stockholder
appointing David V. Mastran and Raymond B. Ruddy, or either of them, as his or
her attorney-in-fact to the extent set forth therein with regard to the
transactions contemplated hereby and by the Registration Statement has been duly
authorized, executed and delivered by or on behalf of each Selling Stockholder
and are valid and binding instruments of such Selling Stockholder enforceable in

accordance with its terms, and pursuant to such power of attorney, each of the
Selling Stockholders has authorized David V. Mastran and Raymond B. Ruddy, or
either of them, to execute and deliver on their behalf this Agreement and any
other document necessary or desirable in connection with transactions
contemplated hereby and to deliver the Shares to be sold by them pursuant to
this Agreement.

Such counsel shall also provide a statement that based upon their
participation in the preparation of the Registration Statement and Prospectus
and any amendments or supplements thereto and review and discussion of the
contents thereof, but are without independent check or verification except as
specified, nothing has come to their attention that would lead them to believe
that (except for financial statements, as to which no belief need be expressed)
the Registration Statement and the prospectus included therein at the time the
Registration Statement became effective did not contain any untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein
or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, and that the
Prospectus, as amended or supplemented, if applicable (except for financial
statements, as aforesaid) does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading.

The opinion of Palmer & Dodge LLP described in paragraph (e) above shall be
rendered to you at the request of the Company or one or more of the Selling
Stockholders, as the case may be, and shall so state therein.

(f) You shall have received on the Closing Date an opinion, dated the
Closing Date, of Winston & Strawn, counsel for the Underwriters, as to the
matters referred to in clauses (v), (vi) (but only with respect to the Company),
(viii), (ix) (but only with respect to the statements under the captions
"Description of Capital Stock" and "Underwriting") and (xviii) of the foregoing



paragraph (e). In giving such opinion with respect to the matters covered by
clause (xvii) such counsel may state that their opinion and belief are based
upon their participation in the preparation of the Registration Statement and
Prospectus and any amendments or supplements thereto and review and discussion
of the contents thereof, but are without independent check or verification
except as specified.

(g) You shall have received a letter on and as of the Closing Date, in form
and substance satisfactory to you, from Ernst & Young LLP, independent public
accountants, with respect to the financial statements and certain financial
information contained in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus and
substantially in the form and substance of the letter delivered to you by Ernst
& Young LLP on the date of this Agreement.

(h) The Company and the Selling Stockholders shall not have failed at or
prior to the Closing Date to perform or comply with any of the agreements herein
contained and required to be performed or complied with by the Company and the
Selling Stockholders at or prior to the Closing Date.

(1) You shall have received on the Closing Date from each Selling
Stockholder a properly completed and executed United States Treasury Department
Form W-9 (or other applicable form or statement specified by Treasury Department
regulations in lieu thereof). The several obligations of the Underwriters to
purchase any Additional Shares hereunder are subject to the delivery to you on
the

applicable Option Closing Date of such documents as you may reasonably request
with respect to the good standing of the Company, the due authorization and
issuance of such Additional Shares and other matters related to the issuance of
such Additional Shares.

10. EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT AND TERMINATION. This Agreement shall
become effective upon the later of (i) execution of this Agreement and (ii) when
notification of the effectiveness of the Registration Statement has been
released by the Commission.

This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing Date by
you by written notice to the Sellers if any of the following has occurred: (i)
since the respective dates as of which information is given in the Registration
Statement and the Prospectus, any material adverse change or development
involving a prospective material adverse change in the condition, financial or
otherwise, of the Company or the earnings, affairs, or business prospects of the
Company, whether or not arising in the ordinary course of business, which would,
in your reasonable judgment, make it impracticable to market the Shares on the
terms and in the manner contemplated in the Prospectus, (ii) any outbreak or
escalation of hostilities or other national or international calamity or crisis
or change in economic conditions or in the financial markets of the United
States or elsewhere that, in your reasonable judgment, is material and adverse
and would, in your reasonable judgment, make it impracticable to market the
Shares on the terms and in the manner contemplated in the Prospectus, (iii) the
suspension or material limitation of trading in securities on the New York Stock
Exchange, the American Stock Exchange or the Nasdag National Market or
limitation on prices for securities on any such exchange or the Nasdag National
Market, (iv) the enactment, publication, decree or other promulgation of any
federal or state statute, regulation, rule or order of any court or other
governmental authority which in your reasonable opinion materially and adversely
affects, or will materially and adversely-affect, the business-or operations of
the Company, (v) the declaration of a banking moratorium by either federal or
New York State authorities or (vi) the taking of any action by any federal,
state or local government or agency in respect of its monetary or fiscal affairs
which in your opinion has a material adverse effect on the financial markets in
the United States.

If on the Closing Date or on an Option Closing Date, as the case may be,
any one or more of the Underwriters shall fail or refuse to purchase the Firm
Shares or Additional Shares, as the case may be; which it or they have agreed to
purchase hereunder on such date and the aggregate number of Firm Shares or
Additional Shares, as the case may be, which such defaulting Underwriter or
Underwriters, as the case may be, agreed but failed or refused to purchase is
not more than one-tenth of the total number of Shares to be purchased on such
date by all Underwriters, each non-defaulting Underwriter shall be obligated
severally, in the proportion which the number of Firm Shares set forth opposite
its name in Schedule I bears to the total number of Firm Shares which all the
non-defaulting Underwriters, as the case may be, have



agreed to purchase, or in such other proportion as you may specify, to purchase
the Firm Shares or-Additional Shares, as the case may be, which such defaulting
Underwriter or Underwriters, as the case may be, agreed but failed or refused to
purchase on such date; provided that in no event shall the number of Firm Shares
or Additional Shares, as the case may be, which any Underwriter has agreed to
purchase pursuant to Section 2 hereof be increased pursuant to this Section 10
by an amount in excess of one-ninth of such number of Firm Shares or Additional
Shares, as the case may be, without the written consent of such Underwriter. If
on the Closing Date or on an Option Closing Date, as the case may be, any
Underwriter or Underwriters shall fail or refuse to purchase Firm Shares, or
Additional Shares, as the case may be, and the aggregate number of Firm Shares
or Additional Shares, as the case may be, with respect to which such default
occurs is more than one-tenth of the aggregate number of Shares to be purchased
on such date by all Underwriters and arrangements satisfactory to you and the
applicable Sellers for purchase of such Shares are not made within 48 hours
after such default, this Agreement will terminate without liability on the part
of any non-defaulting Underwriter and the applicable Sellers. In any such case
which does not result in termination of this Agreement, either you or the
Sellers shall have the right to postpone the Closing Date or the applicable
Option Closing Date, as the case may be, but in no event for longer than seven
days, in order that the required changes, if any, in the Registration Statement
and the Prospectus or any other documents or arrangements may be effected. Any
action taken under this paragraph shall not relieve any defaulting Underwriter
from liability in respect of any default of any such Underwriter under this
Agreement.

11. AGREEMENTS OF THE SELLING STOCKHOLDERS. Each Selling Stockholder
severally agrees with you and the Company:

(a) To pay or to cause to be paid all transfer taxes with respect to the
Shares to be sold by such Selling Stockholder; and

(b) To take all reasonable actions in cooperation with the Company and the
Underwriters to cause the Registration Statement to become effective at the
earliest possible time, to do and perform all things to be done and performed
under this Agreement prior to the Closing Date and to satisfy all conditions
precedent to the delivery of the Shares pursuant to this Agreement.

12. MISCELLANEOUS. Notices given pursuant to any provision of this
Agreement shall be addressed as follows: (a) if to the Company to David V.
Mastran, c/o MAXIMUS, Inc., 1356 Beverly Road, McLean, Virginia 22101 (b) if to
the Selling Stockholders, to David V. Mastran, c/o MAXIMUS, Inc., 1356 Beverly
Road, McLean, Virginia 22101 and (c) if to any Underwriter or to you, to you c/o
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, 277 Park Avenue, New York,
New York 10172, Attention: Syndicate Department, or in any case to such other
address as the person to be notified may have requested in writing.

The respective indemnities, contribution agreements, representations,
warranties, covenants and other statements of the Selling Stockholders, the
Company, its officers and directors and of the several Underwriters set forth in
or made pursuant to this Agreement shall remain operative and in full force and
effect, and will survive delivery of and payment for the Shares, regardless of
(i) any investigation, or statement as to the results thereof, made by or on
behalf of any Underwriter or by or on behalf of the Sellers, the officers or
directors of the Company or any controlling person of the Sellers, (ii)
acceptance of the Shares and payment for them hereunder and (iii) termination of
this Agreement.

If this Agreement shall be terminated by the Underwriters because of any
failure or refusal on the part of the Sellers to comply with the terms or to
fulfill any of the conditions of this Agreement, the Sellers agree to reimburse
the several Underwriters for all out-of-pocket expenses (including the fees and
disbursements of counsel) reasonably incurred by them.

Except as otherwise provided, this Agreement has been and is made solely
for the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Sellers, the Underwriters, any
controlling persons referred to herein and their respective successors and
assigns, all as and to the extent provided in this Agreement, and no other
person shall acquire or have any right under or by virtue of this Agreement. The
term "successors and assigns" shall not include a purchaser of the Shares from
any of the several Underwriters merely because of such purchase.

This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws
of the State of New York.



This Agreement may be signed in various counterparts which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

Please confirm that the foregoing correctly sets forth the agreement
between the Company, the Selling Stockholders and the several Underwriters.

Very truly yours,

MAXIMUS, INC.

THE SELLING STOCKHOLDERS NAMED
IN SCHEDULE II HERETO

Attorney-in-fact

DONALDSON, LUFKIN & JENRETTE
SECURITIES CORPORATION
LEHMAN BROTHERS INC.

Acting severally on behalf of
themselves and the several
Underwriters named in
Schedule I hereto

By DONALDSON, LUFKIN & JENRETTE
SECURITIES CORPORATION

SCHEDULE I

Number of Firm Shares
Underwriter to be Purchased

Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
Securities Corporation
Lehman Brothers Inc.



Total 4,400,000

SCHEDULE II

Selling Stockholders

Maximum Number of

Number of Firm Additional Shares
Name Shares Being Sold Subject to Sale
David V. Mastran 911,276 353,293
Raymond B. Ruddy 609,377 236,211
Russell A. Beliveau 36,879 14,494
Ilene R. Baylinson 7,056 2,773
Lynn P. Davenport 50,027 19,6601
Donna J. Muldoon 16,957 6,604
Susan D. Pepin 42,010 16,510
Robert Muzzio 20,925 8,224
William F. Dinneen 882 347
David A. Hogan 1,604 631
Philip A. Richardson 2,285 898
Robert L. Sarno 722 284

1,700,000 660,000



EXHIBIT 4.1

NUMBER SHARES

COMMON STOCK

INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

MAXIMUS, INC.

NO PAR VALUE CUSIP 577933 10 4
SEE REVERSE FOR CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

THIS CERTIFICATE IS TRANSFERABLE UPON THE BOOKS OF THE CORPORATION

This Certifies that

is the owner of

FULLY-PAID AND NON-ASSESSABLE SHARES OF THE COMMON STOCK OF

MAXIMUS, Inc. transferable upon the books of the corporation in person or by
attorney upon surrender of this certificate duly endorsed or assigned. This
certificate and the shares represented hereby are subject to the laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia and to the certificate of incorporation and amendments
thereof and by-laws of the corporation. This cerificate is not valid until
countersigned by the transfer agent and registered by the registrant.

In Witness Whereof, MAXIMUS, Inc. has caused its corporate seal to be
hereunto affixed and its certificate to be signed by its duly authorized
officers.

/s/ F. Arthur Nerret /s/ SEAL /s/ David V. Mastran
Treasurer President
COUNTERSIGNED AND REGISTERED:
AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY
TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
BY

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE
MAXIMUS, INC.

Upon written request the Company will furnish in writing and without
charge to each shareholder a copy of the powers, designations, preferences and
relative, participating, optional or other special rights of each class of stock
or series thereof authorized by the Company including the qualifications,
limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or rights.

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face
of this Certificate, shall be construed as though they were written out in full
according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM -- as tenants in common
TEN ENT -- as tenants by the entireties
JT TEN -- as joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as

tenants in common

UNIF GIFT MIN ACT -- Custodian
(Cust) (Minor)
under Uniform Gifts to Minors
Act
(State)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

For value received, hereby sell, assign and
transfer unto

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER
IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE




(PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZIP CODE OF ASSIGNEE)

Shares

of the common stock represented by the within Certificate, and do hereby
irrevocably constitute and appoint

Attorney
to transfer the said stock on the books of the within named Company with full
power of substitution in the promises.

Dated

NOTICE: THE SIGNATURE TO THIS ASSIGNMENT MUST
CORRESPOND WITH THE NAME AS WRITTEN UPON THE
FACE OF THIS CERTIFICATE IN EVERY PARTICULAR,
WITHOUT ALTERATION OR ENLARGEMENT OR ANY
CHANGE WHATEVER.

SIGNATURE (S) GUARANTEED:

THE SIGNATURE (S) SHOULD BE GUARANTEED BY AN
ELIGIBLE GUARANTOR INSTITUTION (BANKS,
STOCKBROKERS, SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS
AND CREDIT UNIONS WITH MEMBERSHIP IN AN
APPROVED SIGNATURE GUARANTEE MEDALLION
PROGRAM) , PURSUANT TO S.E.C. RULE 17Ad-15.



EXHIBIT 5.1

PALMER & DODGE LLP
One Beacon Street, Boston, MA 02108-3190

Telephone: (617) 573-0100 Facsimile: (617) 227-4420
May 6, 1997

MAXIMUS, Inc.
1356 Beverly Road
McLean, VA 22101

We are rendering this opinion in connection with the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (the "Registration Statement") filed by MAXIMUS, Inc. (the
"Company") with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, on or about the date hereof. The Registration Statement
relates to up to 5,060,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock, no par value
(the "Shares"), being sold by the Company and certain stockholders of the
Company (the "Selling Stockholders"), including 660,000 Shares issuable upon
exercise of the overallotment option granted by the Selling Stockholders. We
understand that the Shares are to be offered and sold in the manner described in
the Registration Statement.

We have acted as your counsel in connection with the preparation of the
Registration Statement. We are familiar with the proceedings of the Board of
Directors on January 31, 1997 in connection with the authorization, issuance and
sale of the Shares (the "Resolutions"). We have examined such other documents as
we consider necessary to render this opinion.

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that the Shares have been
duly authorized and, when issued and delivered by the Company against payment
therefor at the price to be determined pursuant to the Resolutions, will be
validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion as a part of the
Registration Statement and to the reference to our firm under the caption "Legal
Matters" in the Prospectus filed as part thereof.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Palmer & Dodge LLP

Palmer & Dodge LLP



EXHIBIT 11

STATEMENT RE COMPUTATION OF PRO FORMA NET INCOME PER SHARE

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
SIX MONTHS
YEAR ENDED ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, MARCH 31,
1996 1997
(IN THOUSANDS,
EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Pro forma Net INCOmME. .. v v it ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeeennns S 7,106 $ 4,735

Shares used in computing pro forma net income per

share:
Weighted average shares outstanding for period......... 11,418 11,339
Effect of options granted in January 1997:
Options granted. . ...ttt te it nnnnn 404
[0 03wl Ko NN o a1 o 10U $ 1.46
ASSUMEd PrOCEEAS . v v v vttt ettt ettt eeesenesssennnasssens 590
Estimated net IPO proceeds per share................. $ 12.70
Shares assumed repurchased......... ..o 46
Shares deemed outstanding...........oiiiiiiiinnnnnn. 358 358 358
Effect on distribution to stockholders:
S Corporation Dividend..........iiiiiiiiininnnnennns 20,500
Less: Net income for period from April 1, 1996 to
March 31, 1907 ..ttt ittt et et 14,523
Dividend in excess Of INCOME. ... i i ittt eeeenaeennnn 5,977
Estimated net IPO proceeds per share................. $ 12.70
Shares deemed outstanding..........oiiiiiiiennn. 470 470 470

Shares used in computing pro forma net income per

Pro forma net income per share............eeeeueenennnn. $ 0.58 $ 0.39

</TABLE>



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
We consent to the reference to our firm under the captions "Selected
Financial Data" and "Experts" and to the use of our report dated February 7,
1997, in Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement (Form S-1 No. 333-21611)
and related Prospectus of MAXIMUS, Inc. for the registration of shares of its
common stock.
/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Washington, DC

May 12, 1997



<TABLE> <S> <C>

<ARTICLE> 5

<MULTIPLIER> 1,000
<CURRENCY> U.S.

<S>

<PERIOD-TYPE>
<FISCAL-YEAR-END>
<PERIOD-START>

<PERIOD-END>

<EXCHANGE-RATE>

<CASH>
<SECURITIES>

<RECEIVABLES>

<ALLOWANCES>
<INVENTORY>

<CURRENT-ASSETS>

<PP&E>

<DEPRECIATION>
<TOTAL-ASSETS>
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES>

<BONDS>

<PREFERRED-MANDATORY>

<PREFERRED>
<COMMON>
<OTHER-SE>

<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EQUITY>

<SALES>

<TOTAL-REVENUES>

<CGS>

<TOTAL-COSTS>
<OTHER-EXPENSES>
<LOSS-PROVISION>
<INTEREST-EXPENSE>
<INCOME-PRETAX>

<INCOME-TAX>

<INCOME-CONTINUING>
<DISCONTINUED>
<EXTRAORDINARY>

<CHANGES>
<NET-INCOME>

<EPS-PRIMARY>
<EPS-DILUTED>

</TABLE>

<C>
6-MOS

SEP-30-1997
0CT-01-1996
MAR-31-1997
1
5,886
1,007
30,638
0
0
43,932
3,865
(1,237)
47,119
14,128

<C>
YEAR

SEP-30-1996
0CT-01-1995
SEP-30-1996
1
2,326
1,007
25,352
0
0
32,239
3,732
(1,096)
35,493
9,539
0
0
0
0
9,197
35,493
103,113
103,113
78,429
78,429
13,104
0
0
11,844
225
11,619
0
0
0
11,619
.58
.58



